
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT

Regular Board Meeting 

3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923 

June 30, 2022 
Thursday 

9:00AM 

1



            2021 CAWD EMPLOYEE SURVEY 
JOB SATISFACTION    1 - Strongly Disagree - 5 - Strongly Agree Average

Doing my job gives me a sense of personal satisfaction. 4.269

I enjoy performing the actual day-to-day activities of my job. 4.192

My job lets me do a number of different things. 4.500

My job makes use of my skills and abilities. 4.077

Doing my job well leads to things like pay increases. 2.917

Doing my job well leads to recognition and respect from those I work with. 3.720

My job provides a good chance for getting ahead. 3.240

I am clear about what people expect of me on the job. 4.192

My supervisor expects too much from me on the job. 2.500

I clearly understand the requirements of my position. 4.120

My department receives cooperation and assistance from other departments. 4.120

At work, I have the opportunity to do what I do best every day. 3.680

The mission/purpose of CAWD makes me feel my job is important. 4.000

Overall, I am satisfied with my job. 3.654

COMMUNICATION     1 - Strongly Disagree - 5 - Strongly Agree Average

I get the information I need to coordinate my work with others. 3.462

My direct supervisor tells my department what it needs to know to do the best job possible. 3.846

The information I receive from my direct supervisor is straightforward and honest. 3.920

The information I receive from my superintendent (or department head) is straightforward and 

honest.
4.200

The information I receive from the general manager is straightforward and honest. 3.083

I am kept informed about what is going on at CAWD. 3.346

My direct supervisor is willing to listen if I have questions or concerns. 4.391

My direct superintendent (or head of my department) is willing to listen if I have questions or 

concerns. 
4.440

The general manager is willing to listen if I have questions or concerns. 3.708

Communication between departments is effective. 3.385

Communication within my department is effective. 3.962

Communication with the administrative office is effective. 3.400

I feel comfortable contacting the administrative office if I have a question that my supervisor 

doesn't know the answer to.
3.286

I feel comfortable contacting human resources if I have a question. 3.750
I am encouraged to contact the administrative office or human resources if I have a question that 

my supervisor doesn't know the answer to.
3.600

Policies and procedures that affect my work are communicated adequately. 3.320

SUPERVISORS AND MANAGEMENT    1 - Strongly Disagree - 5 - Strongly Agree Average

It is clear to me who I report to. 4.808

I know who to go to if I have questions. 4.769

My direct supervisor encourages people in my department to work as a team. 4.538

My direct supervisor encourages people to exchange opinions and ideas. 4.423

My direct supervisor encourages people to give their best effort. 4.423

My direct supervisor provides help, training, and guidance so that I can improve my 

performance.
4.000

My direct supervisor asks for opinions and ideas from members of my department. 4.038

My direct supervisor has the skills to get along with others. 3.962

My direct supervisor treats me with respect. 4.385

My co-workers treat me with respect. 4.192

2



My direct supervisor has an interest in and a concern for the employees under their supervision.
4.240

My superintendent (or department head) has an interest in and a concern for the employees 

under their supervision.
4.480

The general manager has an interest in and concern for the employees under her management. 3.292

My direct supervisor treats me fairly. 4.400

My direct supervisor treats all direct reports equally? 4.043

The general manager treats me fairly. 3.955

My superintendent (or department head) treats me fairly. 4.542

There are times when one person wants me to do one thing and someone else wants me to do 

something else.
3.130

I go through a lot of red tape to get things done. 2.120

I get hemmed in by long-standing rules and regulations that no one seems to be able to explain 2.000

My direct supervisor tells me if my work needs improvement. 3.846

If my work has needed improvement, there has been a clear plan for making that improvement. 3.714

I have confidence and trust in my direct supervisor. 4.000

I have confidence and trust in my superintendent (or department head). 4.320

I have confidence and trust in the general manager. 3.208

The management understands and supports the importance to employees of a good work/life 

balance.
3.833

My direct supervisor talks down to me. 1.778

My superintendent (or department head) talks down to me. 1.556

The general manager talks down to me. 1.700

How would you rate the performance of your direct supervisor? 3.960

How would you rate the performance of your superintendent (or department head)? 4.320

I have important responsibilities in my job. 4.577

There is a lot of time wasted because of inefficiencies. 2.920

My supervisor regularly discusses my performance with me. 3.080

My supervisor is always consistent when administering policies. 3.538

I have the opportunity to participate in the goal setting process. 3.600

My department is adequately staffed. 3.000

I regularly work overtime to get my job done. 1.591

I receive regular written performance reviews (annually). 3.360

My performance reviews have been timely. 3.231

I feel my performance reviews have been fair. 4.320

In the last six months, someone at work has talked to me about my progress. 3.120

In the last seven days, I have received recognition or praise for doing good work. 3.083

This year, I have had opportunities at work to learn and grow. 3.962

QUALITY AND TEAMWORK     1 - Strongly Disagree - 5 - Strongly Agree Average

My department's quality of work is high. 4.115

People in my department exchange ideas and opinions. 4.385

People in my department encourage each other to give their best effort. 3.885

People in my department help me find ways to do a better job. 3.800

People in my department offer each other new ideas for solving job-related problems. 4.038

My department feels responsible for meeting its objectives successfully. 4.308

I have confidence and trust in the people in my department. 3.885

When conflicts arise between department members, mutually acceptable solutions are sought. 3.783

When solutions are reached, opposing department members accept and implement them. 3.739

My work activities are sensibly organized. 4.038

My department works well together as a team. 4.115

Teamwork is encouraged and practiced in the District. 4.077

I receive the training I need to perform my job effectively. 4.077

I have the materials and equipment I need to do my work. 4.308

I receive regular safety training. 4.480

The safety training I receive is relevant and informative. 4.240

The employees in my department conduct themselves in a safe manner. 4.538

3



I'm held accountable for the work that I do. 4.538

All employees in my department are held accountable for their work. 3.840

EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION AND MORALE   1 - Strongly Disagree - 5 - Strongly Agree Average

I feel appreciated by my direct supervisor. 4.120

I feel appreciated by my superintendent (or department head). 4.200

I feel appreciated by the general manager. 3.304

I feel appreciated by the board of directors. 3.125

On the whole CAWD appreciates its employees. 3.480

Morale within CAWD is good. 3.250

My direct supervisor tells me if I've done a job particularly well. 3.545

I plan on leaving my job with CAWD within the next six months to a year. 2.053

I feel my job at CAWD is secure. 4.000

There is opportunity for growth at CAWD. 3.417

The physical working conditions at CAWD are good. 4.120

CAWD's benefit package is good (health, dental and life insurance, retirement, etc.). 3.640

I understand what benefits are available to me. 4.200

I would recommend employment at CAWD to others. 3.720

I feel my work contributes to the overall success of CAWD. 4.560

MISCELLANEOUS                                          1 - Strongly Disagree - 5 - Strongly Agree Average

Do you think the District's efforts to improve reliability and efficiency are moving in the right 

direction?
3.917

Are you comfortable approaching either the plant engineer or the principal engineer to inquire 

about their projects?
3.958

Are you comfortable approaching  your supervisor to inquire about the District's capital 

projects?
4.440

Do you think the District took appropriate precautions due to the pandemic? 4.038

3

4



Job Satisfaction 

A longevity step or steps (e.g. 15 years and 30 years) would allow those who have a decent longevity to have 

something to work towards and look forward to. 

I would like to see some kind of "merit" pay or benefit increases.  Many of us have had to do more as the 

technology and upgraded systems gets more complicated, but there is no step increases for that. 

Disconnect between the Board and General Manager at times leads to confusion of goals and trust with staff. 

I've known forever that this job doesn't utilize all my skills, quite few actually. Sometimes I feel the 

expectations of me aren't based in reality. I bust ass all the time, and yet it doesn't seem to make an overall 

difference. I see so much waste from others, I really should turn my performance level down to stay in pace 

with everyone else. I don't know why I try so hard or why everyone else doesn't. That probably frustrates me the 

most. I would say to some extent, zero accountability. 

I am  happy with my job 

Poor communication with or between all operations crew 

Tech investments and automation need to continue at CAWD. 

Working at CAWD allows me to continue to learn and explore different ideas and to work with some very 

knowledgeable people. Also allows all staff to work with other departments to achieve the District's goals.

Communication 

We still do not have a thorough and up to date personnel handbook and have not received an explanation as to 

the delay.  In the past year or so I have been hesitant to really talk to the GM because I feel it will come back to 

bite me.  It would be better if the GM came down to the plant unexpected and just took a look at what goes on, 

instead of wanting everyone to go to that office. 

Still waiting for the Employee Handbook to be updated!!!! 

Mixed message sometimes with Admin staff as sometimes different what the General Manager communicates. 

info from or between operations staff is almost zero 

5



CAWD has always encouraged staff to seek assistance from HR and the Admin office. The GM has always 

taken the time to listen to my concerns although there have been times where I felt there was a lack of follow 

through with some of those concerns. Communication is always difficult and is something that continues to be 

short. I personally have tried to increase my sharing of information and to be clear. I also have been putting 

more things in writing for better clarity. 

Supervisor and Management 

Direct supervision is great. Course work is always available and encouraged. In the past year however, I feel 

that the GM has been placed under pressure to please only one Board Member.  There needs to be more balance 

between Board "wishes" and what staff has time to do.  GM is not protecting the staff. 

My superintendent is very fair and is good at managing his team. I give praise to the General Manager for 

making sure CAWD has good equipment to allow us to do our work. 

There have been concerns I have brought up in the past that never got addressed. That was discouraging. 

Performance review are not always on schedule. 

No comment 

This survey needs new question - "Does management view employees as its greatest resource?" You will learn a 

lot. 

my supervisor doesn't talk down to me directly.  but i hear about it from others.  when asked about it, will not 

admit to it. 

Automation needs to continue at CAWD 

My supervisor and I have a good working relationship. I have not had a review in many years. My 

understanding is that it is in managements review process. My theory is if my supervisor is unhappy with my 

performance then he will talk to me about it. So far things appears to be good. 

Quality and Teamwork 

I feel the that there is much better plant interdepartmental cooperation.  Cooperation between Rio Road and 

Plant has diminished.  There has been and increase of "these are my people" and "those are your people". 

I would say I'm held accountable, others not so much 

The question, "Teamwork is practiced and encouraged in the District" was scored a 3. This is because some 

depts are 5 or 4. But operations scores a 1. Often opposition via passive aggressive behavior. 

6



i've witnessed some take credit for others ideas or findings. 

i've seen double standards. 

some are never honest about their roles in conflicts. 

Our department does a good job with brain storming and sharing ideas. Employees work together well. Staff is 

being held accountable for their work but get defensive when their performance is poor. 

Employee Appreciation and Morale 

There has become a huge disconnect from the General Manager and Board of Directors with that of the 

Employees of CAWD. The employees of CAWD are working in established careers. We should all be making a 

livable wage, one where we should be able to buy an average home in the county that we live. The average 

home in Monterey County is $788,000 (December 2020) making the average 30-day mortgage $3,545 per 

month. Its common for one to should spend 28% or less of your monthly gross income on your mortgage 

payment. The means that for a CAWD employee to own a house their income would need to be $12,671 a 

month. No CAWD employee makes that alone. Now the average rent in Monterey county is $2,263 per month 

for about 800 sqft. Common rent should be 30% or less of monthly gross income. The means for a CAWD 

employee to rent the average apartment in Monterey County they would need to make $7,543 a month. Why 

does the board and the GM feel that employees in established careers (and those with college degrees) should 

make enough to rent but will never make enough to own a home? Why do some CAWD employees with 

established careers need to have a roommate or house mate to afford to live in this county? Does the GM or the 

Board feel a CAWD employee with a degree working in a career should be able to afford a home on a district 

sallery?  I do not have a solution to this besides the addition of longevity steps of 5% and 10% pay increases for 

15 years and 30 years employment. The other thing is with our high deductible medical plan, an individual has a 

$3,000 yearly deductible. The GM has stated the employee is covered 100% however $3,000 is out of pocket. 

Even the current HAS contribution will not cover the deductible. That is not “The employee is covered 100%”. 

That is the Employee is covered till they get sick then its their problem, or they don’t get sick and save till next 

year. Can the GM and the Board please treat us like Humans. Many companies have started to take this 

approach and I would like to urge the CAWD GM and Board to put an end to this. Cover the health care 100% 

including their individual deductible. Then cover the family 50% and their deductible 50%. Plan to know that 

health costs will go up every year. 

There is still a general feeling that the employees need to "negotiate (beg)" for benefits and or compensation, 

leaving the feeling that we are less important than the GM's relationship with the Board. I don't feel that the GM 

would suggest better compensation on employees' behalf to the Board.  The Board states they appreciate the 

workers but then criticize and nit-pick the staff in a public board meeting? This is primarily from one Board 

member. 

At times confusing as first the Board says Best Staff ever and in the last Board meeting one Board member 

states "he does not trust staff in communicating".  

The Board should do a walk thru the treatment once a quarter and sit down with staff for a question and answer 

period to better understand what is being accomplished in the District. Rather then just reading a Board  Report 

once a month. 

The health plan is good but starting to get expensive. Maybe CAWD could start absorbing more of the 

increased costs. There are many in house projects performed which saves the district lots of money by not 

7



having to hire contractors. It would help employee appreciation and morale to have some of the savings trickle 

down into pay and less cost of healthcare benefits for employees. 

The question, "Moral within CAWD is good" was scored a 3. This is because two depts score 5 and 4. But 

operations scores a 2. Many in ops enjoy stirring up rumors, and pitting people against each other. Management 

creates this with constant authoritarian "gotcha" butt chewings and very very lame communication and no 

planning ahead. 

CAWD is a good employer and is always open to new ways to do things to improve the District's ability to 

achieve its goals and also create a friendly and efficient work place. Job recognition is not a high priority as I 

believe in personal satisfaction and achievements as my driving force. 

Miscellaneous 

The unvaccinated employees should be asked to leave the District if their exemption is not truly valid. The 

District should not be wasting money to have them tested weekly. 

The handling of the pandemic was exceptional.  I think Six Sigma should have been better presented as to why 

it is good for a company that does not produce items.  First it was for the supervisors, now we all need it - why? 

Like to see more cross training in different Departments.  

Better succession planning as there are at least three employees retiring in the next two years. 

I think overall, as far as the pandemic goes, CAWD did what it could with what it knew at the time. There were 

some pandemic concerns though I expressed that were ignored. That made me feel like I was just a number 

here. 

Survey needs new question -- "Does management view employees as its greatest resource?" You will learn a 

lot. 

Staff is good about sharing information about Districts plans to improve the plant. I believe the District did a 

good job with their philosophy but at times was very slow in providing written documentation on specific 

procedures and then relaying that to staff. 

8



 CSRMA Presentation by Chris Foley
to be inserted at the time of the meeting

9



STAFF REPORT 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

Date:  June 30, 2022 

Subject: Ordinance 2022-03 and Fiscal Year Rate Model 2022-23 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt an ordinance authorizing the adoption 
of the Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD/District) Schedule of Sewer User Fees for 
fiscal year 2022-23, effective July 1, 2022. 

DISCUSSION 

Attached is the User Rate Model for fiscal year 2022-23.  There have been no changes to the 
preliminary rate model since its presentation in March.  These rates were published in the 
Prop 218 Notice provided to all parcels of record in the District in early May (copy 
attached). 

A review of the summary page of the Rate Model as follows: 
• The left side of the spreadsheet provides ten years of historical data.
• The middle section is the result of the State Water Resources Control Board

(SWRCB) model.
• The right side of the spreadsheet is the increase proposed for adoption by District

Ordinance 2022-03 and published in the Prop 218 Notice.

Each year the District works to bring all rate categories in line with the model provided by 
the State Water Resources Control Board while balancing it against the District’s ability to 
collect revenues and balance expenditures.  This year the District also considered the 
impacts of inflation and supply chain obstacles on the District.  For the past two years 
CAWD has kept rates artificially low as an acknowledgement of the impact of COVID-19 
on our ratepayers.  Now, we are in a position of putting our rates back on track to enable us 
to meet our goals with respect to capital projects over the next twenty years and our 
requirement to move the treatment facility from the lagoon area.   

10



The Budget Committee worked very hard this year to analyze the District’s capital 
requirements, operating needs, and the potential costs involved in moving the treatment 
facility.   
 
The table below offers CAWD user fee data for eleven years for residential units. 
Comparative data from the SWRCB for 2016-17 is the last year available.  The Statewide 
average user charge for a single-family dwelling in 2016-17 was $44.10.  The SWRCB has 
ceased providing the survey information due to budgetary reasons. 
 

By Year Average Monthly 
Charge 

Percentage 
Change 

CAWD 2012-13 $34.76 7.50% 
CAWD 2013-14 $38.62 11.11% 
CAWD 2014-15 $42.86 10.97% 
CAWD 2015-16 $47.95 11.89% 
CAWD 2016-17 $53.93 12.46% 
CAWD 2017-18 $58.60 8.65% 
CAWD 2018-19 $63.99 9.19% 
CAWD 2019-20 $68.82 7.55% 
CAWD 2020-21 $70.99 3.16% 
CAWD 2021-22 $73.13 3.02% 
CAWD 2022-23 (proposed) $83.82 14.63% 

 
As of June 15, 2022, the District had not received any written protests to the proposed rate 
increase.  The final protest tally will be presented at the June 30, 2022, meeting. 
 
Attachments: 2022-23 User Fee Rate Model  

Prop 218 Notice 
   
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Residential sewer user fees, the District’s largest category, are projected to provide 
$7,155,240 in operating revenues for fiscal year 2022-23.  That equates to an estimated 71.9% 
of total projected user fee revenues of $9,941,528.   
 
The rate model provides for $2.5M to be dedicated to capital replacement costs.   
 
The cost to collect user fees, exclusive of staff time, is assessed by Monterey County and is 
estimated to be $28,110 for 2022-23.  The fee is provided for in the 2022-23 Operating 
Budget. 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



How does 
CAWD set 
sewer rates?
CAWD’s rate model was 

devised by the State Water Resources 
Control Board. It allocates costs based 
on flow, suspended solids, and 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD).
Flow is the amount of liquid wastewater—
at CAWD this is about 1.3 million gallons 
each day. A large cost of flow is for the 
energy needed to continually pump the 
water to the headworks where it then 
gravity feeds through the rest of the plant 
during treatment.

Suspended Solids are the particles of 
matter left in wastewater after heavier 
solids have settled out. When wastewater 
enters the plant, it is screened at the 
headworks to remove large debris—this 
goes to the landfill. Then the water goes 
to a clarifier where larger particles settle 
to the bottom. This sludge gets pumped to 
a digester that turns it into compost. The 
remaining particles in the water are the 
suspended solids that must be consumed 
by the billions of microorganisms we 
propagate to clean our wastewater. 

Biochemical Oxygen Demand is the 
amount of oxygen consumed by the 
microorganisms that eat bacteria to clean 
our wastewater. The more concentrated 
the wastewater, the more oxygen we need 
to support the microbes. More oxygen 
means more cost to run the large blowers 
which aerate the water in our secondary 
treatment tanks. These tanks are like giant 
aquariums of microscopic animals. Much 
of the plant’s equipment and infrastructure 
are there to keep our hardworking 
microbes happy and healthy.

CAWD is a special district dedicated to 
protecting public health and the environment 

with the cost-effective collection and 
treatment of wastewater, and the return of 

clean water to the environment.

Carmel Area Wastewater District
3945 Rio Road 

Carmel, CA  93923
(831) 624-1248  n  CAWD.org

Board of Directors
Greg D’Ambrosio
Michael Rachel
Robert Siegfried

Charlotte Townsend
Ken White

General Manager
Barbara Buikema

— Proposition 218 Notification —
Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Sewer Rate Increase

Thursday, June 24, 2022 9:00 am 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
3945 Rio Road, Carmel CA 93922 

Zoom link: CAWD.org

a topside view of our community’s new sludge holding tank  
CAWD’s treatment plant renovation will be largely completed next 
year, on budget  and ahead of time, to ensure public health and 
safety, and protect the local environment for the next 30? years. 

On June 30, 2022, at 9:00 a.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter may be taken up, the Carmel Area 
Wastewater District (CAWD) Board of Directors will hold a public hearing prior to the adoption of its 
sewer rates.  

 After two years of operation during the pandemic, the District is cautiously optimistic about 
the future. We have loosened our pandemic protocol, but we continue to sample our wastewater 
every week to provide the Monterey County Health Department and the public with data on current 
COVID-19 levels in the community. During the pandemic we undertook numerous belt-tightening 
measures to keep rate hikes as low as possible. We were able to curtail residential rate increases to 
3.16 percent in 2020-21, and 3.20 percent in 2021-22 (our customer base is two-thirds residential). 

As a result of the budget cuts, we did not 
undertake certain necessary capital projects 
which now must be completed to ensure the 
safe, reliable operation of our community’s 
wastewater system.

       Over the next 15 years we have 
projected $14 million in projects to maintain 
the treatment plant. We have also scheduled 
$64 million to replace or rehabilitate our 
aging sewer lines during the same period 
of time. [During the 15 years after that we 
anticipate that another $60-$70 million of 
sewer line rehabilitation will be needed.--
maybe don’t’ tell them now?] Our recently 
completed, map-based sewer assessment 
allows us to pinpoint the exact lengths of  

deteriorating pipeline that need work, keeping construction as cost-effective as possible. In addition 
to projects, like everyone else we are seeing severe inflation in the marketplace. The chemicals and 
mechanical parts we must buy on a weekly basis are increasing in cost with every order, and can 
have long wait times. We have stockpiled back-up inventory of critical parts to ensure continual 
operation, but we are unable to do the same with chemicals, many of which are toxic or caustic, so 
we are forced to pay more and manage with little margin to spare. 

 It is never easy to ask for a rate increase. Nobody likes them, including CAWD staff members 
who also live within the district. But we must catch up with our delayed projects if we are to 
responsibly maintain our infrastructure for the next generation, passing down the same protections 
and safeguards we have enjoyed thanks to our predecessors. To that end, we are proposing an 
additional $10.69 per month on residential property tax bills, our largest customer category. The 
total $128.28 for 2022-2023 will make up for the reduced fees collected for the past two years, 
and help ensure the long-term sustainability of the Carmel area wastewater system. Meeting our 
projected budget is a significant but necessary challenge, especially since grants are not available as 
they were 40 years ago. Regardless, we will continue to look for all possible outside funding, such as 
monitoring the current administration’s Build Back Better plan as a potential grant source.

 CAWD is dedicated to diligent, cost-effective long-term financial planning. For the past 20 
years we have employed a pay-as-you-go system to run the district. The CAWD Board of Directors has 
chosen to continue with this model so we have the freedom to maintain and build our infrastructure 
in a way that best meets the needs of the community, unbeholden to loan covenants, and without 
adding borrowing expenses to user fees. CAWD is deeply committed to getting the most value out of 
every ratepayer dollar, while maintaining high-quality standards that protect human health and the 
environment, as well as safeguard property values, business, and our tourist economy.

19



   
   
User Categories     

Bakery (each location) $   3,351.22     $   3,743.88      11.72%
Bar (each location) $   1,374.58      $   1,579.64      14.92%
Beauty Salon (each location) $  1,136.286        $   1,331.32    17.16%
Business/Govt./Retail (1-10 employees = one unit) $  511.94   $      612.48  19.64%
Camera/Photo (each location) $  710.04        $      799.14     12.55%
Church/Synagogue/Mission (each location) $      760.26     $      887.94    16.79%
Convalescent Hospital (per bed) $      405.48     $      472.38      16.50%
Dental Office (per dentist) $ 763.14     $      914.52     19.84%
Gym/Health Spa (each location) $      982.70     $     1,161.5      18.19%
Hotel/Motel (per room) $      428.08      $      477.64    11.58%
Laundromat (per machine) $ 944.46      $   1,143.94      21.12%
Laundry (each location) $ 3,564.90       $   3,968.94    11.33%
Market (each location) $ 1,610.36       $   1,840.42          14.29%
Medical Office (per physician) $ 359.92       $      440.50     22.39%
Residential/Minimum vacant (each location) $ 877.58       $   1,005.94      14.63%
Restaurant (per seat/meal) $ 66.32       $        74.40     12.18%
School (per population) $ 34.88      $        42.24    21.10%
Service Station (per pump) $ 2,546.00       $   2,947.48    15.77%
Supermarket (each location) $ 22,703.94    $ 25,502.46     12.33%
Special User (each location) $ 775.56       $      916.18   18.13%
Veterinary Office (each location) $   2,043.50     $   2,288.84   12.01%
Vet Hospital/Boarding (each location) $   5,608.98      $   6,511.88      16.10%

Carmel Area Wastewater District
Proposed Sewer Rate Increases for 2022-2023

2022-23
Proposed

Rates

2021-22
Annual 
Rates

Percentage 
of Change

 The procedural requirements of Proposition 218 require that the District provide a notice of the proposed rate schedule to all property 
owners of record forty-five (45) days prior to holding a public hearing. In order for the increase to “not take effect,” a majority of the 
property owners are required to file opposition to the increase in writing.

 Property owners may file a written and signed protest against the proposed increase with the CAWD Board of Directors at or before 
the close of the public hearing. To be valid, a protest must be in writing even if you plan to attend the public hearing. Email protests cannot 
be formally considered. Each written protest must include the parcel owner’s name, service address, assessor’s parcel number for the parcel 
served, and the parcel owner’s signature. Only one protest will be counted per parcel. If you own more than one parcel, you may file a single 
protest, but it must identify each parcel you own. The protest must be signed by the property owner(s). If the signer(s) is not shown on the 
last equalized assessment roll of Monterey County as the owner(s) of the property, the signer(s) must provide written evidence of ownership 
of said property. For your convenience, we have posted a protest form on our website, CAWD.org. At the hearing, the Board of Directors shall 
hear all protests and tabulate the ballots.

 Protests should be mailed or delivered to the same address as the hearing location. For further detailed information regarding the 
proposed rate plan, please call James Grover, CAWD Principal Accountant, at (831) 624-1248.

 We will continue to update you on improvements to our community’s wastewater system, and we invite you to review our 
long-term capital plan at CAWD.org. Please feel free to contact us at 624-1248 should you have any questions.

20



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-03 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING SEWER SERVICE CHARGES FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2022-23 AND THEREAFTER, PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION OF SUCH 

CHARGES ON THE TAX ROLL, AND PROVIDING FURTHER THAT THIS 
ORDINANCE AND THE CHARGES ESTABLISHED HEREBY AND THE TAX 

COLLECTION PROCEDURE SELECTED HEREIN SHALL REMAIN IN EFFECT 
UNTIL EITHER THE SAID CHARGES ARE REVISED OR THIS ORDINANCE IS 

OTHERWISE AMENDED OR REPEALED 

-oOo- 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

(DISTRICT) DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Sewer Service Charges.  Sewer service charges for services rendered are hereby 

adopted and levied upon all fiscal years hereafter until the charges established 

herein are modified or this ordinance is repealed, at the same rates set forth on 

Exhibit “A” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 

thereto. 

2. Collection on Tax Roll.  Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code §5473, the 

District hereby elects to have the aforesaid sewer service charges for services 

rendered by the District collected on the tax roll in the same general manner, by 

the same persons and at the same time as the collection of general property taxes 

by the County of Monterey. 

3. Duration.  This ordinance, the service charges established hereby and the 

collection procedure elected herein shall continue in full force and effect until 

either: a) the said sewer service charges are revised, or b) this ordinance is 

otherwise specifically amended or repealed. 

4. Publication.  Following adoption, this ordinance shall be published once in a 

newspaper published in the District. 

21



5. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force one (1) week after 

the date it is published in the newspaper, or July 1, 2022, whichever is later. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on June 30, 2022, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS 

NOES: BOARD MEMBERS 

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS 

ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS 

 

      _______________________________ 
      Ken White, President of the Board 
 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 

22



Exhibit "A"
Sewer User Fees Effective July 1, 2022

User Category Units Annual Rate
Bakery Location $3,743.88
Bar Location $1,579.64
Beauty Salon Location $1,331.32
Business/Govt./Retail Per 10 Employees* $612.48
Camera/Photo Location $799.14
Church/Synagogue/Mission Location $887.94
Conv. Hospital Per Bed $472.38
Dental Office Per Dentist $914.52
Gym/Health Spa Location $1,161.50
Hotel/Motel Per Room $477.64
Laundromats Per Machine $1,143.94
Laundry Location $3,968.94
Market Location $1,840.42
Medical Office Per Physician $440.50
Residential Dwelling Unit $1,005.94
Restaurants Seat/Meal** $74.40
Schools Population $42.24
Service Stations Per Pump $2,947.48
Supermarkets Location $25,502.46
Veterinary Offices Location $2,288.84
Animal Hospital & Boarding Location $6,511.88
Special/Unlisted Users $/Flow Characteristics *** $916.18

* Each business is counted separately.  For 1-10 employee it is counted as 1 unit.  For 11-20 it is counted 
    as two units.  And so on.  For the purposes of this model part-time employees are counted as 4:1

** Customer seats are multiplied by the number of meal periods (breakfast, lunch, dinner) serviced 
    times two.  The rate model assumes a seat will turn over twice during any meal period.

***Special/Unlisted users are assessed rates based on their loadings for Biochemical Oxygen
     Demand (BOD),  Suspended Solids (SS), and Flow (millions of gallons) multiplied by the 
     following unit rates:  $1.382616166/lb. of BOD; $0.979233727/lb. of SS; $11,490.81/MG of flow

The Carmel Area Wastewater District collects, treats and disposes of wastewater from more than 
6,500 residential and commercial connections in Carmel and surrounding areas and portions of 
lower Carmel Valley.

The fixed rate user fees include funds required for current operation and maintenance costs.

06.B Exhibit -Schedule A Rate Schedule 22-23.xls   22-23
Carmel Area Wastewater District

23



  
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT   

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
  Thursday, 9:00 a.m., May 26, 2022 

Via Teleconference Webinar 
 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL - The meeting was called to order at 9:02 a.m.  
 
Present: Directors: Greg D’Ambrosio, Mike Rachel, Charlotte Townsend and President Ken White, 

President Pro-Tem Robert Siegfried 
Absent: None 

A quorum was present.  
 
Others:     Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD or District) 

Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD 
Ed Waggoner, Plant Superintendent, CAWD 
Kevin Young, Operations Supervisor, CAWD 
Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent, CAWD 
Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent, CAWD 
Domine Barringer, Board Secretary, CAWD 
Kristina Pacheco, Board Secretary Pro-Tem, CAWD 
Robert Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD Legal Counsel 
Richard Verbanec, Board Member of Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD) 
Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD 
 

1. Public Comments: No public comments 
 

2. Agenda Changes: Addition of the Financial Report from Hastie Financial Group for 
Agenda Item No. 26. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS 
Consists of routine items for which Board approval can be taken with a single motion and vote. 

 
Board Action 

A motion to receive and approve the consent agenda was made by Director Siegfried and 
seconded by Director Townsend. After a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously received 
and approved the following Consent Calendar/Agenda items: 
 

3. Regular Board Meeting Minutes of April 28, 2022; and the Pension Committee Meeting 
Minutes of May 17, 2022. 

4. Bank Statement Review by Hayashi & Wayland 
5. Schedule of Cash Receipts & Disbursements 
6. Register of Disbursements - Carmel Area Wastewater District 
7. Register of Disbursements – CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project 

24



8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules 
9. Collection System Superintendent’s Report 
10. Safety and Regulatory Compliance Report 
11. Treatment Facility Operations Report 
12. Laboratory/Environmental Compliance Report 
13. Capital and Non-Capital Projects Report/Implementation Plan 
14. Project Summaries 
15. Plant Operations Report 
16. Maintenance Projects Report 

 
ACTION ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 
These items are acted upon in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to 
Staff (3) Public Comments, and (4) Board Discussion, Vote and Action. 
 
RESOLUTIONS 

 
17. Resolution No. 2022-15; Report by Patrick Treanor 

 
Board Action 

A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director Siegfried and seconded by 
Director Townsend. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2022-15, authorizing the General Manager to contract with Greeley and Hansen for 
$251,705.09 for assistance with WWTP relocation alternatives planning for the Long-
Term Sea Level Rise Mitigation Planning Project #22-01. 
 

18. Resolution No. 2022-24; Report by Barbara Buikema 
 

Board Action 
A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director Rachel and seconded by 
President White. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2022-24, proclaiming a local emergency, ratifying the Proclamation of a State of 
Emergency by Governor’s Order #N-25-20, and authorizing remote teleconference 
meetings of the legislative bodies of CAWD for the period of June 1, 2022, through June 
30, 2022. 
 

19. Resolution No. 2022-25; Report by Barbara Buikema 
 

Board Action 
A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director Siegfried and seconded by 
Director Rachel. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2022-25, adopting the CAWD/PBCSD Fiscal Year 2022-23 Reclamation Project Budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



20. Resolution No. 2022-26; Report by Barbara Buikema 
 

Board Action 
A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director D’Ambrosio and seconded by 
President White. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2022-26, specifying the District sewer connection and annexation fees as adopted by 
Ordinance No. 85-2, beginning June 1, 2022. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 

 
21. General Manager Report - oral report 

 
The report included an update on the District’s Six Sigma case study regarding Source Control 
and grease in lateral lines for food service establishments (FSE).  The Board requested that 
the General Manager/staff and District Counsel, Rob Wellington, establish a protocol and a 
process of enforcement for inspections and action that is required of FSE’s. 
 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

22. May update of the WWTP Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project 
#18-01– Report by Patrick Treanor 
 
This report is for information only and no action was taken.  
 

23. Summary of the April 29, 2022, PBCSD Board Meeting – Report by Barbara Buikema 
 
This report is for information only and no action was taken.   
 

24. Summary of the May 10, 2022, Reclamation Management Committee Meeting– Report by 
Barbara Buikema 
 
This report is for information only and no action was taken.   
 
OTHER ITEMS 
 

25. Summary of the Monterey County Treasurer’s Report – Report by Barbara Buikema 
 

Board Action 
A motion to accept the report was made by Director Siegfried and seconded by President 
White and unanimously accepted by the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



26. Summary Report of the May 17, 2022, Pension Committee Meeting – Report by Barbara 
Buikema 
 

Board Action 
The Board requested that the General Manager and staff complete a review of the 
District’s bond holdings going back to the beginning of Alan Greenspan’s tenure as Chair 
of the Federal Reserve (1987).  The review would be used to determine if the District’s 
bond holdings are stable as thought due to recent inflation and fluctuating values over 
time. The review will also help determine if the Pension Committee needs to evaluate, 
discuss and/or change the District’s current bond holdings.  All board members agreed 
to move forward with the review. 
 
After the discussion, a motion to accept the summary report given by Barbara was made 
by Director Siegfried and seconded by Director Townsend and unanimously accepted by 
the Board. 

 
 
27. Announcements on subjects of interest to the Board made by members of the Board or Staff     

• Director Townsend is scheduled to attend the May 27, 2022, PBCSD Regular Board 
meeting and President White is scheduled to attend the June 24, 2022, meeting. 

• Director Rachel is scheduled to attend the July 19, 2022, meeting of the Special Districts 
Association (SDA) of Monterey County. 

• President White and Director Townsend are scheduled to attend the Reclamation 
Management Committee meeting on November 8, 2022. 

• Director Siegfried mentioned an application (app) from Facebook called 
“NeuralProphet” which may be useful for the District to use. Staff will follow up on this 
app and its properties. 

• Director Siegfried also mentioned a new process used to create hydrogen from methane 
created by Levidian Nanosystems Limited. 

 
28. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the President adjourned the meeting 
at 10:10 a.m. The next Regular Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, June 30, 2022, or an 
alternate acceptable date, via teleconference webinar.  
 
 

As Reported To: 

_________________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

APPROVED: 

________________________________________________ 
Ken White, President 

27



28



29



Capital Compensated Defend or COUNTY Chase Chase
Capital Improvement General O & M Accruals Managed  Retreat Total Fund Bank O & M Bank PR L.A.I.F.
Fund Reserve Fund Reserve Reserve Balance Balance Balance Balance

BALANCE BEGINNING OF MONTH $5,180,584 $21,142,110 $12,849,080 $281,144 $4,000,000 $43,452,918 $345,626 $5,890 $1,198,228

Receipts:
   User Fees 4,704 1,750
   Property Taxes 5,610
   PBCSD Treatment Fees 115,000
   Reclamation O & M reimbursement 87,483
   Reclamation capital billing
   Permits 5,775
   PBCSD capital billing
   Other misc. revenue 8,280
   Interest income 
   Connection Fees 27,456
   CCLEAN receipts 111,500
   CRFree Project grant funds
   Sale of dump truck
   Hatton Canyon Grant Funds
   Void checks-replace lost check 94
        Total Receipts 0 5,610 4,704 0 0 10,314 357,339 0 0

Fund Transfers:
   Transfers to Chase Bank O&M (361,961) (238,039) 600,000
   Transfers to Chase Bank PR (240,000) 240,000
   Transfer to Defend or Managed Retreat Fund
   Intra-fund transfers for capital expenditures
   Rebalance Capital and O&M Reserves
        Total Transfers (361,961) 0 (238,039) 0 0 (600,000) 360,000 240,000 0

Disbursements:
   Operations and capital 667,402
   Payroll & payroll taxes 238,960
   Employee Dental reimbursements 3,528
   CALPERS EFT 36,003
   CAWD SAM pension EFT 0
   CAWD pension loans EFT 587
   Home Depot EFT 339
   US Bank EFT 18,474
   Deferred comp contributions EFT 14,065 0
   PEHP contributions EFT 3,258 0
   Bank/ADP fees 0 830
   Highlands Bond Debt Service Payment
   Annual County admin billing fee
   Wage garnishment payment
   GASB 68 report fee & SSA 218 fee
         Total Disbursements 0 0 0 0 0 0 743,656 239,790 0

BALANCE END OF MONTH 4,818,623 21,147,720 12,615,745 281,144 4,000,000 42,863,232 319,309 6,100 1,198,228

Carmel Area Wastewater District
Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - MAY 2022

30



Capital Reserve + O&M + O&M Reserve + Compensated Absences Reserve = Total Fund held in County

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

35,000,000

40,000,000

45,000,000

50,000,000

Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22

Total Fund Balances 21-22Capital Reserves

O&M

Comp Absences

Retreat Reserve

Total

31



0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

Capital Capital Reserve O&M Compensated Absences Managed Retreat Reserve

4,818,623 

21,147,720 

12,615,745 

281,144 

4,000,000 

6,404,577 

17,879,359 

13,184,007 

245,477 

3,000,000 

2021-22
2020-21

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



 

STAFF REPORT   
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent 
 
DATE:            June 30, 2022  
         
SUBJECT: Monthly Report – May 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.  
 
       
Permits Issued 
 
Sewer Lateral Permits issued in May                ............................................                           27 
 
Total Fees     ....................................................................................................... $4,560.00 
 
 
Maintenance  
Attached is a map of the areas cleaned and Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) inspected in the 
past three months. There were 47,446 feet of sewer lines cleaned, 5,107 feet of CCTV inspections 
and 7 manhole inspections were performed during the month of May.  
 
 
Recent Line Cleaning Summary 

Cleaning period Footage 
Cleaned 

Percentage Cleaned Size of Pipe Cleaned 

May 47,446 ft. 11.54% 6 – 12 inches 
April 35,310 ft. 8.59% 6 – 15 inches 

March 52,215 ft. 12.70% 6 – 27 inches 
 

 

 

63



Annual Line Cleaning Graph 
 

 
 
 

Line Cleaning Table 

Total Target Amount 
(Linear Feet) 

Cumulative Complete 
(Linear Feet) 

Remaining (Linear Feet) 

615,000 220,152 394,848 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

64



CCTV Progress Graph (River Watch Settlement Agreement Target) 
 

 
 
CCTV Table 
 

Total Required 
amount (Linear Feet) 

Cumulative Complete 
(Linear Feet) 

Remaining (Linear Feet) 

408,672 391,729 16,943 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65



Manhole Inspection Progress Graph (Riverwatch Settlement Agreement Target) 
 

 
 
Manhole Inspection Table 

Total Required Amount 
(Manholes) 

Actual Complete 
(Manholes) 

Remaining                  
(Manholes) 

1428 1428 0 
 
Riverwatch Update 

• Staff has completed the manhole inspection part of the settlement. The Principal Engineer 
will use this data to schedule rehabilitation or replacement of damaged or deteriorated 
manholes. Project 22-02 Manhole Frame & Lid Replacement Project exposed the 
remaining 7 manhole so inspections could be completed. There are 68 manholes within 
the District boundaries that were not inspected because these assets are privately owned 
or managed by Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD)  
 

• Once the CCTV inspections and Pump Station evaluations are completed, the Principal 
Engineer will use the information for the final Collection System Asset Management Plan.  

 
 

66



Construction Activities 
• On May 9th Coastal Paving & Excavating started the 22-02 Manhole Frame & Lid 

Replacement Project. Thirty manhole frame and lids were replaced with the new 
composite style frame and lids. The area of focus was the Mission Fields community 
which has been prone to flooding in years past. The new style lids are locking and 
watertight which will help with I/I Infiltration and Inflow (I/I) in future flood events.  

 
Staff Development 

• Staff completed several in-person tail gate trainings.  
 
Service calls responded to by crew 
 

Date Time Callout Resolution 
5/2/2022 11:58 PM Power Fail  Called to 8th & Scenic for a power 

fail. Staff monitored the station until 
the power was restored.  

5/8/2022 3:17 PM Pump Fail Called to Hacienda for a pump fail. 
Staff disabled the pump and took it 
out of rotation till the next day. Staff 
found rags had clogged the impeller. 
Staff cleared the impeller and put the 
pump back in service. 

5/25/2022 12:36 PM Lateral Overflow Called by homeowner for a lateral 
overflow. Staff cleaned District main 
line and found no problems in 
District’s line. Staff informed owner 
to call a plumber of their choice. 

5/31/2022 1:17 PM Lateral Overflow Called by homeowner for a lateral 
overflow. Staff cleaned District main 
line and found no problems in 
District’s line. Staff informed owner 
to call a plumber of their choice. 

USA Location Requests – 115 
Plumbing permit inspections – 21 
Private Sewer Lateral Compliance Certificates Issued – 28 
FUNDING-N/A 

 

67



6/6/2022

68

lauer
Text Box
May (Red)               47,446 feetApril (Yellow)          35,310 feetMarch (Green)        52,215 feet                                          Monthly Cleaning Map



6/8/2022

69

lauer
Text Box
May (Red)                    5,107 feetApril (Yellow)               3,743 feetMarch (Green)           16,601 feet                Monthly CCTV Map



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Mark Dias, Safety and 

Regulatory Compliance Administrator 
(Safety/Compliance (S/C) Admin Dias) 

 
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Monthly Safety Report (for May 2022) 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required  
 
DISCUSSION  
Safety & Training 
 

• May 4- Human Error and Performance Training. Chris Foley, Maintenance 
Superintendent, discussed the role of human error in accidents and near-misses. 
Human error accounts for over 75% of Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) 
reportable injuries and so it is a key topic in any safety program. The detailed 
presentation included a breakdown of multiple types and causes of human error. 
Tools to reduce human error include: (1) Job Hazard Assessment/Pre-Job Brief, (2) 
Self Checking sequence, (3) Peer Checking, (4) 3-Legged Communication 
[instruction, repeat back, confirm], (5) Situational Awareness, (6) Questioning 
Attitude, (7) Stop When Unsure. 

 
• May 11- Basic Electrical Safety Quiz.  S/C Admin Dias gave a PowerPoint quiz on 

basic electrical safety.  The presentation focused on common misconceptions and 
errors that can lead to electrocution. One area emphasized was that if a circuit 
breaker trips, the first step is not to reset the breaker. Instead, it should be assumed 
that the breaker tripped for a reason. The cause should first be identified and 
eliminated by a trained worker before resetting. 
 

• May 18- Machine Guarding.  Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, gave a presentation 
on machine guarding. Machine guards are required to protect employees from 
pinch points, rotating/reciprocating parts, sparks and flying debris. Machine guards 
are in place around the plant. Whenever the guard needs to be removed for 
servicing or cleaning, the equipment must be locked out and tested to confirm the 
lock-out was successful.  
 

  

70



• May 25- Phone system Broadcast feature. S/C Admin Dias gave a refresher of the 
District’s phone system “broadcast” feature. This was first presented roughly two 
years ago. The phone system allows any user to press a single button and then 
transmit audio to all the phones on the system.  It is internal only and does not call 
911 or First Alarm. While most communication at the plant is via two-way radios, 
not all employees at the plant have radios. The General Manager is also on the 
broadcast system.  The broadcast feature allows for a secondary/back-up method to 
announce emergencies, evacuations, threats, etc. After the refresher each 
department went back to their desks and conducted test broadcasts.  
 

Ongoing Safety Improvements 
During May, Maintenance Superintendent Chris Foley and S/C Admin Dias continued to 
implement safety improvements and seek input from the operations crew and the Safety 
Committee. Activities during May included:  
 

• Draft Safety Culture Survey. As part of enhancing the District’s safety culture, two 
new, in-depth safety culture surveys were developed in house.  The main survey is 
for employees. There is a separate analogous survey for management. The first 
drafts were presented to management in May. The anonymous survey will be rolled 
out in June and the results will be shared with employees and the Safety Committee 
after they are compiled and analyzed. These will be recurring surveys.   

 
Tours and Outreach 

• Tours. Tours remain on temporary hold while several areas of the plant are being 
impacted by Phase II construction activities.  
 

Injuries; First Aid Incidents; Workers Compensation Claims 
There were no first aid injuries or Workers’ Compensation cases in May. The employee 
with the foot injury (as reported in February’s report) remained on restricted duty for the 
entire month (21 working days).  The tracking matrix below reflects data through May 30. 
 

 Work Related Injuries and Illnesses for 2022 Calendar Year  

TYPE 

New  
Incidents 
(Month) 

Total  
Incidents 

(Year) 

Total Days Away 
from Work 

(Year) 

Total Days of Job 
Restriction 

(Year) 

Cumulative days 
lost  

(Year) 
OSHA 
Injuries 

0 1 1 80 1 

OSHA 
Illnesses 

0 0 0 0 0 

Other WC 
Claims 

0 0 0 0 0 

First Aid 
(non-OSHA) 

0 0 0 0 0 

FUNDING- N/A- Informational item only 

71



% of Total MG

65.746 117.80

34.254 58.83

100.00 176.62

88.778 131.75

13.280 45.74

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1409.48 N/A N/A N/A

2190.20 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

(2) Microturbine system off-line due to the gas compressor malfunction.

1984.84 1939.79

 Reclamation Total                                

187,788.68 39,104.13$   34,016.55$   

2022

19,567.36$                             

1682.65

51,639.51$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1681.53

1887.92

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.168

0.400

541.78

9.03 BG (27.71 K acre-ft.)

1.254

361.33

404.14

0.000

Mar'22

180.44

140.29

0.000

353.24 MG (1084.10 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.069

0.466

Apr'22

0.423

22,997.64$   

0.194$           

55,117.36

32,605.29$   32,102.74$   

15,984.77$                            

15,648.90$   

0.220$           19,014.22$                            

16,106.49$   

MF/RO 

131.75MG (404.14acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-22)                 

18,367.65$   

9,692.95$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h (2)

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

May 2022

31.153

0.150

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

24,427

Feb'22

2021

Accumulated Totals

22,342.43$                            

104,593.00

113,931.00

83,195.68

27,228.40$                            

Mar'22

10,018.75$   

19,657.48$                            

14,522.02$                            

1,225,671.00

34,179.50$                            

6,357.66$                              

0

Feb'22

22,570

2 QTR

16,666.66$                            

Apr'22May '22 kW-h 

35,680.88$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

0

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.701 0.831

2022 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

12.020

35.091

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

4.660

CAWD Total          

22,586.54$   

0.368

May'22

0.000

0.74423.071

Monthly Totals

1.132

0.388

0.107

1.005

May'22 kWh

0.192$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2022)                      

169,048.36

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.189$           

CAWD Total

CAWD 1453.87

17,535.45$                            

10,568.58$   

Reclamation

1327.64 1298.73

Reclaim Total

21,534.16$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

72



Month

Jun 21

Jul 21

Aug 21

Sep 21

Oct 21

Nov 21

Dec 21

Jan 22

Feb 22

Mar 22

Apr 22

May 22

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22

Total Inflow
PBCSD Influent Flow, mg CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

73



% of Total MG

66.462 94.72

33.538 46.81

100.00 141.53

73.021 100.60

25.714 41.08

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1409.48 N/A N/A N/A

2190.20 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

(2) Microturbine system off-line due to the gas compressor malfunction.

1984.84 1939.79

 Reclamation Total                                

160,682.24 34,016.55$   35,680.88$   

2022

20,034.57$                             

1682.65

46,587.27$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1681.53

1887.92

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.099

1.124

434.14

9.00 BG (27.61 K acre-ft.)

1.439

290.56

308.58

0.000

Feb'22

143.57

126.00

0.000

354.53 MG (1088.05 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.052

0.000

Mar'22

0.556

18,367.65$   

0.203$           

52,128.96

27,228.40$   32,605.29$   

11,880.60$                            

16,666.66$   

0.220$           19,657.48$                            

15,648.90$   

MF/RO 

100.60MG (308.58acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-22)                 

19,014.22$   

6,357.66$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h (2)

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

April 2022

25.631

0.301

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

22,570

Jan'22

2021

Accumulated Totals

21,337.20$                            

83,588.00

122,940.00

77,094.24

22,342.43$                            

Feb'22

9,692.95$     

17,709.53$                            

16,423.59$                            

1,225,671.00

34,133.12$                            

9,456.60$                              

0

Jan '22

18,128

2 QTR

14,522.02$                            

Mar'22Apr '22 kW-h 

34,179.50$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

24,427

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.751 0.883

2022 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

11.772

35.101

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

9.026

CAWD Total          

17,535.45$   

0.301

Apr'22

0.000

0.74023.329

Monthly Totals

1.132

0.392

0.112

0.915

Apr'22 kWh

0.192$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2022)                      

175,068.96

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.184$           

CAWD Total

CAWD 1453.87

15,984.77$                            

10,018.75$   

Reclamation

1327.64 1298.73

Reclaim Total

22,586.54$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

74



Month

May 21

Jun 21

Jul 21

Aug 21

Sep 21

Oct 21

Nov 21

Dec 21

Jan 22

Feb 22

Mar 22

Apr 22

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22

Total Inflow
PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

75



% of Total MG

68.243 71.40

31.757 35.03

100.00 106.43

78.437 74.97

18.934 32.05

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1409.48 N/A N/A N/A

2190.20 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

1984.84 1939.79

 Reclamation Total                                

172,187.72 35,680.88$   34,179.50$   

2022

16,675.12$                             

1682.65

46,234.16$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1681.53

1887.92

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.198

0.960

326.47

8.97 BG (27.53 K acre-ft.)

1.317

219.00

229.96

0.000

Jan'22

107.46

98.31

0.000

359.65 MG (1103.76 acre-ft.)

0.000

0.976

0.333

Feb'22

0.424

19,014.22$   

0.193$           

54,171.04

22,342.43$   27,228.40$   

16,980.55$                            

14,522.02$   

0.222$           17,709.53$                            

16,666.66$   

MF/RO 

74.97MG (229.96acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-22)                 

19,657.48$   

9,456.60$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

March 2022

27.006

0.210

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

18,128

Dec'21

2021

Accumulated Totals

26,208.13$                            

85,639.00

89,062.00

86,548.72

21,337.20$                            

Jan '22

6,357.66$     

25,021.75$                            

14,959.99$                            

1,225,671.00

39,981.74$                            

9,227.58$                              

24,427

Dec '21

0

2 QTR

16,423.59$                            

Feb'22Mar '22 kW-h 

34,133.12$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

22,570

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.681 0.893

2022 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

10.934

34.430

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

6.519

CAWD Total          

15,984.77$   

0.295

Mar'22

0.000

0.75823.496

Monthly Totals

1.111

0.353

0.108

0.965

Mar'22 kWh

0.179$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2022)                      

143,233.04

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.197$           

CAWD Total

CAWD 1453.87

11,880.60$                            

9,692.95$     

Reclamation

1327.64 1298.73

Reclaim Total

17,535.45$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

76



Month

Apr 21

May 21

Jun 21

Jul 21

Aug 21

Sep 21

Oct 21

Nov 21

Dec 21

Jan 22

Feb 22

Mar 22

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22

Total Inflow
PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

77



STAFF REPORT  
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Ray De Ocampo - Laboratory/Environmental 

Compliance Supervisor 
 

Date:             June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Monthly Report – May 2022 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report - Informational only; No action required. 
 
DISCUSSION 
LABORATORY REPORT 

• Biobot Analytics continues to provide COVID-19 analysis for Carmel Area Wastewater 
District (CAWD) composite samples of the Influent Pump Station. Biobot samples are 
available upon request and can also be viewed on the CAWD website: 
https://www.cawd.org/biobot-analytics-weekly-reports-of-concentration-levels-sars-cov-
2#/body_file-e72defec-6488-4185-b5f3-ab45b2fe531e .  

 
 
* Effective virus concentration values are derived by adjusting the raw virus concentration to account for dilution & other factors 
(copies per liter of sewage) 

 
 
 

  

78



• On May 10, 2022, Tertiary Filtered Effluent had a violation on the Minimum Chlorine 
Residual Metered Continuous reading of 2.17 mg\L, the requirement is 5.0 mg\L or 
higher. Operations Supervisor Young notified both the Plant Superintendent and 
Laboratory Supervisor of the violation. Detailed explanation of the violation is in the 
attached letter to the Central Coast Regional Board and the Operations June board report. 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 
• On May 13, 2022, Mountain Mike’s Pizza had a Fats, Oil and Grease (FOG) inspection and 

was not compliant for proper maintenance of the grease trap. The first Notice of Violation 
(NOV) was issued during the inspection on May 16th. On the follow up inspection 
conducted on May 20, 2022 the vendor was in compliance.   

• On May 27, 2022, Mr. De Ocampo met with the City of Carmel’s Environmental 
Compliance Manager, Agnes Martlet, and the new Environmental Compliance 
Administration Technician, Jessica Juico, to plan for the upcoming City of Carmel’s 
Stormwater inspections.  

 
Restaurant Inspections 

 
Restaurant 

 
Compliant 

Reason for Non-
Compliance 

 
Comments 

Little Swiss Cafe Yes   
Village Gem Yes   
Little Napoli Yes   
La Bicyclette Yes   
Cypress Inn Yes   
The Crossroads Barbeque Yes   
Subway Yes   
Chopstix No Excessive Grease Warning issued, follow 

up inspection was 
compliant. 

Carmel Bakery Yes   
Flaherty’s Fish House No Excessive Grease Warning issued, follow 

up inspection was 
compliant. 

Mulligans Public House Yes   
Wedgewood Wedding 
Banquet 

         No Excessive Grease Warning issued, follow 
up inspection was 
compliant. 

Mountain Mike’s Pizza          No Excessive Grease Notice of Violation fine 
issued for $75.00, follow 
up inspection was 
compliant. 

Forge in the Forest          Yes   
The Cottages of Carmel          Yes   

79



 
Restaurant 

 
Compliant 

Reason for Non-
Compliance 

 
Comments 

Sur at The Barnyard          Yes   
Aabha Indian Cuisine          Yes   
Highlands Inn          Yes   

 
Grocery Store/Delicatessen Inspections 

Grocery 
Store/Delicatessen 

 
Compliant 

Reason for Non-
Compliance 

 
Comments 

n/a    
 

Compliance Register 
% Compliance Maintenance Mechanical 

         March 2022 100% 100% 
         April 2022 100% 100% 
         May 2022 77.8% 100% 
 

80



Project 
Number

GL Task Name Manager Start Finish Current FY 
Budget

Cumulative 
Budget

Status

Projects Implementation Plan Schedule 3/1/18 7/1/40 $0 $0

Treatment Plant Capital Projects 4/30/18 2/29/28 $0 $0

18-01 1620.000 Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding 
Tank Replacement Project

Treanor 4/30/18 7/25/23 $5,000,000 $10,946,671 In Construction

18-05 5858.004 PLC/SCADA Programming Foley 10/8/18 12/31/21 $200,000 $455,807 Anticipated Completion June
2022

18-28 1626.000 Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation Treanor 7/1/19 6/30/26 $60,000 $237,897 Planning Stakeholder
Meeting

19-21 1993.000 Carmel River FREE Mitigation Treanor 6/1/20 11/29/24 $0 $0 Design/Permitting/
Developing Funding

Agreement
19-19 1634.000 Aeration Basin Improvements Waggoner 7/1/20 6/30/22 $0 $9,030 Planning Installation for 2022

19-18 1593.000 Perimeter Fencing Treanor 7/1/22 6/29/23 $200,000 $200,000 Design Phase

22-03 WWTP Gas and Water Main 
Replacement

Treanor 5/2/22 6/30/23 $0 $300,000 In Study Phase

22-04 5500.006 CAWD Bridge and Trail Project Treanor 3/1/21 2/29/28 $0 $550 Developing Presentation
Materials

Reclamation Capital Projects 1/1/19 6/30/23 $0 $580,000

18-26 14777 Sulfuric Acid and Citric Acid Storage and
Feed Systems

Treanor 1/1/19 9/30/22 $370,000 $438,743 In Construction

21-09 14776 SCADA Migration Foley 11/1/21 10/31/22 $140,000 $140,000 In Progress 71%

21-10 Fiber Wrap PVC Pipe Foley 4/1/22 6/30/22 $25,000 $25,000 Pending

Reclamation 15-Year Asset 
Management Assessment

Treanor 7/1/21 6/30/23 $50,000 $50,000 Request Qualifications from
Consultants

Collections Capital Projects 4/16/18 7/1/40 $0 $8,139,000

19-03 1586.000 Carmel Meadows Sewer Replacement Lather 8/1/19 1/19/23 $150,000 $2,014,551 In Design / CEQA

20-07 1636.000 Bay/Scenic Pump Station Rehabilitation Lather 12/31/20 6/30/23 $250,000 $756,726 In Design

20-08 1635.000 Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting - Ocean to Bay Lather 2/5/21 6/30/23 $1,200,000 $1,280,276 In Design / CEQA

21-05 1637.000 Pescadero Creek Area Pipe Relocation Lather 7/1/21 6/30/23 $450,000 $1,700,000 In Design

20-06 Collections 15-Year CIP Lather 7/1/20 7/1/40 $0 $62,899,430 Work In Progress

Collections Non-Capital Projects Lather 7/3/18 2/27/25 $0 $0

20-05 River Watch Agreement Lather 2/21/20 2/21/24 $0 $0 Work In Progress

22-02 6130.005/
6140.005

2022 Manhole Frame and Lids Replacement at
Various Locations

Lather 2/1/22 10/10/22 $55,000 $55,000 Complete

21-06 6140.005 Manhole Rehabilitation Lather 7/1/22 6/29/23 $150,000 $150,000 On Hold Till Next FY

Assessment Districts/Annexations Lather 7/3/18 2/27/25 $0 $105,000

19-09 5500.005 2020 Sphere of Influence Amendment and 
Annexation Proposal 

Lather 3/15/19 3/1/22 $0 $50,000 In process of obtaining CDP
Ammendment for

annexations in coastal zone
18-21 1631.000/

2505.000
Corona Road Assessment District Lather 8/2/18 12/2/22 $0 $0 In Design / CEQA

19-08 1632.000 Carmel Valley Manor Pipeline and Pump 
Station

Lather 7/3/18 6/30/22 $0 $0 Re-Design by Property
Owner in Progress

18-29 9095.000 September Ranch Subdivision Lather 9/1/22 8/30/24 $0 $0 Development Pending

ding Tank Replacement Project

ing

Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation

Carmel River FREE Mitigation

on Basin Improvements

Perimeter Fencing

WWTP Gas and Water Main Replacement

CAWD Bridge and Tra

Storage and Feed Systems

SCADA Migration

Fiber Wrap PVC Pipe

eclamation 15-Year Asset Management Assessment

ows Sewer Replacement

Bay/Scenic Pump Station RehabilitationBay/Scenic Pump Station Rehabilitation

Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting - Ocean to Bay

Pescadero Creek Area Pipe Relocation

Collections 15-Year CIPCollections 15-Year CIP

River Watch AgreementRiver Watch Agreement

nhole Frame and Lids Replacement at Various Locations

Manhole Rehabilitation

t and Annexation Proposal 

ment District

d Pump Stationd Pump Station

September Ranch SubdivisionSeptember Ranch Subdivision

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2021 2022 2023 2024

81



Project 
Number

GL Task Name Manager Start Finish Current FY 
Budget

Cumulative 
Budget

Status

Rancho Canada Subdivision Lather 3/1/23 2/27/25 $0 $0 In Design by Property Owner

Other Non-Capital Projects 3/1/18 2/29/40 $0 $0

Workforce Now Foley 3/1/18 3/1/18 $0 $0 Implementation

Employee Contract Negotiations Buikema 3/1/18 3/1/18 $0 $0 In Progress

Real Property Investigation Buikema 3/1/18 3/1/18 $75,000 $75,000 Evaluation in Progress

Cyber Security Foley 3/1/18 3/1/18 $17,000 $17,000 Ongoing

Lean Six Sigma Buikema 3/1/18 3/1/18 $0 $0 Green Belt Level Training and
Certification

22-01 5500.006 Long Term SLR Planning Buikema /
Treanor

5/3/21 2/29/40 $250,000 $1,400,000 In Progress

Source Control Grease Task Force Lather 3/1/21 2/29/40 $0 $0 In Progress

Rancho Canada SubdivisionRancho Canada Subdivision

Long Term SLR Planning

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2021 2022 2023 2024

82



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treatment Plant Capital Project Summaries 
 

 

83



 
Photo: New Sludge Tank Under Construction 

  
Project Number: 18-01 
Project Name: Wastewater Treatment Plant 

(WWTP) – Elec/Mech Rehab & 
Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 
Project 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: In Construction 
Project 
Description: 

This project is a multi-area project 
at the WWTP aimed at mitigating 
risk of failure in the Influent Pump 
Station, Headworks, 3W/Chlorine 
Analyzer Building, Effluent Building 
and Sludge Storage Tank. Most of 
the work involves replacing aged 
electrical and mechanical 
equipment in existing buildings. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$10,946,671 
Cumulative Spent: 
$4,186,795 

FY Budget: 
$5,000,000 

FY Spent: 
$2,933,333 

Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 2.7% of project cost.  

Other Entities: Pebble Beach Community Services 
District, CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation 
Project 

Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification 
Challenges: Electrical Cutover Coordination; 

Steel tank vs concrete design to 
code 

Schedule: • Construction anticipated for 
FY21/22 into FY22/23 

Consultants: Design: Kennedy/Jenks Consultants  
Construction Management: Currie 
Engineers 

Contractor: Clark Bros. Inc. 
 

 
Photo: DAFT SCADA Overview Screen 

  
Project Number: 18-05 
Project Name: Programmable Logic Controller 

(PLC) and Supervisory Control and 
Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
Programming Project 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Foley 
Status: Anticipated Completion June 2022 
Project 
Description: 

During the Phase 1 project a new 
SCADA software package from 
Inductive Automation was installed 
to parallel the existing system. This 
project includes the migration of 
the remaining SCADA screens from 
the legacy system to the new 
system. The PLC code is also being 
updated to the CAWD standards 
that are being developed during 
this project. This project is 
necessary to replace obsolete 
software and hardware so that the 
automated controls, alarms, and 
reporting remain accurate and 
reliable. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$455,807 
Cumulative Spent: 
$273,297 

FY Budget: 
$200,000 

FY Spent: 
$17,490 

Reclamation 
Share: 

Partial Reclamation 

Other Entities: None 

Permits Required: None  
Schedule: Some minor additional work 

remains and will be completed by 
06-30-22 

Consultants: Frisch Engineering 
  

84



 

Photo: Eucalyptus trees on South Side of Treatment Plant 
  
Project Number: 18-28 
Project Name: Perimeter Tree Plan and 

Implementation 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Planning Stakeholder Meeting 
Project 
Description: 

Planning and landscaping around 
the treatment plant. This will 
include looking into possibly 
replacing the non-native eucalyptus 
trees around the perimeter of the 
treatment plant with native tree 
species. The project will start with a 
study and a plan to determine 
costs, sequencing schedule, and 
visual impacts. The Eucalyptus trees 
around the plant have ongoing 
maintenance costs, which may be 
offset in the long term with a 
different type of tree screening. 
The purpose is to improve security 
around plant perimeter.  

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$237,897 
Cumulative Spent: 
$5,020                 

FY Budget: 
$60,000 

FY Spent: 
$2,123 

Reclamation: N/A 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: Currently unknown (In Study Phase) 

Challenges: Time it will take for new trees to 
grow up that will fully screen 
treatment plant from view 

Schedule: • Study moved to 2022; 
anticipate completion 06-30-26 

Consultants: Scott Hall Landscape Design 

Contractor: TBD 
 

 

 

 

 

Photo: Carmel River Floodplain Restoration and 
Environmental Enhancement (CRFREE) 

Project Number: 19-21 
Project Name: Carmel River Floodplain 

Restoration & Environmental 
Enhancement (CRFREE) Mitigation  

Project Location: Carmel River Lagoon 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Design/Permitting/Developing 

Funding Agreement 
Project 
Description: 

The CRFREE Project intends to 
create a new river channel in the 
Carmel River lagoon floodplain, 
which will significantly impact 
existing wastewater pipelines that 
cross the lagoon. To fully mitigate 
impacts from CRFREE the pipelines 
which are currently crossing over a 
portion of the lagoon are proposed 
to be installed underground using 
Horizontal Directional Drilling 
construction methods.   

Department: Engineering 
Financial: Coastal 

Conservancy Grant 
Budget: 
$750,000 

Cumulative Spent: 
$618,569 
FY Spent: 
$130,756 

** Project is being funded by CRFREE initiated grants 

Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities: Monterey County 
Permits 
Required: 

Coastal Commission, CA Fish and 
Wildlife, Army Corp of Engineers, 
Reginal Water Quality Control 
Board (RWQCB) 

Challenges: Construction near environmentally 
sensitive habitat and obtaining new 
easement from State Parks 

Schedule: • Construction anticipated in 
Summer 2023 

Consultants: Design: Kennedy Jenks and Staheli 
Trenchless 
CEQA: Johnson Marigot 

Contractor: TBD 
  

85



 
Photo: Existing air diffuser system 

  
Project Number: 19-19 
Project Name: WWTP – Aeration Basin 

Improvements 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Waggoner 

Status: Planning Installation for 2022 
Project Description: The Aeration Basins 4A & 4B need 

to have additional diffusers 
installed to ensure the proper air 
(oxygen) transfer into the 
wastewater to support the 
aerobic microorganisms in the 
basins.  

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$17,332 
Cumulative Spent: 
$17,332  

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$8,302 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits Required: N/A 

Challenges: Weather conditions and 
Scheduling 

Schedule: • Design is complete 
• Materials ordered and 

received  
• Construction anticipated for 

2022 
Consultants: N/A 

Contractor: N/A 
 

 

 
Photo: Existing Dilapidated Fence 

  
Project Number: 19-18 
Project Name: Perimeter Fencing 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: Design Phase 
Project Description: Install a new fence around the 

perimeter of the WWTP. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$200,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0  

FY Budget: 
$200,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits Required: California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND), Coastal 
Developmental Permit (CDP) 
Notification 

Challenges: Environmental Mitigations 

Schedule: • Design in FY22-23 
• Construction in FY23-24 

Consultants: Kennedy Jenks 

Contractor: TBD 
  

86



 
Photo: Gas Meter on North Side of River 

  
Project Number: 22-03 
Project Name: WWTP Gas and Water Main 

Replacement 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: In Study Phase 
Project Description: The WWTP natural gas and water 

utility service exists on the 
opposite side of the Carmel River 
from the WWTP. CAWD owns the 
piping under the river for these 
utilities. The water line and gas 
line are PVC and identified as 
having a high risk of failure. The 
gas line is needed for plant 
operations to provide 
supplementary heating to the 
digesters for thermophilic 
digestion. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$300,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0  

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: Cost Share w/ Collections @ 5.5% 

Permits Required: TBD 

Challenges: Underground work in riparian 
area 

Schedule: • Currently undergoing 
alternatives analysis study 

• Design in FY22-23 
• Construction in FY23-24 

Consultants: Kennedy Jenks 

Contractor: N/A 
 

 
Photo: Conceptual Rendering of Public Use and Bridge 

  
Project Number: 22-04 
Project Name: CAWD Bridge and Trail Project 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: Developing Presentation 
Materials 

Project Description: Construct a new bridge at the 
location of the existing CAWD 
bridge over the Carmel River. 
Bridge would be open for public 
use and would allow for new 
walking trails to connect the City 
of Carmel-by-the-Sea (Mission 
Trail) to the Regional Parks (Palo 
Corona). 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$550 
Cumulative Spent: 
$550  

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

**No budget. Funding potential via Carmel River 
Settlement grants. 
Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: State Parks, Catholic Diocese, City 
of Carmel-by-the-Sea, Regional 
Parks District 

Permits Required: TBD 

Challenges: Underground work in riparian 
area 

Schedule: Pending an application for grant 
funding. 

Consultants: TBD 

Contractor: TBD 

87



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reclamation Capital Project Summaries 
 

 

88



 
Photo: Existing totes used for Sulfuric Acid storage and 

Feed  
  
Project Number: 18-26 
Project Name: Sulfuric Acid & Citric Acid Storage 

& Feed Systems Project 
Project Location: Reclamation – Microfiltration 

(MF)/Reverse Osmosis (RO) 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: In Construction 
Project 
Description: 

Code compliance upgrades for 
existing acid chemical storage and 
feed system used by Reclamation 
for enhancing RO recovery. Project 
includes code compliant secondary 
containment and separation of 
dissimilar chemicals. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$438,743 
Cumulative Spent: 
$68,743 

FY Budget: 
$370,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation 
Share: 

100%  

Other Entities: Reclamation Project 
Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification 
Challenges: Hazardous Chemical Safety 
Schedule: Construction 2021/2022 
Consultants: Trussell Technologies, Inc 
Contractor: Monterey Peninsula Engineering 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Photo: Microfiltration SCADA Overview 

  
Project Number: 21-09 
Project Name: Reclamation Supervisory Control 

and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
Migration Project 

Project Location: Reclamation Plant 
Project Manager: Foley 
Status: In Progress 71% 
Project Description: Migration of reclamation legacy 

from RSView32 SCADA screens, 
alarms and trending to Ignition 
SCADA platform utilized by the 
treatment plant and collections 
pump stations. The legacy system 
software is no longer supported 
and poses a cybersecurity risk. It 
has been in service for 14+ years 
and the hardware is past its useful 
life. The new system will be more 
secure and installed on modern 
reliable hardware.  

Department: Reclamation 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$140,000 

Cumulative Spent: 
 
$99,075 

FY Budget: 
$140,000 

FY Spent: 
$30,827 

Reclamation Share: 100%  
Other Entities: Reclamation Project 
Permits Required: None 
Challenges: Structure of old Programming 
Schedule: Work started in December 2021 
Consultants: Frisch Engineering 

 

89



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Collections Capital Project Summaries 
 

 

 

90



 
Photo: View gravity pipe in Carmel easement  

  
Project Number: 19-03 
Project Name: Carmel Meadows Sewer 

Replacement  
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design / California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) 
Project 
Description: 

The project will replace 1,300 feet 
of Ductile Iron Pipe (DIP) on an 
aerial span and eight manholes by 
constructing a small pump station 
at the end of Mariposa Drive. This 
project is located on an easement 
parallel to Ribera Road and was 
originally installed in the early 
1960's. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$2,014,551 
Cumulative Spent: 
$468,541                 

FY Budget: 
$150,000 

FY Spent: 
$89,977 

Permits Required: Coastal Permit and Environmental 
Review 

Challenges: Redirecting the sewer to the pump 
station without requiring booster 
pumps for individual houses. 

Schedule: Design and Environmental Review 
completed by 6/28/22. 
Construction to begin FY22/23. 

Consultants: SRT Consultants, WRA         
Environmental 

Contractor: TBD 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  Photo: Looking at Pump Station Exterior 
  
Project Number: 20-07 
Project Name: Bay/Scenic Pump Station 

Rehabilitation 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design 
Project Description: Remodel the interior of the 

pump station and update 
SCADA panel to remove from 
areas prone to flooding. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$756,726 
Cumulative Spent: 
$30,892 

FY Budget: 
$250,000 

FY Spent: 
$21,031 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea, Coastal 

Commission 
Permits Required: Exemptions from CEQA & 

Coastal Commission 
Challenges: Traffic Control  
Schedule: Design 2021, Construct 2022, 

completed by 06-23 
Consultants: SRT 

Contractor: Pending 

  

91



 

Photo: Pipe Bursting Limits on Scenic 
  
Project Number: 20-08 
Project Name: Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting - 

Ocean to Bay 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design / CEQA 
Project Description: Replace approximately 

9,525 linear feet of existing 
6-inch clay pipe with a new 
8-inch High-Density 
Polyethylene (HDPE) and 
includes manhole 
rehabilitation. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$1,280,276 

Cumulative Spent: 
$187,223 

FY Budget: 
$1,200,000 

FY Spent: 
$81,125 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea, Coastal 

Commission 
Permits Required:  CEQA & Coastal 

Commission permit 
required. 

Challenges: Traffic control & poorly 
mapped underground 
utilities. Cultural Resources 
at southern end of project. 

Schedule: Design 2021-2022, 
Construct 2023, completed 
06-23 

Consultants: MNS, Rincon 

Contractor: Pending 

 

 

Photo: Sewer Line at Pescadero Creek 
  
Project Number: 21-05 
Project Name: Pescadero Creek Area Pipe 

Relocation 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design 
Project Description: Relocate damaged pipe from 

creek slope to roadway 
Department: Collections 
Financial: 
O&M 

Cumulative Budget: 
$1,700,000 

Cumulative Spent: 
$83,483 

FY Budget: 
$450,000  

FY Spent: 
$83,483 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: Environmental Review 

Challenges: Narrow road, depth of 
manhole, houses to be 
placed on individual pumps 

Schedule: Start design, public outreach, 
& Environmental in Winter 
2022/23. 

Consultants: MNS, Denise Duffy 

Contractor: TBD 

  

92



 

Photo: LT Capital Schedule 
  
Project Number: 20-06 
Project Name: Collections 15 -Year CIP 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Work in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

Utilize updated sewer line 
inspection information and flow 
modeling to develop a 20-year 
Construction Improvement Plan  

Department: Collections 
Projection of 
Total Capital 
Costs-15-Yr 
$63M 

Construction 
Costs: $63M 

Administration 
Costs: $10M (20% 
engineering, legal, 
admin.) 

Financial: Cumulative 
15YR Budget: 
EST $63M 

Cumulative Spent: 
 
N/A 

FY Budget: 
N/A 

FY Spent: 
N/A 

Reclamation 
Share: 

 
0% 

Other Entities: River Watch-see project #20-05 
Permits Required: none 
Challenges: Need all pipeline CCTV results to be 

completed to develop plan.  
Schedule: 2020 - 2040 
Consultants: West Yost 

Contractor: N/A 

 

 

 

 

93



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Collections Non-Capital Project Summaries 

 

94



 

Photo: River Watch logo 
  
Project Number: 20-05 
Project Name: River Watch Agreement 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Work in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

Work with Collections to provide 
data that is needed to satisfy the 
milestones in the agreement with 
River Watch. As of May 2022, staff 
has completed all of the 1,478 
District manholes for the FY.  

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

N/A 
Cumulative Spent: 
N/A 

FY Budget: 
N/A 

FY Spent: 
N/A 

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other Entities: River Watch 
Permits 
Required: 

none 

Challenges: Closed caption television (CCTV) 
scheduling deadlines. The Board 
agreed to increase staffing by one 
full time equivalent (FTE) to assist in 
meeting the required schedule. 
Received 1 yr. extension from River 
Watch due to COVID-19. 

Schedule: Due date June 2023 
Consultants:  

Contractor: N/A 

 

 

Photo: Manhole Inspection Map 
  
Project Number: 22-02 
Project Name: 2022 Manhole Frame & Lid 

Replacement at Various 
Locations 

Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Construction Completed 
Project Description: Remove and replace 29 

frames, rings and lids at 
various locations 

Department: Collections 
Financial: 
O&M 

Cumulative 
Budget: 
$205,000  

Cumulative Spent: 
 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$205,000 
 

FY Spent: 
$48,900 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: none 

Challenges: Traffic control  
Schedule: Completed June 2022. 
Consultants: none 

Contractor: Coastal Paving & Excavating 

 

  

95



 

Photo: Manhole Inspection Map 
  
Project Number: 21-06 
Project Name: Manhole Rehabilitation 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: On Hold Till Next FY22-23 
Project Description: Line Manholes with a 

solvent-free rigid 
polyurethane material that 
seals surface and provides 
structural integrity & to 
prevent inflow/infiltration 

Department: Collections 
Financial: 
O&M 

Cumulative Budget: 
$150,000/year 

Cumulative Spent: 
$0 

22/23 FY Budget: 
$362,300 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: none 

Challenges: Traffic control  
Schedule: Complete by 06-23 
Consultants: none 

Contractor: TBD 

 
 

 
 

Photo: Sewer Line Repair 
  
Project Number: 21-02 
Project Name: 2021 Pipeline Spot Repairs 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Notice of Completion in April  
Project 
Description: 

Repairs to damaged sections of pipe 
at various locations throughout the 
District as noted in sewer video 
inspections. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: 
O&M 

Cumulative Budget: 
$150,000 (FY21-22) 

Cumulative Spent: 
$134,400 

FY Budget: 
$150,000 (FY21-22) 

FY Spent: 
$133,855 

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: City Encroachment 

Challenges: Traffic control in area of town, 
depth of repair. 

Schedule: Start date January 5, 2022.  
Completed on April 8, 2022.  

Consultants: Pacific Engineering, geotechnical 

Contractor: Rooter King & Pacific Crest 
Engineering 

 

 

 

96



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment Districts/Annexations 

 

97



 
Photo: Areas of Potential Annexation  

  
Project Number: 19-09 
Project Name: 2020 Sphere of Influence (SOI) 

Amendment & Annexation 
Proposal 

Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In process of obtaining Coastal 

Development Permit Amendment 
for annexations in Coastal Zone 

Project 
Description: 

The project will provide access for 
homes and businesses currently on 
septic systems and add 350 new 
connections to the District at build-
out.  

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$105,000 (55K+50K) 
Cumulative Spent: 
$73,675 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$17,230 

** No Budget included for Annexation b/c costs will be 
recouped through annexation fees. 
Permits 
Required: 

Environmental Review, Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCO) 
Annexation Approval 

Challenges:  

Schedule:  Waiting for State Board of 
Equalization 

Consultant: Denise Duffy & Associates 
 

 
Photo: Areas of Potential Annexation 

  
Project Number: 18-21 

Project Name: Corona Road Sewer Assessment 
District 

Project Location: Collection System 

Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In process of completing an 

Assessment Engineer’s report, Coastal 
Permit application and environmental 
documents. 

Project 
Description: 

The project will provide sewer facilities 
to the Corona Road neighborhood and 
parcels on the west side of Highway 1, 
across from Corona Road. #18-21 
Corona Road (Deferred Revenue”**) 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$0 
Cumulative Spent: 
$ 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$ 

** No Budget included for project because the initial costs 
were funded by Corona Road residents. 

Permits 
Required: 

Coastal Permit, CalTrans Encroachment 
permit, Environmental Review 

Challenges: Assessment District process/approval 
and obtaining easements for pump 
station. Funds from homeowners in 
the amount of $67K have been 
received by CAWD. 

Schedule: Complete studies July/August 2022, 
Assessment District proceeding 
September 

Consultant: Denise Duffy & Associates and 
Monterey Bay Engineers 

  

98



 

Photo: Entrance to Carmel Valley Manor 
  
Project Number: 19-08 
Project Name: Carmel Valley Manor Pipeline and 

Pump Station 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Re-Design by Property Owner in 

Progress             
Project 
Description: 

Sewer extension project to be 
completed by the owners of Carmel 
Valley Manor to connect to CAWD’s 
sewer system. Riley Ranch, #19-08 
Carmel Valley Manor (Deferred 
Revenue) 

Department: Collections 
Financial: this is an 
unbudgeted item- 
under repayment 
agreement (no 
funds received) 

Cumulative 
Budget: 
$0 

Cumulative  
Spent: 
$180 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$180 

Other Entities: The prospect of a pipeline has given 
rise to a plethora of potential 
additional connections 

Permits Required: County Encroachment Permit, 
Environmental Review completed.  

Challenges: Funding, Repayment Agreement, 
easement agreements LAFCO 
annexation 

Schedule: Approved without protest at 
3/22/21 LAFCO hearing. 

Consultants: MNS and Rincon are working for 
Carmel Valley Manor to permit and 
design the project. 

Contractor: N/A 

 

99



 

 

 

 

 

 

Other Non-Capital Project Summaries 

 

 

100



 

            ADP Workforce Now 

Photo: ADP Clip Art 
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Workforce Now 
Project Location: All Supervisor Locations 

Project Manager: Foley 
Status: Implementation 
Project 
Description: 

Implementation of a 
comprehensive Human Resource 
(HR) software database for all 
supervisors and employees to 
utilize. Modules provide employee 
development tracking, benefits 
administration, custom 
performance review templates, and 
employee goal management. 

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$0 
Cumulative Spent: 
$2,520 (annual fee) 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$2,520 (annual fee) 

Challenges: Technical issues need to be 
resolved & employee training  

Schedule: Anticipate implementation in the 
Summer 2022 

Consultants: ADP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Photo: Handshake 

  
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Employee Contract Negotiations 

Project Location: Administration 
Project Manager: Barbara Buikema 
Status: In Progress 
Project 
Description: 

Bi-annual negotiations with 
Employee Groups  

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$0 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Schedule: Requesting ratification of 
employee MOU in the June 30 
board meeting 

Consultants: None  
 

 

 

 

 

  

101

https://youtu.be/0_dJBfrta9g


 
 

 

Photo: Real Estate Clip Art 

  
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Real Property Investigation 
Project Location: Carmel Valley 
Project Manager: Barbara Buikema 
Status: Evaluation in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

An investigation of a possible new 
treatment facility site in the mouth 
of the Carmel Valley, which is in 
response to the Coastal Commission 
requirement to move facilities 
within 30 years. 

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$75,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$75,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Permits Required: None – at this time 

Challenges: Limited land possibilities, regulatory 
hurdles, and zoning 

Schedule: 12 months 
Consultants: Mahoney & Associates 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Photo: Cyber Security Clip Art 

  
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Cyber Security 
Project Location: District-wide 
Project Manager: Chris Foley 
Status: Ongoing 
Project Description: Internal Cyber Security 

Incident Response Team 
(CSIRT) formed, and they are 
working on a response plan & 
training. The upgrades to 
email filtering system have 
been completed. Stricter 
geofencing policies have been 
put in place, and a cold backup 
system that is sandboxed from 
the network was 
installed March 2022.  

Department: All 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$17,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$17,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Challenges: Ongoing training & the need 
for continual upgrades as skills 
of hackers grow. 

Schedule: Continually updating 
Consultant: Exceedio 

 

 

 

  

102



 

 
Photo: Six Sigma Clip Art 

  
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Lean Six Sigma 

Project Location: Management staff 
Project Manager: Barbara Buikema 
Status: Green Belt Level Training & 

Certification 
Project 
Description: 

Currently all managers have been 
assigned the task of earning a 
Green Belt certification.  A couple 
of staff members will be moving on 
to the Black Belt self-study course. 
Also, will investigate an in-person 
trainer for the implementation of a 
specific agreed upon project. 

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$0 
Cumulative Spent: 
$2,000 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$2,000 

Permits Required: None 
Challenges: Implementation phase 
Schedule: Ongoing 
Consultants: Self-study online 
Trainer: To be determined 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo: California coastline  
  
Project Number: 22-01 
Project Name: Long-Term Sea Level Rise Planning 

Project Location: Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Barbara Buikema/Patrick Treanor 
Status: In Progress 
Project 
Description: 

As conditions of Coastal Permit #3-
82-199-A8 - the District submitted 
its Long-Term Coastal Hazards Plan 
on 03-03-22.  Bringing a 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Alternatives Planning Assistance 
consultant services contract to the 
Board in May 2022.   

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$1,400,00 
Cumulative Spent: 
$ 0 

FY Budget: 
$250,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Permits Required: In response to California Coastal 
Commission 

Challenges: Establishing focus on long term 
objectives and committing to follow 
through items. 

Schedule: WWTP Relocation Alternatives on 
May 2022 agenda 

Consultants: Greeley & Hansen 

 

 

 

 

 

103



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From: Ed Waggoner, Operations Superintendent                                             
 
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Monthly Operations Report – May 2022 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required. 
 
DISCUSSION  

Plant Operation 
Treatment Plant: 

• The treatment plant operations staff continued finishing projects and concentrating 
on Preventative Maintenance Work Orders during the month of May. This included 
the implementation of the Operations Flood Preparation Standard Operating 
Procedures from the Plant Engineer. 

• (Project #18-05) Programmable Logic Controller/Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition (PLC/SCADA)- Operations staff has been meeting and working with 
Maintenance and Frisch Engineering on the upgrades and programming of the 
PLC/SCADA System.  

 
Reclamation: 

• Staff continued preventative maintenance work on pumps, motors, and any 
equipment that needed maintenance for the Microfiltration and Reverse Osmosis 
Systems.  

• Staff completed Clean-in-Place (CIP) cleans on Microfiltration (MF) Cells 1, 2 and 
3. All cells cleaned successfully with Trans Membrane Pressures (TMPs) pressures 
ranging between 1.8 to 6.5 pounds per square inch (psi).  

• May 9th staff shut down the Microfiltration (MF) and Reverse Osmosis (RO) System 
due to lack of Ammonium Hydroxide for Chloramine Disinfection flow before the 
MF/RO systems. The MF/RO systems cannot have free chlorine in the water as free 
chlorine can damage the MF Modules and RO Membranes to the point of failure. 
The vendor supplying the Ammonium Hydroxide did not have enough chemical 
delivery drivers for delivery on the requested date. The vendor rescheduled the 
delivery date twice and the second delay caused the storage tank at the treatment 
facility to empty causing the shut-down. 

• May 10th staff received Ammonium Hydroxide and restarted the MF/RO systems. 
Staff experienced some start up issues that caused a permit violation of Waste 
Discharge Permit #93-72. See the District attached letter to the Central Coast 
Regional Board explaining details of the events causing the permit violation. 

 

 
 

104



 
Training: 

• May 18th the Operations Superintendent attended an Operation Certification 
Information Training offered by the Monterey Bay Water Works Association on 
updated Certification Regulations for the State of California.  

• Staff continues to complete online training at the treatment facility from Target 
Solutions as Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) implements its new safety 
policies for the Exposure Control Plan updates for the COVID-19 virus. 

• Staff continues to participate in scheduled tailgate safety meetings in the digester 
building conference room.  
 

Capital Improvement:  
• Staff continues working with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor, on Project #18-01, the 

Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project 
for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower Building, 
Chlorination/Dechlorination Building, Effluent Building, Digester No. 1, Digester 
No. 1 Control Building and Dewatering Building. 

 
Meetings Attended 

• May 11, 2022, conference call with Peter VonLangen of the Central Coast Regional 
Board on Permit #93-72 violation of Chlorine Residual below 5 mg/L while sending 
water to the Forest Lake Reservoir.  

• May 19, 2022, Operations staff attended a conference call with Trussell 
Technologies on reviewing the operational performance of the Microfiltration and 
Reverse Osmosis Systems. 

• May 27th in-house management meeting to review upcoming Safety Culture 
Survey. 

• (Project #18-01) A Teams Meeting on the construction progress of the 
Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 
Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower 
Building, Chlorination/Dechlorination Building, Effluent Building, Digester No. 1, 
Digester No. 1 Control Building and Dewatering Building. 

  
Discharge Permit Violations 

• There were no Reclamation Permit 93-72 discharge violations for the month of 
April 2022. 

• There were no violations of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 within the month of April 
2022.  

 
FUNDING 
N/A-Informational item only 
Attached: District letter Central Coast Regional Board 
 

105



106



107



108



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 
 
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Monthly Maintenance Report – May 2022 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Maintenance Projects in Progress/Completed 
 

• Maintenance Department is auditing the list of instrument devices such as flow 
meters, level controllers, and pressure transmitters. The updated list will be 
valuable for planning replacements and expanding the predictive maintenance 
program. Currently staff performs electronic verification on permit instruments. The 
plan is to expand this to all instruments once per year to better predict failures and 
replace instruments before they fail. Greg Ange, Maintenance Mechanic II. is the 
lead on this project.  
 

• (Project 21-09) Work is continuing on the reclamation Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition (SCADA) project with Frisch engineering. Draft screens have been 
completed for the tertiary and microfiltration/reverse osmosis common equipment. 
Staff is currently performing a cross reference on the alarms from the old system to 
the new SCADA system.  

 
• Bryan Mailey Electric, Inc. has been identifying and removing old wiring in the 

Chlorination/Dechlorination building. The goal is to identify any unknown devices 
so the cutover to the new electrical panels, as part of the electrical mechanical 
rehabilitation project, goes smoothly with minimal wiring corrections.  

 
 
 
 

  

109



 
Upcoming Maintenance Projects 

 
• The welding for the new microturbine gas compressor is completed. Staff is working 

on the startup date with gas compressor vendor.  
 

• Staff has requested bids to replace the reverse osmosis train flow meters and 
microfiltration flow meter. These flow meters are critical and showing signs of their 
age.   
 

• The annual preventative maintenance for the exhaust fans and air conditioning 
equipment is scheduled for July. Staff is updating the list since some of the 
equipment has been removed or changed as part of the electrical mechanical 
rehabilitation project.  

 
Staff Development 
 

• Interviews for the Collections/Maintenance Utility Worker have been completed. 
Staff selected a candidate and made a job offer and the background and physical are 
in progress.  
 

• The Computerized Maintenance Management System Coordinator (CMMS) Karla 
Cristi retired from the District. Her official last day was June 3rd. Karla’s amazing 
work ethic, attention to detail and overall knowledge and skills will be greatly  
missed at the District.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

110



 
 
 
 

Work Order Metrics 
Preventive Maintenance       
         
Total Work Orders Generated    401  
Total Work Orders Closed/Done    381  
Total Work Orders Still Open    20  
Percentage of Work Orders Completed    95.01%  
         
Corrective Maintenance        
 

          
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
   Emergency 7     
   Critical  7     
   Urgent 15     
   Routine 7     
   Projects 3     

 
 

 
 
 
FUNDING 
N/A- Informational item only 

111



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 

Date:  June 30, 2022 
 

Subject:          General Engineering  
   
RECOMMENDATION 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required. 
 
DISCUSSION 
This report is provided to update the Board of the Carmel Area Wastewater District 
(District) on current engineering activities during the month of May 2022. 
 
General Engineering 
 
The Principal Engineer continues to work on projects related to the 2021 Annexation, 
including Yankee Point, Carmel Valley Manor and Corona Road.  The Corona Road project 
engineer, Monterey Bay Engineers, Inc., has completed surveying the project site and the 
environmental/permitting process has begun. The engineer is also moving forward with 
updating the draft assessment engineer’s report per the suggestions given by the bond 
counsel, Jones Hall, and has been developing easement documents for the project.   
 
Carmel Valley Manor (CVM) is continuing to work on their project to connect to the 
District and have delayed their project in order to work with Cañada Woods to utilize 
another pipeline alignment that will benefit the District and CVM. It is our understanding 
that they plan to start construction in September 2022. The engineer has not received a 
completed Sewer Installation Agreement from CVM. 
 
The District has contacted the September Ranch developer, Mark Abrahams, CEO of the 
Carmel Reserve LLC because we were informed that they are bidding the construction of 
the subdivision. Mr. Abrahams was unaware that they need to complete a Sewer 
Installation Agreement with the District and was provided a copy of a draft agreement.  In 
addition, the Rancho Cañada Village development was provided a copy of the draft Sewer 
Installation Agreement. 
 
FUNDING 
N/A- Informational item only 

  

112



Resolutions 

113



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Project # 19-03 Carmel Meadows Lift Station and Sewer Replacement 

Project (proposed project) Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative 
Declaration Adoption pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) 

 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Review and consider the attached Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(IS/MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the Carmel 
Meadows Lift Station and Sewer Replacement Project; 

2. Find that based on the IS/MND and the public review that there is no substantial 
evidence that the project will have a significant effect on the environment and that 
the mitigated negative declaration reflects the District’s independent judgment 
and analysis;   

3. Adopt the IS/MND pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines; 

4. Adopt the accompanying MMRP; and  
5. Adopt the Resolution to Approve the project and adopt the IS/MND. 

 
DISCUSSION  
 
The project is located in the Carmel Meadows Subdivision in Monterey County. The 
project would replace the existing sewer system serving the odd number houses located 
at 2795 to 2955 Ribera Road. The project would include installation of a below grade 
sewage lift station, replacement of two sections of existing 6-inch vitrified clay pipe with 
8-inch high-density polyethylene pipe, installation of a new sewer, installation of four 
new residential scale grinder pumps, rehabilitation of approximately 400 feet of existing 
sewer line, and removal of above-ground sections of the existing collector line.  

 

 

114



The new sewer line would convey flow to the new sewage lift station on the plateau. The 
lift station would be higher up the slope, closer to the houses, and away from the Carmel 
River Lagoon. The project would remove potential environmental risk to the estuary 
while upgrading the sewer facilities. 

 
At the March 31, 2022 Board meeting, the Board of Directors was presented with the Draft 
IS/MND for the Carmel Meadows Lift Station and Sewer Replacement Project. Before the 
meeting, public notifications were published, and county and state filings were submitted 
as required by CEQA. The formal public comment period of 30 days commenced on April 
16, 2022 and was completed on May 16, 2022. Three comment letters were received during 
the public comment period. Two comment letters were from Monterey County Housing 
and Community Development. One comment letter was from a public member. 
Responses to comments can be viewed in the Final IS/MND. 
 
The Final IS/MND is attached for the Board review to facilitate adopting a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration for the project in accordance with Section 15074 of CEQA 
Guidelines. A MMRP is included in the IS/MND and is also attached. The MMRP 
summarizes the mitigation measures that must be adopted by the Board in accordance 
with Section 15074 of CEQA Guidelines.     
 
 
FUNDING 
 
The project costs of  $1,760,000, are included in the FY 21-22 budget for $200K and carry 
forward of $1.5M in the FY 22-23 Budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:  Resolution No. 2022-27 
   Final IS/MND (under separate cover) 
   MMRP (under separate cover) 
    

115



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-27   
 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT AN INITIAL STUDY/MITIGATED NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION (IS/MND) AND; THE MITIGATION MONITORING & REPORTING 
PROGRAM (MMRP) FOR THE CARMEL MEADOWS LIFT STATION AND SEWER 

REPLACEMENT PROJECT- #19-03 

-oOo- 
 

WHEREAS, the Carmel Area Wastewater District ("District") desires to adopt the 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration ("IS/MND") and Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program (MMRP) for the Carmel Meadows Lift Station and Sewer 
Replacement Project (the "Project"), which is on file with the District Secretary to the 
Board and incorporated herein by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the § 15074 California Environmental Quality Act 
("CEQA"), the IS/MND was prepared for this Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Project consists of replacement of the existing sewer system 
serving the odd number houses located at 2795 to 2955 Ribera Road. Project elements 
include the following: installation of a below grade sewage lift station, replacement of 
two sections of existing 6-inch vitrified clay pipe with 8-inch high-density polyethylene 
pipe, installation of a new sewer, installation of four new residential scale grinder pumps, 
rehabilitation of approximately 400 feet of existing sewer line, and removal of 
above-ground sections of the existing collector line. 

WHEREAS, upon completion of the IS/MND, the District, as the Lead Agency, 
prepared and filed a Notice of Completion ("NOC") with the State Clearinghouse Office 
of Planning and Research ("SCH OPR"), for distribution to public agencies and interested 
parties for a public review period, commencing on April 16, 2022, and ending on May 16, 
2022; and 

WHEREAS, copies of the IS/MND were provided to all responsible agencies, and 
copies were also made available at the County of Monterey Office of the County Clerk; 
and 

 

116



WHEREAS, the District published a Notice of Intent to Adopt an IS/MND in the 
local newspaper and posted a copy of the notice and IS-MND document at the Monterey 
County Clerk’s Office, and at the District Office; and, online on the District’s website; and 

 WHEREAS, during the public review period, the District received three (3) 
written comment letters on the IS/MND; and 

WHEREAS, the IS/MND identifies potentially significant impacts to the 
environment, including but not limited to specific impacts to biological resources, 
cultural and tribal cultural resources, geology and soils, and noise, which impacts can 
and will be avoided or mitigated to less than significant levels through adoption and 
implementation of the mitigation measures proposed as part of the Project, the IS/MND 
and MMRP. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors makes the following 
findings as required by CEQA with respect to the proposed Project: 

 
A. That the IS/MND was prepared in accordance with all legal requirements of 

CEQA, including all public notice and comment period requirements; 
B. That the Board of Directors has considered the IS/MND and the opportunity to 

comment within the public comment period, as well as the opportunity to 
comment after the public comment period and prior to the date of this 
Resolution; 

C. That the IS/MND identified all potentially significant environmental impacts 
of the Project, including but not limited to specific potentially significant 
impacts to biological resources, cultural and tribal cultural resources, 
paleontological resources, and noise, which impacts can and will be avoided 
or mitigated to less than significant levels through adoption and 
implementation of the mitigation measures proposed as part of the Project, 
IS/MND, and MMRP; 

D. That the IS/MND reflects the District's independent judgment and analysis; 
E. That there is no substantial evidence in the record that the Project, as mitigated, 

will have a significant negative effect on the environment; 
F. That the administrative record is located in Carmel Area Wastewater District 

Office, at 3945 Rio Road, Carmel, California 93923; and 
 

117



G. That the Board Secretary is designated as the location and custodian of the 
documents and other material constituting the record of proceedings upon 
which this decision is based. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District, based upon all of the oral and documentary 
evidence in the record, as follows: 

1. That the IS/MND and the MMRP for the Project is adopted; and 
2. That the District Board hereby approves the Carmel Meadows Lift Station and 

Sewer Replacement Project as described in the IS/MND. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area Wastewater 
District on June 30, 2022 by the following vote: 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:   BOARD MEMBERS: 
        
    ______________________________ 

       Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 

 
__________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

 

 
 

118



STAFF REPORT 
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Board of Directors  

Barbara Buikema, GM 

June 30, 2022 

Authorizing Continued Remote 
Teleconference Meetings Through July 30, 2022 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors proclaim a local emergency and authorize 
remote teleconference meetings for the period July 1 through July 30, 2022. 

DISCUSSION 

Since March 2020, Governor Newsom has issued a series of Executive Orders (N-25-20, 
N-29-20, N-35-20) declaring the State of California has been under a State of Emergency
aimed at containing COVID-19.  The Executive Orders modified certain requirements
created by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Brown Act) or the state’s local agency public
meetings law. The District has been successfully operating under these conditions since
they went into effect.

On June 11, 2021, the Governor issued Executive Order N-08-21 which rescinds the 
modifications made to the Brown Act effective September 30, 2021. After that date, 
agencies are required to observe all the usual Brown Act requirements as they existed 
prior to issuance of the orders.   

However, after discussions with the California Special District’s Association (CSDA), the 
Governor’s office, and other stakeholders, the Governor’s office modified its approach 
and Assembly Bill (AB) 361 was introduced in February 2021 and provides local agencies 
with the ability to meet remotely during proclaimed state emergencies under modified 
Brown Act requirements, similar in many ways to the rules and procedures established 
by the Governor’s Executive Orders. Specifically, AB 361 suspends the requirements 
located in Government Code, section 54953. In short this means that during a state of 
emergency, under specified circumstances, local agencies can meet pursuant to modified 
Brown Act requirements. 

119



AB 361 extends public meeting teleconferencing until January 1, 2024. With the Omicron 
variant leading to a rise of cases in California, it allows local governments to continue to 
conduct virtual meetings as long as there is a state proclaimed state of emergency, but it 
will not be quite as flexible as it had been under the Executive Order.  It requires local 
officials to find that meeting in person would present an imminent safety risk to 
attendees. The key difference between Executive Order N-29-20 and AB 361 is that AB 
361 requires a public comment period where the public can address the legislative body 
directly. It prohibits the board from limiting public comments only to those submitted in 
advance and specifies that the board must provide an opportunity for the public to 
comment in real time. 
 
Local governments must reconsider the exemption every 30 days to ensure that the state 
of emergency proceeds and that local circumstances maintain that a health/safety risk 
exists. Essentially, the continued exemption of the Brown Act is dependent on when the 
State COVID-19 state of emergency ends. Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) has 
been open to the public for several months with a type of hybrid whereby the Board and 
legal counsel are in the board room and some staff members are remote.   
 
Staff is asking the board to approve continuance of open in-person meetings for the Board 
and referral of the public to the ZOOM link. Please note that we have also found some 
participants prefer to use ZOOM rather than making the trip to our offices – it is very 
convenient to sign on from home. We may find that we continue offering ZOOM 
meetings well after the pandemic disappears to accommodate customers who desire to 
participate virtually. 
 
Finally, the requirement is month-to-month renewal of the resolution. We will bring this 
item back to the Board monthly as long as the State of Emergency remains in force.  
 
 
FUNDING – No Impact 

120



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-28 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CARMEL AREA 
WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD), PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY, 

RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY 
GOVERNOR’S ORDER #N-25-20 DATED MARCH 4, 2020, AND AUTHORIZING 
REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF 
CAWD FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1 THROUGH JULY 30, 2022, PURSUANT TO 

BROWN ACT PROVISIONS. 
 

WHEREAS, the Carmel Area Wastewater District (District) is committed to 
preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of 
Directors; and  
 

WHEREAS, all meetings of Carmel Area Wastewater District’s legislative bodies 
are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 
54963), so that any member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the District’s 
legislative bodies conduct their business; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provisions 
for remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, 
without compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), 
subject to the existence of certain conditions; and 
 

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the 
Governor pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of 
conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the 
state caused by conditions as described in Government Code section 8558; and  
 

WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of 
disaster, or extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions 
that are within the District’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological, or human-
caused disasters; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing, or, the legislative body meeting in 
person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and  
 

WHEREAS, such conditions now exist in the District, specifically, a State of 
Emergency has been proclaimed – Governor’s order #N-25-20 dated March 4, 2020; and 

121



 
WHEREAS, a State of Emergency exists in California due to the threat of COVID-

19 and despite sustained efforts, the virus remains a threat, and further efforts to control 
the spread of the virus to reduce and minimize the risk of infection are needed; and   
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that due to threat from the 
COVID-19 virus, and, California Occupational Safety & Health Administration  
(Cal/OSHA) COVID-19 Prevention Standards, AND, the District’s written COVID-19 
Prevention Policy has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety 
of persons within the District that are likely to be beyond the control of services, 
personnel, equipment, and facilities of the District, and desires to proclaim a local 
emergency and ratify the proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor of the State 
of California; and 
 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency, the Board of Directors does 
hereby find that the legislative bodies of Carmel Area Wastewater District shall conduct 
their meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government 
Code section 54953, as authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such 
legislative bodies shall comply with the requirements to provide the public with access 
to the meetings as prescribed in paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and   
 

WHEREAS, the District is holding public meetings but requires the public to use 
ZOOM for access.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF CARMEL AREA 
WASTEWATER DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated 
into this Resolution by this reference. 
 
Section 2. Proclamation of Local Emergency. The Board hereby proclaims that a local 
emergency now exists throughout the District, and meeting in person with members of 
the public or staff would present a risk of infection to all present in a meeting.  
 
Section 3. Ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The Board 
hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of State of 
Emergency, effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020. 
 
 
 

122



Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager and legislative body of 
the Carmel Area Wastewater District are hereby authorized and directed to take all 
actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this resolution including, 
conducting open and public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 
54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
its adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of July 30, 2022, or such time the Board 
of Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code section 
54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the legislative bodies of Carmel Area 
Wastewater District may continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph 
(3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Carmel Area Wastewater 
District, this day of June 30, 2022, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:  

ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: 

 
 
     ______________________________ 
     Ken White, President of the Board 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

123



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Certification of Compliance with State Law with Respect to the Levying of 

General and Special Taxes, Assessments and Property Related Fees and 
Charges for FY 2022-23 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution Certifying Compliance 
with State Law with Respect to the Levying of General and Special Taxes, Assessments, 
and Property Related Fees and Charges. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
District user fees are collected using the Monterey County (County) tax rolls, and in order 
to ensure that the provisions of Proposition 218 are being addressed by the District, the 
Monterey County Auditor requires certification of compliance with the Proposition, 
including a hold harmless and indemnification provision for administrative expenses to the 
County associated with collection of user fees.  This certification is required each year on or 
before August 1, before the processing of the secured tax roll bills for the coming fiscal 
year. 
 
 
FINANCIAL 
 
None 
 
 
 
 

  

124



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-29 
 
 

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAW WITH RESPECT  
TO THE LEVYING OF GENERAL AND SPECIAL TAXES, ASSESSMENTS AND 

PROPERTY RELATED FEES AND CHARGES 
 

-oOo- 
 
 WHEREAS, the Carmel Area Wastewater District (“Public Agency”) requests 

that the Monterey County Auditor-Controller enter those general or special taxes, 

assessments, or property related Fees or Charges identified in Exhibit “A” on the tax 

roll for collection and distribution by the Monterey County Treasurer-Tax Collector 

commencing with the property tax bills for fiscal year 2022-23. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 

 

1. The Public Agency hereby certifies that it has, without limitation, 

complied with all legal procedures and requirements necessary for the 

levying and imposition of the general or special taxes, assessments, or 

property-related fees or charges identified in Exhibit “A,” regardless of 

whether those procedures and requirements are set forth in the Constitution 

of the State of California, in State statutes, or in the applicable decisional law 

of the State of California. 

2. The Public Agency further certifies that, except for the sole negligence or 

misconduct of the County of Monterey, its officers, employees and agents, the 

Public Agency shall be solely liable and responsible for defending, at its sole 

expense, cost and risk, each and every action, suit or other proceeding 

brought against the County of Monterey, its officers, employees and agents 

for every claim,  

125



demand or challenge to the levying or imposition of the general or special 

taxes, assessments, or property related fees or charges identified in Exhibit 

“A” and that it shall pay or satisfy any judgment rendered against the County 

of Monterey, its officers, employees and agents on every such action, suit or 

other proceeding, including all claims for refunds and interest thereon, legal 

fees and court costs and administrative expenses of the County of Monterey 

to correct the tax rolls. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District at a regular meeting duly held on June 30, 2022, by the following 

vote: 

 
 AYES:     BOARD MEMBERS: 

 NOES:     BOARD MEMBERS: 

 ABSENT:   BOARD MEMBERS: 
       

ABSTAIN:   BOARD MEMBERS:   
 
  

_______________________________ 
 Ken White, President of the Board 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 

126



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
TO 

RESOLUTION CERTIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAW WITH RESPECT 
TO THE LEVYING OF GENERAL AND SPECIAL TAXES, ASSESSMENTS, AND 

PROPERTY RELATED FEES AND CHARGES 
 

FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 
 
 
GENERAL TAXES: None 
 
 
SPECIAL TAXES: None 
 
 
ASSESSMENTS: None 
 
 
FEES OR CHARGES: 
 

1. Levied as an incident of property ownership: Sewer service user charges and 
sewer connection fees. 
 

2. Other:  None 
 

127



Staff Report 
 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
     
Subject: 2022-23 Property Tax Appropriations Limit 
 
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board adopt a resolution determining the fiscal year 2022-23 tax 
proceeds appropriation limit to be $2,673,977 based on the California Per Capita Income 
factor and the County of Monterey Population factor. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Article XIII B of the California Constitution specifies that appropriations made by state and 
local governments may increase annually by a factor composed of the change in population 
combined with either the change in California per capita personal income or the change in 
the local assessment roll due to local nonresidential construction. Proposition 111 now 
requires a recorded vote of the Board regarding which of the annual adjustment factors 
have been selected each year. Pursuant to Government Code Section 37200, the 
Appropriations Limit (Limit) and the total Appropriations Subject to Limitation must be 
published in the annual budget. The adoption must be done at a regular meeting or noticed 
via a special meeting. The documentation used to compute the Limit must be available to 
the public at least 15 days prior to the meeting. Once adopted, the public has 45 days to 
initiate judicial action regarding the Limit. An information form must be submitted to the 
State Controller’s Office no later than 90 days after the start of each fiscal year. 
 
Property taxes received may be reduced by qualified capital outlay with a useful life of 10 
years and a value of at least $100,000. 
 
 
 

  

128



Data received from the State of California for purposes of computation follows: 
 California per capita personal income change for 2022-23               7.55% 
 Population changes for Monterey County 1-1-21 to 1-1-22 

Carmel-by-the-Sea   -1.74% 
Unincorporated   -1.32% 

 Change in local assessment role for nonresidential construction Not available. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The attached schedule shows that the District is in compliance with the appropriation limit 
for the 2022-23 fiscal year.  

129



130



131



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-30 
 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 
TAX PROCEEDS APPROPRIATION LIMITATION FOR THE 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 
 

-oOo- 

 WHEREAS, Article XIII-B of the California Constitution provides that there shall 

be specified appropriations limits for each entity of local government, with permitted 

annual adjustments of same; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code §37200 the appropriations limit and 

the total appropriations subject to limitation must be published in the annual budget. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District (District) that, on the basis of appropriation limit calculations 

which are on file and available in the office of the Secretary of the District, and which 

include the selected annual adjustment factors of a) the state per capita personal income 

change and b) the Monterey County population change, the District hereby determines 

the maximum limit applicable to the appropriation of tax proceeds, other than for debt 

service, by the District for the fiscal year 2022-23, to be the sum of $2,673.977. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on June 30, 2022, by the following vote: 

 AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

 ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: 

 ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: 

       _________________________________ 
       Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 
 

132



Staff Report 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: 2022-23 Budget   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the adoption of 
the Carmel Area Wastewater District’s (District) Annual Budget for the fiscal year 2022-23. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
A Preliminary Budget was presented to the Board at its March 31, 2022, meeting.  The 
preliminary draft was the basis for the Prop 218 Notice that was mailed to the owners of all 
parcels of record that receive service in the District in early May.   
 
For a summary of the budget you are directed to Volume 1 sections Budget Message and 
Budget in Brief.  The information presented there reviews the changes that occurred during 
the current year and the plan for the upcoming year. 
 
There were  several relatively minor changes that were uncovered subsequent to the review 
of the Preliminary Budget, primarily where the “Comments” did not match the budget 
number.  There was an additional change to the Local Agency Formation Commission 
(LAFCO) line item after receipt of the invoice for the 2022-23 budget. 
 
The more significant change is the inclusion of a “Contingency” account for each 
department.  During the Budget Committee discussions, staff was directed to establish all 
budget amounts based on current knowledge.  Any increases after the budget were to be 
directed to the “Contingency” line, which included not only goods but services.  In the three 
months since the approval of the Preliminary Budget we have witnessed increases across the 
board; from chemicals costs to janitorial services, from equipment purchases to landscaping 
services.  In the current inflationary environment, everything is increasing and furthermore 
some of the price increases are double digit.  The “Contingency” line item was budgeted at 
$500,000 and was included in the Rate Model calculations.   
 
As per the Board request, attached is a recap of changes made to the Preliminary Budget. 

  

133



FUNDING 
 
Summary of changes from 2022-23 Preliminary Budget to the Final Budget: 
 

Note: Contingency increases due to inflationary environment were included in rate model calculation 
 
 

 Preliminary  Final     
Category Budget   Budget   Change   Comments 

Operating Budget        
Treatment        

Postage & Shipping $1,000  $1,200  $200  
Notes did not match budget, 
correction to note 

Laboratory $40,092  $49,092  $9,000  
Notes did not match budget, 
correction to note 

       
Instrumentation 
Services $10,000  $17,761  $7,761  

Notes did not match budget, 
correction to note 

Outfall Inspection $10,000  $15,130  $5,130  

Budget did not match 
contract, correction to 
contract 

Contingency $0  $302,410  $302,410  
Contingency not placed in 
preliminary budget 

        
Administration        

LAFCO $21,140  $23,550  $2,410  
Received LAFCO billing 
higher than original budget 

Contingency $0  $79,319  $79,319  
Contingency not placed in 
preliminary budget 

           
Collection        

Contingency $0  $123,234  $123,234  
Contingency not placed in 
preliminary budget 

        
TOTAL 
CHANGES $82,232  $611,696  $529,464   
        

134



Resolution No. 2022-31
Adopting Budget for the Fiscal Year 2022-23

WHEREAS, the public necessity and convenience require that the Carmel Area Wastewater
District shall have sufficient funds for its administration, operation, maintenance, replacement, and
construction:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

1.  That funds be raised to provide for the following estimated expenditures:
Operating Expenditures

Salaries, Payroll Taxes & Employee Benefits 4,194,036.00
Other Operating & Maintenance Expense 5,095,958.00

9,289,994.00

Capital Asset Expenditures
Capital Improvement Projects for Treatment 0.00
Capital Improvement Projects LTC - Plant 6,430,000.00
Capital Improvement Project for Maintenance 0.00
Capital Improvement Projects for Collection 5,400,750.00
Capital Improvement Projects for Admin 25,000.00
Capital Equipment Outlay 136,500.00

11,992,250.00

Non-Operating Expenditures
Highlands Project Debt Service 213,456.00

213,456.00
Non-Cash Item

Reserve for Depreciation & Amortization 4,673,860.00

Total Budgeted cash & non-cash Expenditures 26,169,560.00

2.  That the following are sources of revenue to fund the above expenditures:
Operating Revenues

User Fees 9,941,528.00
PBCSD Treatment Fees 1,160,000.00
Reclamation Project Share of O & M 663,179.00
Other Revenues 68,000.00

11,832,707.00

Non-Operating Revenues
Interest Earned 300,000.00
Property Taxes 2,376,600.00
Other Misc Income 80,000.00
Highlands Inn Assessment Revenue 213,456.00

2,970,056.00

Capital Revenues
Connection Fees & Permits 20,000.00
PBCSD One Third Share CIP & Equipment 1,732,220.00
Reclamation Project reimbursement 177,410.00

1,929,630.00

26.C  RES 2022-31 Annual Budget FY 2022-23.xls   22-23

135



Resolution No. 2022-31
Adopting Budget for the Fiscal Year 2022-23

Total Revenue 16,732,393.00

Appropriation of Capital Replacement Funds to Balance Budget 9,437,167.00

Appropriation of Capital Replacement Funds to
Balance Budget Before Depreciation 4,763,307.00

Grant Funding 0.00

Total Budgeted Revenues and Appropriations 26,169,560.00

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area Wastewater District,
Monterey County, California at a Regular Meeting held on the 30th day of June, 2022, by the
following vote:

YES, MEMBERS: ___________________________________________

NO, MEMBERS: ____________________________________________

ABSENT, MEMBERS: _______________________________________

ABSTAIN, MEMBERS: ______________________________________

Domine Barringer, Board Secretary
Carmel Area Wastewater District

APPROVED:

Ken White, President

26.C  RES 2022-31 Annual Budget FY 2022-23.xls   22-23

136



STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

Date: June 30, 2022 

Subject: Ratify Employee MOU 2022-2024 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution ratifying the Employee 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) dated June 30, 2022 and effective July 1, 2022. 

DISCUSSION 

As per the agreed upon 2019-2021 Contract Negotiating Ground Rules: 

Section:  Negotiation Management #8 
Memorandum of Understanding:  When a total agreement is ratified the parties will 
enter into a written Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  Each side shall make a 
good faith effort to obtain ratification/approval of their respective constituents.  The 
MOU shall be submitted to the CAWD Employees and upon ratification be submitted 
to the District Board.  No MOU shall be binding or in effect until it has been approved 
by the District’s Board. 

The employee prepared MOU was presented to the Salary and Benefits Committee on 
March 15, 2022, for preliminary comment and approval.  The final version, signed by 
the Employee Negotiating team members is short one member because Karla Cristi 
retired prior to completing negotiations.  The Maintenance Department has not yet 
assigned a new member in her place. 

FUNDING 

Funding for the items in the attached MOU has been incorporated into the 2022-23 
Budget. 

137



138



139



140



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-32 

A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE EMPLOYEE MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING (MOU) DATED JUNE 30, 2022 AND EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2022 

Referencing the 2019-2021 Contract Negotiating Ground Rules 

-oOo- 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors agreed to and was a signatory to the 2019-2021 

Contract Negotiating Ground Rules with employees dated November 6, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, said contract states that when a total agreement is ratified the parties 

will enter into a written Memorandum of Understanding; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has been presented with a Memorandum of 

Understanding executed by the Employee Negotiators that is satisfactory to them in both 

form and content. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize ratifying the Employee 

Memorandum of Understanding attached to this resolution and made a part hereof. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on June 30, 2022 by the following vote: 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: 

      

       _______________________________ 
       Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 

141



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
  
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Designation of Classification Titles and Providing for the Number of 

Positions and Salary Ranges 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution designating the 
Classification Titles in the Carmel Area Wastewater District and providing for the number 
of positions and monthly salary ranges effective July 1, 2022. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The attached resolution reflects the results of employee negotiations and has been 
approved by the Salary and Benefits Committee. 
 
The agreed upon Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) increase for 2022-23 is 3.8%.  The 
Bureau of Labor Statistics posted Consumer Price Index for San Francisco-Oakland-
Hayward for October 2021 is 3.8%.   
 
The most recent Bureau of Labor Statistics data sheet for the San Francisco-Oakland-
Hayward region is attached for informational purposes.  Note: for negotiations it has been 
long standing practice to utilize the October 12-month COLA. The October 2021 number 
was used for fiscal year 2022-23 and we will use the number posted in October 2022 for 
fiscal year 2023-24. 
 
 
FINANCIAL 
 
The 2022-23 Budget provides for a 3.8% COLA as negotiated. 

  

142



143



                                                RESOLUTION NO. 2022-33
                      DESIGNATING CLASSIFICATION TITLES IN THE
                             CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
            AND PROVIDING FOR THE NUMBER OF POSITIONS AND
                                          MONTHLY SALARY RANGES

BE IT RESOLVED  by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area Wastewater District as follows:

Section 1.   That the "Positions", "Classification Titles" and "Salary Ranges and Steps" enumerated
            below are hereby adopted for positions of employment in the Carmel  Area Wastewater District:

                SALARY         STEPS
Positions Range Classification Titles A B C D E

      Administration
1 n/a General Manager
1 26 Principal Accountant 8,615.40$     9,046.17$       9,498.48$        9,973.40$     10,472.07$     
2 16 Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk 6,730.33$     7,066.85$       7,420.19$        7,791.20$     8,180.76$       

     Engineering
1 37 Principal Engineer 11,304.14$   11,869.35$     12,462.82$      13,085.96$   13,740.25$     
1 37 Plant Engineer 11,304.14$   11,869.35$     12,462.82$      13,085.96$   13,740.25$     

     Treatment Plant Operations
1 32 Operations Superintendent 9,991.22$     10,490.78$     11,015.32$      11,566.08$   12,144.39$     
1 32 Maintenance Superintendent 9,991.22$     10,490.78$     11,015.32$      11,566.08$   12,144.39$     
0 31 Associate Engineer 9,747.53$     10,234.90$     10,746.65$      11,283.98$   11,848.18$     
1 26 Operations Supervisor 8,615.40$     9,046.17$       9,498.48$        9,973.40$     10,472.07$     
1 24 Laboratory Supervisor 8,200.26$     8,610.28$       9,040.79$        9,492.83$     9,967.47$       
3 20 Senior Operator 7,429.03$     7,800.48$       8,190.50$        8,600.03$     9,030.03$       
1 19 Safety/Regulatory Compliance Administrator I 7,247.82$     7,610.22$       7,990.73$        8,390.26$     8,809.78$       
1 19 Laboratory Analyst II/Environmental Inspector 7,247.82$     7,610.22$       7,990.73$        8,390.26$     8,809.78$       
2 18 Maintenance Mechanic III 7,071.05$     7,424.61$       7,795.84$        8,185.63$     8,594.91$       
2 17 Plant Operator II 6,898.59$     7,243.52$       7,605.69$        7,985.98$     8,385.28$       
1 17 Purchaser-Plant Asset Coordinator 6,898.59$     7,243.52$       7,605.69$        7,985.98$     8,385.28$       
1 16 Laboratory Analyst I/Environmental Inspector 6,730.33$     7,066.85$       7,420.19$        7,791.20$     8,180.76$       
0 15 Maintenance Mechanic II 6,566.18$     6,894.49$       7,239.21$        7,601.17$     7,981.23$       
0 14 Maintenance Worker II 6,406.03$     6,726.33$       7,062.65$        7,415.78$     7,786.57$       
1 12 Plant Operator I 6,097.35$     6,402.21$       6,722.33$        7,058.44$     7,411.36$       
0 12 Maintenance Mechanic I 6,097.35$     6,402.21$       6,722.33$        7,058.44$     7,411.36$       
0 9 Maintenance Worker I 5,662.00$     5,945.10$       6,242.35$        6,554.47$     6,882.20$       

     Collection Maintenance
1 32 Collection System Superintendent 9,991.22$     10,490.78$     11,015.32$      11,566.08$   12,144.39$     
4 18 Collection Worker III 7,071.05$     7,424.61$       7,795.84$        8,185.63$     8,594.91$       
0 11 Collection Worker II 5,948.62$     6,246.05$       6,558.36$        6,886.27$     7,230.59$       
0 6 Collection Worker I 5,257.73$     5,520.62$       5,796.65$        6,086.48$     6,390.80$       
1 6 Collection/Maintenance Utility Worker I 5,257.73$     5,520.62$       5,796.65$        6,086.48$     6,390.80$       

28.0 Total Positions authorized

Section 2.    That salaries paid to occupants of said positions shall be administered in accordance  with 
           Ordinance No. 97-2 titled "Personnel Policies".

Section 3.     The Provisions hereof shall be in force and effect as of July 1, 2022

Section 4.     That this resolution supercedes 22-09 in its entirety.

                           PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 
           Wastewater District duly held on June 30, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:                   BOARD MEMBERS:

NOES:                  BOARD MEMBERS:

ABSENT:             BOARD MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN:          BOARD MEMBERS:
                                                                           

-----------------------------------------------------
             ATTEST:  Ken White, President of the Board

             ---------------------------------------------------
             Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board

Negotiated with Board of Directors

144



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
  
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Defend or Managed Retreat Reserve Account 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution approving a contribution 
of $1,000,000 to the Special Reserve Fund named “Defend or Managed Retreat Restricted 
Reserve” for fiscal year 2022-23. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
At the March 2017 regular Board meeting resolution 2017-09 was passed, which established 
a “Defend or Managed Retreat Restricted Reserve” to allow the Carmel Area Wastewater 
District (District) options in coming to terms with sea level rise.  The current balance of the 
reserve fund is $4M. The initial funding goal was $15,000,000 over 15 years.   
 
The Budget Committee was given the task to annually review and decide as to future 
funding. This year during Budget Committee meetings the decision was made to 
recommend a contribution for fiscal year 2022-23 of $1,000,000.  This is the sixth year the 
Committee has recommended a contribution to fund the account, bringing the total fund 
balance to $5M. 
 
This dedicated reserve fund, combined with our Sea Level Rise Study prepared by 
Environmental Science Associates (ESA), serves notice to the public and regulatory 
agencies that the District is intent upon addressing the issue.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

145



FUNDING 
 
There are enough funds in General Reserves to move into the Defend or Managed 
Retreat Restricted Reserve. 
 
Estimated May 2022, financial statements 
 
 Cash Balances     $ 44,375,586 
 Estimated June revenue    $      205,000    
 Estimated June expenditures   $      450,000 
  Est FY 2021-22 ending balance  $ 45,030,586 
 
Based on the estimate above, the projected year end position as follows: 
 
 Capital Fund      $   5,180,500 
 Capital Improvement Project Reserve  $ 22,570,086 
 Operation & Maintenance Fund   $ 12,000,000 
 Compensated Accruals    $      280,000 
 Defend or Managed Retreat Restricted Reserve $   5,000,000 
  Est FY 2021-22 ending balance  $ 45,030,586 
 
Staff recommends that this contribution continue to be part of the annual budget process, 
first at the Budget Committee level and then followed with a presentation to the full Board. 
 

146



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-34 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRIBUTION OF $1,000,000 TO THE “DEFEND OR 
MANAGED RETREAT RESTRICTED RESERVE” AS PART OF THE  

BUDGET PROCESS FOR FY 2022-23 
 

-oOo- 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors authorized the creation of a “Defend or Managed 
Retreat Restricted Reserve” in 2017 with resolution 2017-09 to enable the Carmel Area 
Wastewater District (District) to address the potential impacts surrounding sea level rise 
throughout the District’s infrastructure; and. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors agreed that any continued annual contributions 
be determined as part of the annual budget process with a recommendation by the Budget 
Committee; and 

WHEREAS, the Budget Committee, as part of their process, determined that the fiscal 
year 2022-23 contribution should be $1,000,000 and made this recommendation to the full 
board. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 
Wastewater District that it does hereby elect to contribute $1,000,000 to the Defend or 
Managed Retreat Restricted Reserve as part of the Budget process for Fiscal Year 2022-23. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on June 30, 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: 

     
      _______________________________ 
      Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 

147



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
  
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Section 115 Funding 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution approving a contribution 
of $100,000 to the District’s CalPERS Section 115 Account for fiscal year 2022-23. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
At the December 2021 regular Board meeting Resolution 2021-67 was passed to establish a 
CalPERS Section 115 account to meet future funding requirements.  The District’s initial 
deposit was $500K split between the two offerings, Strategy 1 and Strategy 2.   
 
The Budget Committee was given the task to annually review and decide as to future 
funding.  This year during Budget Committee meetings the decision was made to 
recommend annual contributions of $100K.  Based on the amounts paid into the District’s 
Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) for the first 15 years of membership into CalPERS it is 
thought that $100K over twenty years will allow the accumulation of $2M – intended to be 
drawn upon when there is a paydown on the UAL 
 
Because of the returns earned in 2022 by CalPERS (21.3%) it triggered a reduction in the 
discount rate from 7.0% to 6.8%.  We have been advised by our CalPERS actuary that we 
will likely not have any UAL balance due to the strength of these returns and we should 
not pay down the current UAL.  In discussion with the Budget Committee, it was 
determined that we should still move forward with our plan to fund the Section 115 
annually at $100K. 
 
 
 

  

148



FUNDING 
 
There are sufficient funds in the General Reserve to cover this transfer to the Section 115 
account.  Staff recommends it be split 50/50 between the Asset Allocation Strategy 1 and 
Strategy 2.   
 
Staff recommends that this contribution continue to be part of the annual budget process, 
first at the Budget Committee level and then followed with a presentation to the full Board. 
 

149



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-35 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRIBUTION OF $100,000 TO THE DISTRICT’S 
CALPERS SECTION 115 ACCOUNT AS PART OF THE 

BUDGET PROCESS FOR FY 2022-23 
 

-oOo- 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors authorized the creation of a CalPERS California 
Employers’ Pension Prefunding Trust (CEPPT) account in December 2021 with 
Resolution 2021-67.  The Board agreed there was a need to fund future contributions to 
the District’s CalPERS Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL); and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors agreed that any continued annual contributions 
be determined as part of the annual budget process with a recommendation by the 
Budget Committee; and 

WHEREAS, the Budget Committee, as part of their process, determined that the 
fiscal year 2022-23 contribution should be $100,000 and made this recommendation to the 
full board. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 
Area Wastewater District that it does hereby elect to contribute $100,000 to the CAWD 
CEPPT with CalPERS as part of the Budget process for Fiscal Year 2022-23. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on June 30, 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: 

     
      ______________________________ 
      Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 

150



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  July 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Renew Human Resources (HR) Contract  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the General 
Manager to renew a Human Resource (HR) contract with Beth Ingram for fiscal year 2022-23 
in an amount not to exceed $68,250. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The cost of staying current means that overhead costs associated with performing HR 
services are typically high.  A small business generally cannot afford this expense.  
Outsourcing allows the District to reduce costs by reducing nonrevenue generating back-
office expenses while granting access to a larger professional pool for HR.  Further, HR 
outsourcing costs are variable and can be reduced when business needs warrant. 
  
Staff recommends a renewed contract with Beth Ingram because she is well liked and 
received by employees and has seamlessly joined the CAWD “team”. We have worked with 
Ms. Ingram, and she understands the shared vision at CAWD and the emphasis that is 
placed on employee relations.  This coming fiscal year a draft of an updated Employee 
Manual and a new Employee Survey will be presented to the board.  
  
FINANCIAL 
 
The 2022-23 Budget provides $68,250 for “HR Consulting” expense under GL #5885. The 
2021-22 contract was for $65,000, this represents a 5% increase. 

 
 

151



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-36 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO 
A CONTRACT WITH BETH INGRAM FOR HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES IN 

AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $68,250 
 

-oOo- 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors is convinced by the staff report presented 
at its regular board meeting June 30, 2022, that the Carmel Area Wastewater District 
(District) should outsource its Human Resource function; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors agrees that it will provide greater service 
to employees, reduce risk, and lowers costs if Human Resources is outsourced; and 

WHEREAS, Beth Ingram has worked for the District since 2018 on a contract 
basis and her services have proven to be invaluable; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors agrees with the proposal to renew the 
contract to Beth Ingram and that there are sufficient funds of $68,250 provided for in 
the budget. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 
Area Wastewater District that the General Manager may sign a contract with Beth 
Ingram in an amount not to exceed $68,250 for Human Resources consulting services. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on June 30, 2022, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:   BOARD MEMBERS 

ABSENT:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

 
      _____________________________ 
      Ken White, President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
_____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

 

152



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Central Coast Long-Term Environmental Assessment Network 

(CCLEAN) Contract Award Recommendation – Applied Marine Sciences  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board approve an amended contract with Applied Marine 
Sciences for CCLEAN Program Management for an additional $8,582 bringing the total 
contract amount to $502,654 for 2022-23. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Board approved the 2022-23 contract on June 24, 2021, in the amount of $494,072 via 
Resolution 2021-33.  This request represents a 1.7% increase due to minor changes on 
various line items increasing the total to $502,654. 
 
Although this will not have any impact on CAWD’s budget it is necessary to keep the 
records “clean.” 
 
FINANCIAL 
 
None – all costs for CCLEAN are paid by the participants.  As Lead Agency CAWD 
received 7% of the budget for its costs to administer the program.  Note:  CAWD has been 
the Lead Agency since July 2018.  Lead Agency duties include scheduling and running 
meetings, preparing minutes, keeping monthly financial statements, and other 
miscellaneous tasks that may come up. 

 
 

153



BUDGET FOR CCLEAN 2022-2023 PROGRAM YEAR
Task 2022-2023 Budget
Management, QC, Reporting
Task 1. Provide Program Management $47,674

Task 2 Collect & Analyze Samples
     2.1 Mussel Sampling $19,844
     2.2 Outfall Sampling $102,003
     2.3 Nearshore Sampling $69,039
     2.4 San Lorenzo River POP Sampling $24,808
     2.5 Watsonville Influent Sampling $7,941
     2.6 Pajaro and Salinas Sampling $7,597
     2.7 Pyrethroid, Fironil, and Neonicotinoid Sampling in Rivers $25,137
     2.8 Sediment Sampling $45,023

Task 3 Ensure Program Data  Quality $32,148

Task 4. Write Annual Report $50,881

Task 5. Miscellaneous Tasks $6,212

AMS Contract Total $438,307

Without San Lorenzo River and Watsonville Influent Sampling $405,559

Lead Agency Overhead 7% $28,389

Contingency for Regional Monitoring Development $15,680

Contingency 5% $20,278

Total CCLEAN Cost $469,906
Total Funding Required  including San Lorenzo River and Watsonville influent sampling $502,654

2022-2023 Basis of Cost Allocation

2022-2023 Flat Fee
5-Year Average 

Flow Basis

Contribution for 
2022-2023 with 
Average Flow

Dynegy $30,000 0.00% $30,000
Carmel $12,000 2.70% $22,253
Monterey $12,000 34.39% $142,653
Watsonville $12,000 13.25% $70,268
Santa Cruz $12,000 46.29% $212,677
Scotts Valley $12,000 3.37% $24,804
Total $90,000 100.00% $502,654

5-year Average 
Flow

Percent of total 
flow

Carmel 173.2476 2.70%
Monterey 2207.687065 34.39%
Watsonville 850.39486 13.25%
Santa Cruz 2971.71 46.29%
Scotts Valley 216.34525 3.37%

6419.384775 100.00%

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Mean % of Total
Carmel 280.4 100.72 188.508 200.94 95.67 173.25 2.70%
Monterey 2658.068 2049.26 3362.987325 1503.2 1464.92 2207.69 34.39%
Watsonville 1214.53 711.7243 886.62 676.5 762.6 850.39 13.25%
Santa Cruz 3528.97 2646.5 3151.37 2560 2540 2971.71 46.29%
Scotts Valley 238.925 221.823 236.003 168.63 125.593 216.35 3.37%
Sum 7920.893 5730.0273 7825.488325 5109.27 4988.783 6419.38 100.00%

154



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-37 

A RESOLUTION FOR AN AMENDED CONTRACT WITH APPLIED MARINE 
SCIENCES FOR CENTRAL COAST LONG-TERM ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
NETWORK (CCLEAN) PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FOR AN ADDITIONAL $8,582 

BRINGING TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT TO $502,654 

-oOo- 

 WHEREAS, the Board acknowledges Carmel Area Wastewater District’s (CAWD) 

role as “Lead Agency” in the CCLEAN Program and its role in managing the 

administrative duties of the program; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board approved a contract in fiscal year 2021-22 with Resolution 

2021-33 for fiscal year 2022-23 in the amount of $494,072; and 

 WHEREAS, the CCLEAN budget for 2022-23 has subsequently been amended to 

$502,654, an increase of $8,582; and 

 WHEREAS, the CCLEAN participants have made a determination to accept the 

increase for 2022-23. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District that is does hereby authorize the General Manager to enter into 

a contract amendment for $8,582 bringing the total 2022-23 contract to $502,654. 

 PASSED AN ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on June 30, 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS 

NOES: BOARD MEMBERS 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS 

ABSTAIN:  BOARD MEMBERS 
      ______________________________ 
      Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 

155



 
STAFF REPORT      

 
To:   Board of Directors  
 
From:   Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 
 
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
Subject:  Project #19-18 – Perimeter Fence Replacement Design – Kennedy Jenks 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the General 
Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with Kennedy Jenks for 
developing a fence design and construction bid documents for a new perimeter fence 
around the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP). The design documents would be 
prepared for a not to exceed price of $52,870. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The existing fence around the WWTP has fallen into disrepair and is beyond mending 
due to a multitude of failures along the extensive perimeter. The length of the perimeter 
fence to be replaced is roughly half of a mile. Design will include fence details, layout 
plan, inclusion of environmental mitigations, and general construction contract 
documents. Environmental review will be contracted separately with an environmental 
consultant. 
 
The proposal from Kennedy Jenks is attached. 
 
FUNDING 

     
The CAWD Treatment Plant Long Term Capital Budget includes $275,000 in FY22/23 for 
perimeter fence replacement work. 
 
Attachment: 

1. Proposal – Kennedy Jenks 
 

 

 

156



 

 

 

 

February 7, 2022 

 

WWTP Perimeter Security Chain 

Link Fence 
Carmel, Ca. 

157



 

 

275 Battery Street., Suite 550 

San Francisco, CA 94111 

Office Ph: (415) 243-2150 

 
18 May 2022 
 
Mr. Patrick Treanor, P.E. 
Plant Engineer 
Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) 
3945 Rio Road 
Carmel, CA 93922 

Subject: Proposal for Professional Engineering Services 
WWTP Security Chain Link Fence  
KJ Proposal No. 22680XX.XX 

 

Dear Mr. Patrick Treanor, 

Kennedy Jenks (KJ) is pleased to submit this proposal to provide professional engineering services for design, project 

management, and bid services for the replacement of the Carmel Area Wastewater District Wastewater Treatment Plant 

(WWTP) perimeter security chain link fence. 

Project Overview 

Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) has decided to 

replace the perimeter security chain link fence around the 

Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP).  The scope 

includes removal and replacement of approximately 2,450 

linear feet of chain link fence, a new manual vehicle gate, 

and new manual pedestrian gates.  The fence and gates 

will be 8-foot-tall chain link.  Design assumptions and 

exclusions include: 

• CAWD will prepare Divisions 00 and 01 

specifications.  

• KJ assumes two deliverables: 90% and Final 

Design.  

• KJ will prepare technical specifications.  

• CAWD will hire a subconsultant to prepare CEQA. 

KJ will provide project description and site layout, 

if needed.  

• The new fence will be located along the same 

alignment as the existing fence, plus a 25’x25’ 

area at the west side of the plant. No regrading is 

included.  

• 8-foot-tall vinyl coated chain link fence, no privacy 

slats. 

• No electrical and security system design are 

included. 

• Existing survey will be sufficient for this effort. 

• Frog fence improvements (e.g. separate frog 

fence, small void mesh with brackets, or other 

method to keep frogs out of the WWTP). CAWD 

to provide botanist recommendation for needed 

height of frog fence. The frog fence will be buried 

to prevent frogs from going under the fence.  

• Design will reference and include appended 

interior entrance fence, shown on L-4 of Job # 

15-2019 by Hall Landscape Design. The Hall 

Landscape Design will be included in the project 

package. KJ will not modify the design.  

  

158



Scope of Work 

Task 1 – Project Management 

Task 1.1 - Project Management  

This task includes project set up, invoicing, QA/QC, and 

project team coordination. KJ has included one 1-hour 

virtual kick-off meeting.  

Task 1.2 - Site Visit 

KJ proposes one 2-hour site walk to confirm survey 

accuracy and identify, with CAWD, pedestrian gate 

locations, obstructions, and interfaces with existing 

infrastructure (e.g. pipe bridge, front gate, etc.). 

Task 1.3 - Quality Assurance/Quality Control 
(QA/QC) 

Our QA/QC program includes the internal review of all 

deliverables prior to submitting them to CAWD for review.   

Task 1 Assumptions: 

• KJ Staff (up to two people) will attend the site visit 

Task 1 Deliverables: 

• Kick-off meeting agenda and notes (electronic PDF 

format) 

• Monthly Invoices (electronic PDF format) 

Task 2 – Design  

Task 2.1 – 90% Design 

KJ will develop detailed 90% drawings, technical 

specifications and an AACE Class Level 2 opinion of 

probable construction cost (OPCC) with an accuracy of 

+15% to -5% based on the project background and 

understanding.  The proposed drawing and technical 

specification list are provided at the end of this proposal. 

Task 2.2 – 90% Design Review Meeting 

Based on the proposed project schedule, KJ will attend a 

virtual 90% Design Review Meeting where the redline 

comments from CAWD team members and project 

stakeholders will be discussed. CAWD’s comments will 

serve as the meeting agenda. KJ will prepare draft 

responses prior to the meeting.  

 

Task 2.3 – Final Design 

Upon completion of the 90% design review, KJ will 

incorporate CAWD’s comments into the final design.  KJ 

will provide bid drawings, specifications and revised 

OPCC.  

Task 2 Assumptions: 

• CAWD will prepare the front-end specifications 

(Divisions 00 and 01). 

• 90% design review meeting will be a 1-hour virtual 

meeting. 

Task 2 Deliverables: 

• 90% Set of Drawings (half size, electronic PDF 

format) 

• 90% Technical Specifications (electronic PDF 

format) 

• 90% OPCC (electronic PDF format) 

• 90% Draft response to comments prior to the 

Design Review Meeting (electronic PDF format)  

• Bid Drawings (full size, electronic PDF format) 

• Bid Technical Specifications (electronic PDF 

format) 

• Bid OPCC (electronic PDF format) 

Task 3 – Bidding Assistance 

Task 3.1 – Pre-Bid Meeting 

KJ will attend a virtual Pre-bid Conference for prospective 

bidders, led by CAWD.  KJ will prepare the meeting 

agenda and notes. 

Task 3.2 – Bidder Clarifications 

During the bidding phase, KJ will respond to up to ten (10) 

inquiries from bidders regarding the proposed project. KJ 

has assumed that CAWD will distribute responses to 

potential bidders.  

Task 3.3 – Addenda 

KJ will prepare up to two (2) addenda resulting from 

question asked at the Pre-Bid conference or questions 

159



sent from bidders to CAWD directly during the bid phase of 

the project. Each written addendum is anticipated to be no 

more than five (5) pages. 

Task 3.4 – Bid Evaluation Support 

KJ will review construction bids received and prepare a 

brief email recommendation to CAWD regarding bid 

responsiveness, bidder capabilities, and contract award. 

Task 3.5 – Conformed Documents 

KJ will prepare conformed documents incorporating 

changes to the contract documents by addenda. 

Task 3 Assumptions: 

• Bid evaluation of up to five (5) bidders. 

• CAWD will advertise and distribute project 

documents to prospective bidders. 

• Pre-Bid meeting is one (1) hour long. 

• CAWD will contact references if required to 

evaluate the apparent low bidder.  

• Up to ten (10) bidder clarifications. 

• No more than two (2) addenda and no more than 

five (5) pages each. 

Task 3 Deliverables: 

• Conformed Drawings and Specifications (2 full size 

hardcopies and electronic PDF format) 

• Pre-Bid Meeting Agenda and Meeting Summary 

(electronic PDF format) 

• Bidder Clarifications (electronic PDF format) 

• Addenda (electronic PDF format) 

Terms and Conditions 

This proposal is based on current projections of staff 

availability and costs and, therefore, is valid for 90 days 

following the date of this letter.  To assure a clear 

understanding of all matters related to our mutual 

responsibilities, the attached Standard Conditions dated 1 

August 2021 are made a part of our agreement. If this 

proposal meets with your approval, please sign the 

proposal. 

 

160



List of Drawings: 

No. Sheet No. Title 

1 G-01  Cover Sheet Index, General Location and Vicinity Map 

2 C-01  General Civil Abbreviations and Notes 

3 C-02  Demolition & Horizontal Control Plan 

4 C-03  Civil Improvements Plan 

5 C-04  Civil Details 

List of Technical Specifications: 

Spec No. Title 

02050 Demolition 

02200 Site Preparation 

02300 Earthwork 

02820 Fences and Gates 

Estimated Schedule: 

Milestone 
Completion 

Date 
Duration 
(Weeks) 

Notice to Proceed 7/1/2022  
Prepare and Submit 90% Drawings, Specifications & OPCC 8/19/2022 7 

CAWD Review 9/2/2022 2 

Prepare and Submit Final Drawings, Specifications & OPCC 10/7/2022 5 

   

Overall Design Timeline 10/7/2022 14 

 

  

161



Basis of Compensation: 

In accordance with the attached Proposal Fee Estimate dated May 18, 2022, KJ proposes a not-to-exceed fee of $52,870 

to provide the scope of services on a time and materials (T&M) basis in accordance with the Phase Fee breakdown 

summarized below. A further breakdown of our proposed project budget and line-item descriptions of the project deliverables 

is provided the Proposal Fee Estimate. It is acknowledged the individual task budget breakdowns summarized below, are 

an estimate and may be transferred among each task, as long as the total budget is not exceeded. 

Phase Name Estimated Fee Budget 

1 Project Management  $                                     9,120  

2 Design  $                                    32,320 

3 Bidding Assistance  $                                    11,430  

TOTAL   $                           52,870  

 

The KJ Team appreciates the opportunity to submit another proposal for the continual improvements of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District’s Wastewater Treatment Plant and look forward to continuing to work with you and your staff. Please 

feel free to contact me at (925) 953-1521 should you have any questions.  

Authorization: 

 

KENNEDY/JENKS CONSULTANTS, INC. CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

Signature:         

 

Printed Name:  Nick Lazarakis    

 

Title:      Principal       

 

Date:          

 

Signature:         

 

Printed Name:        

 

Title:          

 

Date:          

  

 

  

162



 

 

Contact Information 

ADDRESS 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 

San Francisco, CA 94111 

 

CONTACT 

Nick Lazarakis, P.E. 

nicklazarakis@kennedyjenks.com 

 Phone: (925) 953-1521 

 

163

mailto:nicklazarakis@kennedyjenks.com


 

https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/contractupdates/shared documents/client standard conditions/fmstandardconditions_pw_2021.docx  Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. August 2021 

Client:        

Contract/Proposal Date:        

Standard Conditions 1 August 2021

CLIENT and KENNEDY/JENKS CONSULTANTS, INC. 
(“CONSULTANT”) agree that the following provisions shall be a part 
of their agreement. 

1. TERMS OF PAYMENT. CLIENT will be invoiced at the end of the 
first billing period following commencement of work and at the 
end of each billing period thereafter. Payment in full of an 
invoice must be received by CONSULTANT within thirty (30) 
days of the date of such invoice. 

2. EFFECT OF INVOICE. The work performed shall be deemed 
approved and accepted by CLIENT as and when invoiced unless 
CLIENT objects within fifteen (15) days of invoice date by written 
notice specifically stating the details in which CLIENT believes 
such work is incomplete or defective, and the invoice amount(s) 
in dispute. CLIENT shall pay undisputed amounts as provided for 
in the preceding paragraph. 

3. INTEREST; SUSPENSION OF WORK. Failure of CLIENT to 
make full payment of an invoice so that it is received by 
CONSULTANT within said sixty (60) days of the date thereof 
subjects the amount overdue to a delinquent account charge of 
one percent (1%) of the invoice amount per month, compounded 
monthly, but not to exceed the maximum rate permitted by law. 
Failure of CLIENT to submit full payment of an invoice within 
sixty (60) days of the date thereof subjects this agreement and 
the work herein contemplated to suspension or termination at 
CONSULTANT’s discretion. 

4. ADVANCE PAYMENT: WITHHOLDING OF WORK PRODUCT. 
CONSULTANT reserves the right to require payment in advance 
for work it estimates will be done during a given billing period. 
CONSULTANT, without any liability to CLIENT, reserves the right 
to withhold any services and work products herein contemplated 
pending payment of CLIENT’s outstanding indebtedness or 
advance payment as required by CONSULTANT. Where work is 
performed on a reimbursable basis, budget may be increased by 
amendment to complete the scope of work. CONSULTANT is not 
obligated to provide services in excess of the authorized budget. 

5. STANDARD OF CARE. CONSULTANT’s services performed 
under this agreement will be performed in a manner consistent 
with the care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the 
profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time 
and in the same or similar locality. When the findings and 
recommendations of CONSULTANT are based on information 
supplied by CLIENT and others, such findings and 
recommendations are correct to the best of CONSULTANT’s 
knowledge and belief. No warranty, express or implied, is made 
or intended by this agreement, or by the foregoing statement of 
the applicable standard of care, or by providing consulting 
services or by furnishing oral or written reports of findings made. 
No entity other than CLIENT or CONSULTANT shall be 
construed as a beneficiary to this Agreement. 

6. INSURANCE COVERAGE. CONSULTANT is protected by 
Worker’s Compensation insurance as required by applicable 
state laws and will maintain employer’s liability coverage of 
$1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury, $1,000,000 each 
employee and $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injury by 
disease. During the performance of this agreement 
CONSULTANT will maintain professional liability insurance with 
a limit of $1,000,000 on a claims made, annual aggregate basis, 
and commercial general liability and automobile liability 
insurance each with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 million on 
an occurrence basis. 

7. ALLOCATION OF RISK. CLIENT and CONSULTANT have discussed 
the risks associated with this project and the extent to which those risks 
should be shared by CLIENT and by CONSULTANT, and have agreed: 
(a) To the fullest extent permitted by law, CLIENT agrees to limit the 
liability of CONSULTANT, its officers, employees, and subconsultants to 
CLIENT, all landowners, contractors, subcontractors, lenders, suppliers, 

manufacturers, third parties, and their employees such that the total 
aggregate liability, including all attorneys fees and costs shall not 
exceed $50,000.00 or the total fees paid for CONSULTANT’s services 
on this project, whichever is greater. (b) All damages such as loss of 
use, profits, anticipated profits, and the like losses are consequential 
damages for which CONSULTANT is not liable. (c) CLIENT shall give 
written notice to CONSULTANT of any claim of negligent act, error or 
omission within one (1) year after the completion of the work performed 
by CONSULTANT. Failure to give notice herein required shall constitute 
a waiver of said claim by CLIENT. 

8. SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION. Any construction inspection or 
testing provided by CONSULTANT is for the purpose of determining 
compliance by contractors with the functional provisions of project 
documents only. CLIENT agrees that CONSULTANT will have no 
inspection responsibilities at the jobsite except to the extent specifically 
provided for in the agreed upon scope of work. CONSULTANT shall not 
be held in any way to guarantee any contractor’s work, nor to assume 
responsibility for means, methods or appliances used by any contractor 
nor to assume responsibility for a contractor’s compliance with laws and 
regulations or for contractor’s errors, omissions, or defective work. 
CLIENT agrees that in accordance with generally accepted construction 
practices, the construction contractor will be required to assume sole 
and complete responsibility for jobsite conditions during the course of 
construction of the project, including safety of all persons and property 
and that this responsibility shall be continuous and not be limited to 
normal working hours. CLIENT agrees to require in all construction 
contracts for the project, provisions that CLIENT and CONSULTANT 
shall be defended and indemnified by the contractor and its 
subcontractors and named additional insureds on contractor’s and 
subcontractor’s insurance. Any Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 
furnished by CONSULTANT are based on professional opinions and 
judgment, and CONSULTANT will not be responsible for fluctuations in 
construction costs. 

9. SERVICES BY CLIENT. CLIENT will provide access to site of work, 
obtain all permits, provide all legal services in connection with the 
project, and provide environmental impact reports and energy 
assessments unless specifically included in the scope of work. CLIENT 
shall pay the costs of checking and inspection fees, zoning application 
fees, soils engineering fees, testing fees, surveying fees, and all other 
fees, permits, bond premiums, and all other charges not specifically 
covered by the scope of work. CLIENT shall designate to 
CONSULTANT the location of all subsurface utility lines and other 
subsurface man-made objects (in this agreement collectively called 
“buried utilities”) within the boundaries of the jobsite. CONSULTANT will 
conduct at CLIENT’s expense such additional research as in 
CONSULTANT’s professional opinion is appropriate to attempt to verify 
the location of buried utilities at the jobsite, but CLIENT shall remain 
responsible for the accurate designation of their location and, shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold CONSULTANT harmless from any claims 
or loss arising from the failure to accurately locate buried utilities. 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. CLIENT and CONSULTANT shall each 
use reasonable care in its efforts to comply with laws, codes, ordinances 
and regulations in force at the time of the performance by each under 
this agreement, insofar as such laws are applicable to a party’s 
performance. Unless otherwise provided for in the scope of work of this 
agreement or by law, the responsibility for making any disclosures or 
reports to any third party, for notifying all governmental authorities of the 
discovery of hazardous materials on the jobsite, and for taking 
corrective, remedial, or mitigative action shall be solely that of CLIENT. 
It is CONSULTANT’s belief that the work is not subject to California or 
any applicable state Prevailing Wage Law, unless expressly identified 
as such within the scope of work. Should it be alleged or determined 
that some or all of the work is subject to California’s or any applicable 
state Prevailing Wage Law, then CLIENT shall reimburse 
CONSULTANT for the additional costs associated with CONSULTANT 
complying with those laws. 

164



Standard Conditions (Page 2) 1 August 2021 

https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/contractupdates/shared documents/client standard conditions/fmstandardconditions_pw_2021.docx  Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. August 2021 

11. USE OF DOCUMENTS. Drawings, reports, writings and other original 
documents (documents) furnished by CONSULTANT are for the 
exclusive use of CLIENT and CONSULTANT retains all intellectual 
property rights including copyrights. Documents are furnished to 
CLIENT upon CLIENT’s specific agreement that it assumes all liability 
resulting from the further distribution of such documents, or any portion 
of them, and that CLIENT will indemnify CONSULTANT and hold it 
harmless against any claims associated with the unauthorized use of 
such documents. In no event will CLIENT or any person acting on its 
behalf edit, abridge, or modify any document prepared by 
CONSULTANT without CONSULTANT’s express written consent. 

12. ELECTRONIC DATA. Documents provided by CONSULTANT in 
electronic formats are provided under the following conditions unless 
detailed otherwise in the scope of work or by a written amendment. 
Documents are provided in CONSULTANT’s standard software formats. 
CLIENT recognizes that electronic data and its transmission can be 
easily damaged, may not be compatible with CLIENT’S software 
formats and systems, may develop inaccuracies during conversion or 
use, and may contain viruses or other destructive programs, and that 
software and hardware operating systems may become obsolete. As a 
condition of delivery of electronic data, CLIENT agrees to defend 
indemnify and hold CONSULTANT, its subconsultants, agents and 
employees harmless from and against all claims, loss, damages, 
expense and liability arising from or connected with its use, reuse, 
misuse, modification or misinterpretation. In no event shall 
CONSULTANT be liable for any loss of use, profit or any other damage. 

13. TERMINATION. This agreement may be terminated by either party by 
written notice should the other party fail substantially to perform its 
obligations under this agreement and continue such default after the 
expiration of a seven (7) day notice period. Either party may terminate 
this agreement without necessity of cause upon the expiration of a thirty 
(30) day notice period. If this agreement is terminated by CLIENT in the 
absence of default by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT shall be paid for 
services performed and costs incurred by it prior to its receipt of notice 
of termination from CLIENT, including reimbursement for direct 
expenses due, plus an additional amount, not to exceed ten percent 
(10%) of charges incurred to the termination notice date, to cover 
services to orderly close the work and prepare project files and 
documentation, plus any additional direct expenses incurred by 
CONSULTANT including but not limited to cancellation fees or charges. 
CONSULTANT will use reasonable efforts to minimize such additional 
charges. 

14. PRECEDENCE OF CONDITIONS. Should any conflict exist between 
the terms herein and the terms of any purchase order or confirmation 
issued by CLIENT, the terms of these Standard Conditions shall prevail 
in the absence of CONSULTANT’s express written agreement to the 
contrary. 

15. ASSIGNMENT: SUBCONTRACTING. Neither CLIENT nor 
CONSULTANT shall assign any of its rights including a right to sue, or 
delegate its duties under this agreement without the written consent of 
the other. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE. Any delay or default in the performance of any 
obligation of CONSULTANT under this agreement resulting from any 
cause(s) beyond CONSULTANT’s reasonable control shall not be 
deemed a breach of this agreement. The occurrence of any such event 
shall suspend the obligations of CONSULTANT as long as performance 
is delayed or prevented thereby, and the fees due hereunder shall be 
equitably adjusted. 

17. MERGER: WAIVER: SURVIVAL. This agreement constitutes the entire 
and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes 
all prior negotiations, representations and/or agreements, written or oral. 
One or more waiver of any term, condition or other provision of this 
agreement by either party shall not be construed as a waiver of a 
subsequent breach of the same or any other provision. Any provision 
hereof which is legally deemed void or unenforceable shall not void this 
entire agreement and all other provisions shall survive and be 
enforceable. 

18. APPLICABLE LAW. This agreement shall be interpreted and enforced 
according to the laws of the State of California. In the case of invalidity 
or unenforceability of any provision or portion thereof, the provision shall 
be rewritten and enforced to the maximum extent permitted by laws to 

accomplish as near as possible the intent of the original provision. 
Nothing herein shall be construed to provide for indemnification against 
damages arising from a party’s gross negligence or willful misconduct. 

19. COUNTERPARTS; SIGNATURES. This Agreement may be executed 
simultaneously in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and 
the same instrument. The parties agree that electronic (including without 
limitation .pdf), email or facsimile signatures of this Agreement shall 
have the same force and effect as original signatures. Each 
undersigned representative of the parties to this Agreement certifies that 
he or she is fully authorized to enter into the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and to execute and legally bind such party to this 
Agreement.  

 

165



Client/Address:  Carmel Area Wastewater District 
3945 Rio Road 
Carmel, CA 93922 

  
Contract/Proposal Date:  February, 2022 

Custom Schedule of Charges Date: January 1, 2021 

PERSONNEL COMPENSATION 

Classification Hourly Rate 

 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 1........................................................................... $135 

 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 2........................................................................... $165 

 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 3........................................................................... $190 

 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 4........................................................................... $205 

 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 5........................................................................... $220 

 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 6........................................................................... $245 

 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 7........................................................................... $275 

 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 8........................................................................... $295 

 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 9........................................................................... $310 

 CAD-Technician ................................................................................................ $130 

 Senior CAD-Technician ..................................................................................... $145 

 CAD-Designer ................................................................................................... $160 

 Senior CAD-Designer ........................................................................................ $175 

 Project Assistant ................................................................................................ $130 

 Administrative Assistant ..................................................................................... $110 

 Aide..................................................................................................................... $90 

 
No Associated Project Cost charge will be added to the Personnel Compensation. 

Direct Expenses 

Reimbursement for direct expenses, as listed below, incurred in connection with the work, will be at cost plus 
ten percent for items such as: 

a. Maps, photographs, 3rd party reproductions, 3rd party printing, equipment rental, and special supplies 
related to the work. 

b. Consultants, soils engineers, surveyors, contractors, and other outside services. 

c. Rented vehicles, local public transportation and taxis, travel and subsistence. 

d. Project specific telecommunications and delivery charges. 

e. Special fees, insurance, permits, and licenses applicable to the work. 

f. Outside computer processing, computation, and proprietary programs purchased for the work. 

Reimbursement for vehicles used in connection with the work will be at the federally approved mileage rates or at a 
negotiated monthly rate. 

If prevailing wage rates apply, the above billing rates will be adjusted as appropriate.   

Overtime for non-exempt employees will be billed at one and a half times the Hourly Rates specified above. 

Rates for professional staff for legal proceedings or as expert witnesses will be at rates one and one-half times the 
Hourly Rates specified above. 

Excise and gross receipts taxes, if any, will be added as a direct expense. 

The foregoing Schedule of Charges is incorporated into the agreement for the services provided, effective January 1, 
2021 through December 31, 2022. After December 31, 2022, invoices will reflect January 1, 2022 Schedule of 
Charges. 

166



Proposal Fee Estimate (Assoc. Proj. Costs per Schedule of Charges)

 CLIENT Name:  

PROJECT Description: WWTP Perimeter Security Chain Link Fence

Proposal/Job Number: 22680XX.XX Date:
 

Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD)

5/18/2022

January 1, 2021 Rates KJ KJ KJ KJ KJ KJ

T
o

t a
l  L

ab
o

r 
+

 S
u

b
s 

+
 E

xp
e n

se
s

P
ro

je
ct

 A
ss

is
ta

n
t

E
n

g
-S

ci
-6

-J
an

et
 

S
r.

 C
A

D
-D

es
ig

n

Classification: A
id

e

Total L
ab

o
r

E
sc

al
at

io
n

A
ss

o
c.

 P
ro

j.
 

C
o

st
s

S
u

b
-M

ar
ku

p

O
D

C
s

O
D

C
s 

M
ar

ku
p

T
o

ta
l

S
u

b
s

T
o

ta
l

E
xp

en
se

s

T
o

t a
l  L

ab
o

r 
+

 S
u

b
s 

+
 E

xp
e n

se
s

P
ro

je
ct

 A
ss

is
ta

n
t

E
n

g
-S

ci
-9

E
n

g
-S

ci
-8

E
n

g
-S

ci
-7

Jo
se

 C
u

ev
as

 
Q

A
/Q

C

E
n

g
-S

ci
-6

-J
an

et
 

H
o

ff
m

an

E
n

g
-S

ci
-2

T
o

ta
l

L
ab

o
r

A
d

m
in

. 
A

ss
is

t.

E
n

g
-S

ci
-5

N
ic

k 
L

az
ar

ak
is

E
n

g
-S

ci
-4

T
o

m
 G

er
ef

fi

S
r.

 C
A

D
-D

es
ig

n

C
A

D
-D

es
ig

n

E
n

g
-S

ci
-3

E
n

g
-S

ci
-1

S
r.

 C
A

D
-T

ec
h

C
A

D
-T

ec
h

Hourly Rate: $310 $295 $275 $245 $220 $205 $190 $165 $135 $175 $160 $145 $130 $130 $110 $90 Hours Fees 0% $0.00 10% Fees 10% Fees

Task 1 - Project Management

Task 1.1 - Project Management 16 4 20 $3,960 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,960 $0 $0 $3,960

Task 1.2 - Site Visit 8 8 16 $3,400 $0 $0 $0 $100 $10 $3,400 $0 $110 $3,510

Task 1.3 - Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) 6 6 $1,650 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,650 $0 $0 $1,650

Task 1 - Subtotal 0 0 6 0 24 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 42 $9,010 $0 $0 $0 $100 $10 $9,010 $0 $110 $9,120

Task 2 - Design

Task 2.1 - 90% Design 2 6 16 42 50 4 120 $21,090 $0 $0 $0 $0 $21,090 $0 $0 $21,090

Task 2.2 - 90% Design Review Meeting 4 2 6 $1,290 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,290 $0 $0 $1,290

Task 2.3 - Final Design 2 2 8 20 20 4 56 $9,940 $0 $0 $0 $9,940 $0 $9,940

Task 2 - Subtotal 0 0 4 8 28 64 0 0 0 0 0 0 70 0 8 0 182 $32,320 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $32,320 $0 $0 $32,320

Phase 3 - Bidding Assistance

Task 3.1 - Pre-Bid Meeting 2 2 4 $850 $0 $0 $0 $0 $850 $0 $0 $850

Task 3.2 - Bidder Clarifications 2 2 4 8 $1,810 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,810 $0 $0 $1,810

Task 3.3 – Addenda 2 6 12 8 28 $5,370 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,370 $0 $0 $5,370

Task 3.4 – Bid Evaluation Support 2 2 4 $850 $0 $0 $0 $0 $850 $0 $0 $850

Task 3.5 - Conformed Documents 2 2 8 4 16 $2,330 $0 $0 $0 $200 $20 $2,330 $0 $220 $2,550

Task 3 - Subtotal 0 0 4 0 14 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 0 4 0 60 $11,210 $0 $0 $0 $200 $20 $11,210 $0 $220 $11,430

All Phases Total 0 0 14 8 66 94 0 0 0 0 0 0 86 0 16 0 284 $52,540 $0 $0 $0 $300 $30 $52,540 $0 $330 $52,870

G:\PW-Group\BusDev\!1068 Proposals\Carmel Area Wastewater District\Chain Link Fence\CAWD-PROJ-1-WWTP-CHAIN-LINK-FEE © 2008 Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc.

167



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-38 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH KENNEDY JENKS CONSULTANTS 

IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $52,870 FOR WWTP PERIMETER FENCE 
DESIGN (PROJECT #19-18) 

 
-oOo- 

 

 WHEREAS, the existing Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) Wastewater 

Treatment Plant (WWTP) Perimeter Fence has fallen into disrepair and needs to be 

replaced; and 

 WHEREAS, Kennedy Jenks has submitted an acceptable proposal and is well 

qualified to provide necessary design services at a competitive rate. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize the General Manager to enter into 

a professional services agreement, with a not to exceed amount of $52,870, with Kennedy 

Jenks Consultants for WWTP Perimeter Fence Design. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on June 30, 2022, by the following vote: 

 AYES:     BOARD MEMBERS: 

 NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

 ABSENT:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

        ______________________________ 
        Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 

168



 
STAFF REPORT      

 
To:   Board of Directors  
 
From:   Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 
 
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
Subject:  Project #18-26 – Authorize Additional Change Order Budget – 

Reclamation Sulfuric Acid and Citric Acid Storage and Feed Systems 
Project 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing additional 
change order budget for the Reclamation Sulfuric Acid and Citric Acid Storage and Feed 
Systems Project in the amount of $58,273.95. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Additional budget is being requested to allow for changing the Sulfuric Acid chemical 
pumping skids from a chlorinated polyvinyl chloride (CPVC) solvent weld pipe/valve 
system to a polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) fused pipe/valve system. This is an after the 
fact change to the design that is recommended due to a recent staff chemical exposure 
incident that has resulted in changes to risk tolerances. The incident occurred in 
December 2021 (three months after the project construction contract began) and involved 
a chemical leak that lead to an operator being sprayed in the face with a 
hazardous/corrosive chemical at the MF/RO Facility. Luckily the exposure to the face did 
not lead to any lasting injury, however the incident has led to a change in Carmel Area 
Wastewater District’s (CAWD) acceptance standard for chemical piping to a higher level 
than was previously accepted. The fused PVDF piping will have a longer life and have 
less risk of failure due to the heat fused joints and higher mechanical durability. 
 
The previously allotted change order allowance of $37,000 is being used to similarly 
change the chemical distribution piping material (outside of the pump skids), and to add 
more piping to several more dosing points requested by operations staff. Therefore, there 
is not enough approved change order budget to cover the additional pump skid costs.  

 

 

169



 
Here is a breakdown of the project budgets approved to date:  
   
 Budget Status 
Design (Trussell Technologies) $68,506.00  Completed 
Awarded Construction Bid (MPE) $377,000.00  In Progress 
Previously Authorized Change Order Allowance $37,000.00  In Progress 

Previously Authorized Total: $482,506.00   

Change Sulfuric Pump Skids to PVDF $58,273.95  
Request for 

Authorization 
New Total: $540,779.95   

 
 
FUNDING 

     
The Reclamation Project financial stakeholders have provided approval via email to 
CAWD for the additional project cost of $58,273.95. 
 
 
Attachment: 

1. Budget approval emails from Reclamation Management Committee financial 
stakeholders 

170



1

Patrick Treanor

From: Heuck, David <heuckd@pebblebeach.com>
Sent: Friday, June 10, 2022 12:30 PM
To: JJ West; reitzb; Patrick Treanor
Cc: jhuston@ncga.org
Subject: RE: Seeking Change Order Approval for Sulfuric Acid Project

This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or 
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
approved 
 

From: JJ West <jjwest@mpccpb.org>  
Sent: Friday, June 10, 2022 12:29 PM 
To: Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com>; 'Patrick Treanor' <Treanor@cawd.org> 
Cc: Heuck, David <heuckd@pebblebeach.com>; Joe Huston <jhuston@ncga.org> 
Subject: RE: Seeking Change Order Approval for Sulfuric Acid Project 
 
MPCC approves the change order and the additional $58,273.95. 
 

 

JJ West 
General Manager 
Monterey Peninsula Country Club 
 
3000 Club Road 
Pebble Beach, CA 93953 
T: 831.333.2200 
F: 831.655.3049 
www.mpccpb.org 
 

 

 
 
From: Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com>  
Sent: Friday, June 10, 2022 11:58 AM 
To: 'Patrick Treanor' <Treanor@cawd.org> 
Cc: Heuck, David <heuckd@pebblebeach.com>; JJ West <jjwest@mpccpb.org>; Joe Huston <jhuston@ncga.org> 
Subject: RE: Seeking Change Order Approval for Sulfuric Acid Project 
 
Patrick: I am forwarding your request to the RMC financial stakeholders cc’d above for their feedback and/or questions 
to you and me. 
Thank you for the detailed explanation of the additional funding request. 
 
David, Joe and JJ: Please see Patrick’s request and background related to the need for another increase to the cost of the 
Sulfuric Acid Project. 
This project will benefit our MFRO system by allowing greater bulk chemical storage, will allow for future increases in RO 
production and will supply a far superior level of safety for the CAWD Staff. 
 
Please feel free to reach out to Patrick and/or me with any questions, comments or approvals you may have. 
 
Thanks, 
br 

171

Treanor
Highlight

Treanor
Highlight

Treanor
Highlight

Treanor
Highlight



2

 
Brent Reitz 
831‐277‐7897 cell 
Director of Energy & Water Conservation 
Pebble Beach Company 
 

From: Patrick Treanor <Treanor@cawd.org>  
Sent: Friday, June 10, 2022 11:25 AM 
To: Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com> 
Subject: Seeking Change Order Approval for Sulfuric Acid Project 
 
Hi Brent, 
 
I am seeking approval from the Reclamation Project financial backers for additional costs associated with the “Sulfuric 
Acid and Citric Acid Storage and Feed Systems Project”. The additional cost amount needed is $58,273.95. 
 
The cost increase is to allow for changing the Sulfuric Acid chemical pumping skids from a CPVC solvent weld pipe/valve 
system to a PVDF fused pipe/valve system. This is an after the fact change to the design that is recommended due to a 
recent staff chemical exposure incident that has resulted in changes to risk tolerances. The incident occurred in 
December 2021 (three months after the project construction contract was signed) and involved a chemical leak that lead 
to an operator being sprayed in the face with a hazardous/corrosive chemical at the MF/RO Facility. Luckily the exposure 
to the face did not lead to any lasting injury, however the incident has led to a change in CAWD’s acceptance standard 
for chemical piping to a higher level than was previously accepted. The fused PVDF piping will have a longer life and have 
less risk of failure due to the heat fused joints and higher mechanical durability. 
 
The previously allotted change order allowance of $37,000 is being used to similarly change the chemical distribution 
piping material (outside of the pump skids), and to add more piping to several more dosing points requested by 
operations staff. Therefore, I don’t have enough approved budget to cover the additional pump skid costs.   
 
Let me know if you have any questions or need additional information. Below is a summary of the costs to date for the 
“Sulfuric Acid and Citric Acid Storage and Feed Systems Project”: 
 
Project Cost Summary   
Design (Trussell Technologies)  $68,506.00  
Awarded Construction Bid (MPE)  $377,000.00  
Previously Authorized Change Order Allowance  $37,000.00  

Previously Authorized Total:  $482,506.00  

Change Sulfuric Pump Skids to PVDF  $58,273.95  
New Total:  $540,779.95  

 
Thanks, 
_______________________________________ 
Patrick	Treanor,	P.E.		I 	Plant	Engineer  
Office: 831-624-1248 
Carmel Area Wastewater District     

172



1

Patrick Treanor

From: Joe Huston <jhuston@ncga.org>
Sent: Friday, June 10, 2022 12:31 PM
To: JJ West; reitzb; Patrick Treanor
Cc: heuckd@pebblebeach.com
Subject: RE: Seeking Change Order Approval for Sulfuric Acid Project

This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or 
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
Approved. 
 
Joe 
  

From: JJ West <jjwest@mpccpb.org>  
Sent: Friday, June 10, 2022 12:29 PM 
To: Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com>; 'Patrick Treanor' <Treanor@cawd.org> 
Cc: Heuck, David <heuckd@pebblebeach.com>; Joe Huston <jhuston@ncga.org> 
Subject: RE: Seeking Change Order Approval for Sulfuric Acid Project 
  
MPCC approves the change order and the additional $58,273.95. 
  

 

JJ West 
General Manager 
Monterey Peninsula Country Club 
  
3000 Club Road 
Pebble Beach, CA 93953 
T: 831.333.2200 
F: 831.655.3049 
www.mpccpb.org 
  

  

  
  
From: Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com>  
Sent: Friday, June 10, 2022 11:58 AM 
To: 'Patrick Treanor' <Treanor@cawd.org> 
Cc: Heuck, David <heuckd@pebblebeach.com>; JJ West <jjwest@mpccpb.org>; Joe Huston <jhuston@ncga.org> 
Subject: RE: Seeking Change Order Approval for Sulfuric Acid Project 
  
Patrick: I am forwarding your request to the RMC financial stakeholders cc’d above for their feedback and/or questions 
to you and me. 
Thank you for the detailed explanation of the additional funding request. 
  
David, Joe and JJ: Please see Patrick’s request and background related to the need for another increase to the cost of the 
Sulfuric Acid Project. 
This project will benefit our MFRO system by allowing greater bulk chemical storage, will allow for future increases in RO 
production and will supply a far superior level of safety for the CAWD Staff. 
  
Please feel free to reach out to Patrick and/or me with any questions, comments or approvals you may have. 
  

173

Treanor
Highlight

Treanor
Highlight



2

Thanks, 
br 
  
Brent Reitz 
831‐277‐7897 cell 
Director of Energy & Water Conservation 
Pebble Beach Company 
  

From: Patrick Treanor <Treanor@cawd.org>  
Sent: Friday, June 10, 2022 11:25 AM 
To: Reitz, Brent <reitzb@pebblebeach.com> 
Subject: Seeking Change Order Approval for Sulfuric Acid Project 
  
Hi Brent, 
  
I am seeking approval from the Reclamation Project financial backers for additional costs associated with the “Sulfuric 
Acid and Citric Acid Storage and Feed Systems Project”. The additional cost amount needed is $58,273.95. 
  
The cost increase is to allow for changing the Sulfuric Acid chemical pumping skids from a CPVC solvent weld pipe/valve 
system to a PVDF fused pipe/valve system. This is an after the fact change to the design that is recommended due to a 
recent staff chemical exposure incident that has resulted in changes to risk tolerances. The incident occurred in 
December 2021 (three months after the project construction contract was signed) and involved a chemical leak that lead 
to an operator being sprayed in the face with a hazardous/corrosive chemical at the MF/RO Facility. Luckily the exposure 
to the face did not lead to any lasting injury, however the incident has led to a change in CAWD’s acceptance standard 
for chemical piping to a higher level than was previously accepted. The fused PVDF piping will have a longer life and have 
less risk of failure due to the heat fused joints and higher mechanical durability. 
  
The previously allotted change order allowance of $37,000 is being used to similarly change the chemical distribution 
piping material (outside of the pump skids), and to add more piping to several more dosing points requested by 
operations staff. Therefore, I don’t have enough approved budget to cover the additional pump skid costs.   
  
Let me know if you have any questions or need additional information. Below is a summary of the costs to date for the 
“Sulfuric Acid and Citric Acid Storage and Feed Systems Project”: 
  
Project Cost Summary   
Design (Trussell Technologies)  $68,506.00  
Awarded Construction Bid (MPE)  $377,000.00  
Previously Authorized Change Order Allowance  $37,000.00  

Previously Authorized Total:  $482,506.00  
Change Sulfuric Pump Skids to PVDF  $58,273.95  

New Total:  $540,779.95  
  
Thanks, 
_______________________________________ 
Patrick	Treanor,	P.E.		I 	Plant	Engineer  
Office: 831-624-1248 
Carmel Area Wastewater District     

174



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-39 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL CHANGE ORDER BUDGET IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $58,273.95 FOR THE SULFURIC ACID AND CITRIC 

ACID STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEMS PROJECT #18-26 
 

-oOo- 
 

 WHEREAS, Carmel Area Wastewater District would like to enhance sulfuric acid 

pipe systems being constructed to reduce probability of chemical leaks; and 

WHEREAS, the Reclamation Management Committee financial stakeholders have 

provided written approval for the additional cost via email; and 

 WHEREAS, the Contractor furnishing the pump skids has provided a quote to 

change the sulfuric acid pump skids piping from chlorinated polyvinyl chloride (CPVC) 

to polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) for $58,273.95. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize additional change order budget 

in the amount of $58,273.95, for the chemical pump skid piping change to PVDF. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on June 30, 2022, by the following vote: 

 AYES:     BOARD MEMBERS: 

 NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

 ABSENT:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

       ______________________________ 
       Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 

175



STAFF REPORT     
 
         
To:   Board of Directors  
 
From:   Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 
Date:    June 30, 2022   
 
Subject:         Acceptance of final completion of the 2022 Manhole Frame and Lid 

Replacement Project #22-02 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 2022-40 accepting the 
completed project and directing the General Manager to file a Notice of Completion for 
the subject project.   
 
DISCUSSION 
The 2022 Manhole Frame and Lid Replacement Project consisted of replacing old 
corroded and deteriorated cast iron manhole frame and lids at 30 locations within 
Carmel-by-the-Sea and the County of Monterey. On April 28, 2022, under resolution 
2022-18, the project was awarded by the Board of Directors to Coastal Paving & 
Excavating, Inc. (Contractor) for the amount of $55,700, including extra work.  The final 
cost of the project is $48,900, including extra work. 
 
This will reduce the impact of flooding that can overwhelm the sewer collection system, 
by installing bolt down manhole frame and lids at locations that historically have flooded.  
Sealed manhole covers and new frames are anticipated to provide a barrier for inflow 
from heavy rains. Twenty-two of the manholes are located in the Mission Fields area and 
the remaining seven manholes are at various other locations within the District. There was 
one manhole frame and lid added to this project located on Canada Drive. This addition 
to the contract was an extra work item. The work began on May 16, 2022 and was 
completed on June 7, 2022.  
 
All work by the Contractor, was inspected by District staff. All work was completed in 
conformance with the District plans and specifications. Staff recommends that the Board 
of Directors accept the project and direct the General Manager to file a Notice of 
Completion with the Monterey County Recorder’s Office.  
 
FUNDING 
The FY 21/22 CAWD Collections Capital Budget includes $55,700 for this project. 
Attachment:  Resolution 2022-40 
District Engineer Signed Notice of Completion 
 

 

176



 

 
 

Barbara Buikema 
General Manager 

Ed Waggoner 
Operations Superintendent 

Robert R. Wellington 
Legal Counsel 

 
 
 

Carmel Area  Wastewater  District 
P.O. Box 221428 Ca r m el   California 93922  •:• (831)  624-1248 •:•  FAX  (831) 624-0811 

 
 
 
 
 

Board of Directors 
 

Gregory D'Ambrosio 
Michael K. Rachel 
Robert Siegfried  

Ken White 
Charlotte F. Townsend 

 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 

2022 MANHOLE FRAME & LID REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT 

 
 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that, I, Rachél L. Lather, Principal Engineer of the Carmel 
Area Wastewater District, Monterey County, California, on the 9th day of June, 2022 did file 
with the Secretary of said District my Certificate of Completion of the work described in 
the Contract awarded to and entered into with Coastal Paving & Excavating, Inc. on May 6th, 
2022 in accordance with the Plans and Specifications for said work filed with the Secretary  
and approved by the Board of Directors of said District. 

 

 
That said work was completed on June 7, 2022 and that acceptance of said work is 
recommended for approval by resolution of the Board of Directors of said District to be 
adopted on June 30, 2022. 

 
 

That said work consisted of the performance of all work and the furnishing  of all labor, 
materials, equipment, and  utility and  transportation services required  to complete  the 
Contract as described in the plans and specifications. 

 
 
 

Dated:  June 9, 2022 
 

 
 
 
RACHÉL LATHER, M.S., P.E. 
PRINCIPAL ENGINEER 

 
 
 
 
 

177



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-40 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING COMPLETED PROJECT AND  
DIRECTING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO FILE A NOTICE OF COMPLETION  
FOR THE 2022 MANHOLE FRAME AND LID REPLACEMENT PROJECT #22-02 

-oOo- 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area Wastewater District, 
Monterey County, California, that:  
 WHEREAS, the Principal Engineer has provided the Board an accounting of the cost of   
Project (the “Project”) in the amount of $48,900 This amount is within the amount the Board 
previously authorized the General Manager to approve, making the total cost of the project 
$48,900; and 
 WHEREAS, the Principal Engineer of said District has filed with the Secretary of said 
District an Engineer’s Certificate regarding completion of the construction of the Project done 
under and pursuant to the contract between said District and Coastal Paving & Excavating, Inc. 
dated June 9, 2022; and 
 WHEREAS, it appears to the satisfaction of this Board that said project provided for 
under said contract has been completed as provided in said contract and the plans and 
specifications therein referred to and that the work was completed on June 7, 2022. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED as follows: 
 1.  That acceptance of said 2022 Manhole Frame & Lid Replacement Project be, and it is 
hereby made and ordered in accordance with California Civil Code §9200(a). 
 2.  That in accordance with California Civil Code Section §9204 the General Manager is 
directed to file for record with the County Recorder of the County of Monterey a notice of 
completion as of the date of acceptance by the District of 2022 Manhole Frame & Lid 
Replacement Project as required by law. 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on June 30, 2022 by the following vote: 
 AYES:     BOARD MEMBERS: 
 NOES:     BOARD MEMBERS: 
 ABSENT:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:   BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
        _____________________________ 
       Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 

178



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
 
 
To:                 Board of Directors 

 
From:            Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 

 
Date:             March 31, 2022 

 
Subject: Fiscal Year 22-23 Manhole Rehabilitation Project # 21-06 
    
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve Resolution 2022-41 to authorize the 
General Manager to bid and award the construction contract for the fiscal year 22-23 
Manhole Rehabilitation Project and return to your Board on July 28, 2022, with results of the 
bidding. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
As part of the ongoing efforts to reduce inflow and infiltration due to leaky manholes in the 
District that are near water bodies and drainageways, the Collections Department has 
identified 52 manholes that need to be lined this fiscal year. This will prevent sewage from 
exfiltrating in areas that are near water bodies and is part of the efforts to satisfy the River 
Watch agreement.   
 
Manhole rehabilitation locations were determined based on the condition assessment of 
manholes and their location near drainageways and water bodies.  Figure 1.0 shows the 
location of the manholes to be rehabilitated. 
 
In order to proceed with bidding the projects, your Board will need to approve the attached 
resolution authorizing the General Manager to invite bids for the project and return on July 
28, 2022, to recommend award of the contract. 
 
FUNDING 
Funding is available in the 2022-2023 Collections Operating Budget for Manholes in the 
amount of $362,300.  The Engineer’s Estimate is $275,000. 
 
Attachment:   Resolution 2022-41 
 
 

  

179



 
Figure 1.0- Manhole Rehabilitation Locations 

 

 
 
MH # Location of Manhole MH Material 
O601 200 feet S. of Pebble Beach Gate Concrete 
O6126 Mid-block north of 4th on San Antonio Concrete 

O606 400 feet N. of San Antonio & 4th Concrete 
O603 200 feet N. of San Antonio & 4th Concrete 
O605 Mid-block north of 4th on San Antonio Concrete 
O604 Intersection of San Antonio & 4th  Concrete 
O623 Intersection of N. Carmelo & 4th Concrete 
O622 200 feet North of Intersection of 4th and N. Carmelo Brick & Mortar 
O650 Intersection of Carmelo & 4th  Concrete 
O648 80 feet W. of N. Camino Real & 4th  Concrete 
O647 Intersection of N. Camino Real & 4th Concrete 
O646 N. of Camino Real & 4th Brick & Mortar 
O633 100 feet N. of Palou & Casanova Brick & Mortar 
O634 Intersection of Palou & 4th Brick & Mortar 
O628 Intersection of Monte Verde & 4th Concrete 
O627 100 feet N. of Monte Verde & 4th Brick & Mortar 
O664 200 feet south of Intersection of Lincoln and 4th  Brick & Mortar 
O665 Private Driveway off 4th and Lincoln Brick & Mortar 
O662 Private Driveway off 4th and Lincoln Brick & Mortar 
O661 Private Drive 200 feet N. 4th & Lincoln Brick & Mortar 
O660 Mid-block south of 3rd on Lincoln Brick & Mortar 
O659 Intersection of Lincoln & 3rd  Brick & Mortar 
O624 Intersection of Monte Verde & 3rd  Brick & Mortar 
O684 Intersection of Dolores & 4th  Concrete 
O6101 Intersection of Mission & 4th Brick & Mortar 

180



O6110 Intersection of Junipero & 4th  Brick & Mortar 
O6112 Intersection of Torres & 4th Brick & Mortar 
O6113 Mid-block North of Torres & 5th  Brick & Mortar 
O6114 Intersection of Torres & 5th Brick & Mortar 
O6116 Mid-block North of Junipero & 6th Brick & Mortar 
O6118 Intersection of Torres & 6th  Brick & Mortar 
O6119 Intersection of Junipero & 6th Brick & Mortar 
O6120 Intersection of Ocean & Junipero Concrete 
O699 50 feet S. of Ocean & San Carlos Brick & Mortar 
O787 Intersection of Santa Rita & 6th Brick & Mortar 
O744 Mid-block east of Ocean & Forest Brick & Mortar 
O738 200 feet east of Intersection of Ocean and Forest Brick & Mortar 
O737 Mid-block east of Ocean & Forest Brick & Mortar 
O735 Intersection of Ocean & Randall Brick & Mortar 
O767 Mid-block North of Guadalupe & 5th  Brick & Mortar 
O766 Intersection of Guadalupe & 4th  Brick & Mortar 
O759 Intersection of Carpenter & 5th  Brick & Mortar 
O757 Mid-block north of 5th on east side of Carpenter Brick & Mortar 
O748 Intersection of Escolle & Perry Newberry Brick & Mortar 
O749 Intersection of Perry Newberry & 5th Brick & Mortar 
O753 Intersection of Lobos & 4th  Brick & Mortar 
O716 Intersection of Lobos & 3rd  Brick & Mortar 
O713 Mid-block north of 3rd on east side of Carpenter Brick & Mortar 
O712 Mid-block north of 3rd on west side of Carpenter Brick & Mortar 
O778 150 feet N. of Santa Fe & 6th  Brick & Mortar 
O779 Intersection of Santa Fe & 6th Brick & Mortar 
O775 Mid-block north of 6th on Santa Fe Brick & Mortar 
 

181



Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals will be received by the District Board, 
Carmel Area Wastewater District, at the District office, 3945 Rio Road, until 

 
10:00 A.M. Wednesday, JULY 26, 2022 

 
at which time they will be publicly opened and read for performing the work as follows: 

 
Fiscal Year 22-23 MANHOLE REHABILITATION PROJECT 

  
 

The results of the bidding will be reported to the District Board within thirty (60) days of 
the date of the bid opening at which time if bids are found to be acceptable by the 
District Board, written notice of award will be given to the lowest responsive and 

responsible Bidder. However, said District Board reserves its right to reject any or all 
bids, to waive irregularities of any bids or to re-advertise for all or any part of the work 

contemplated. 
No bidder shall withdraw his bid for a period of sixty (60) calendar days after the date 

set by the Board for the opening thereof. 
 

Specifications and proposal forms may be secured at no charge by emailing the 
District’s Principal Engineer at downstream@cawd.org and requesting the documents. 

        
                    Post July 8 and 15, 2022 

 
 
 

182

mailto:downstream@cawd.org


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-41 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO INVITE BIDS FOR 

CONSTRUCTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 22-23 MANHOLE REHABILITATION 
PROJECT #21-06 

 
-oOo- 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has received and reviewed staff’s report 

regarding the 22-23 Manhole Rehabilitation Project (Project) invitation for bids; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District, as follows: 

1. That the fiscal year 22-23 Manhole Rehabilitation Project plans and 

specifications are hereby authorized for bidding. 

2. That sealed proposals or bids are hereby called for with regard to the 

aforesaid Project. 

3. That the Secretary of the Board of Directors of the District is hereby directed 

to publish a Notice requesting bids for the aforesaid Project once a week for two (2) 

consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation published in the District.   Said 

publications shall not be less than five (5) days apart and the first publication shall be at 

least ten (10) days before the date fixed for the opening of bids.  Said Notice shall refer to 

the plans and specifications on file in the office of the District Secretary. 

4. Sealed proposals or bids shall be delivered to the secretary of the Board of 

the Carmel Area Wastewater District on or before the time and date specified in the 

published Notice, at the office of the District, 3945 Rio Road, Carmel, California, 93922, 

said time being not less than ten (10) days from the time of the first publication of the 

Notice.   Bids will be publicly opened and examined on said date and hour by the District 

Secretary and will be referred to and considered by the Carmel Area Wastewater District 

Board at its next regular meeting following the opening of the bids in the Board Room of 

the District office, 3945 Rio Road, Carmel, California. 

 

183



 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on June 30, 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES:     BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:     BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:   BOARD MEMBERS:  

  

 

_______________________________ 
 Ken White President of the Board 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board      

184



Staff Report 
 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
     
Subject: 2022 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation 

Plan (MJHM) 
 
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Carmel Area Wastewater District Board of Directors adopt the 
2022 Monterey County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan:  

• Volume: Planning Area Wide Elements and,  
• Volume 2: Carmel Area Wastewater District Annex N 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and the California Governors’ Office 
of Emergency Services (Cal OES) have completed a preliminary review of the 2022 
Monterey County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan (MJHMP). FEMA and Cal 
OES have given tentative approval of the plan, pending local adoption. The approval of the 
plan ensures the Carmel Area Wastewater District’s eligibility and pre-qualification for 
potential federal pre-and post-disaster funding. The plan includes hazard identification, 
risk and vulnerability assessments, and mitigation strategies to reduce vulnerability and 
risk from hazards and reduce the severity of the effects of hazards on people, property, and 
the environment. 

DISCUSSION 
 
Monterey County and Carmel Area Wastewater District is potentially vulnerable to a wide 
range of natural and man-made hazards. These hazards can threaten the life and safety of 
residents and visitors and have the potential to damage or destroy both public and private 
property and disrupt the local economy and overall quality of life.  

  

185



While the threats from hazard events may never be fully eliminated, there is much that can 
be done to lessen their potential impact. The purpose of hazard mitigation is to implement 
and sustain actions that reduce vulnerability and risk from hazards or reduce the severity 
of the effects of hazards on people, property, and the environment.  

The Disaster Mitigation Act (DMA) of 2000 (Public Law 106-390) requires state and local 
government agencies to prepare comprehensive Hazard Mitigation Plans in order to be 
eligible to receive pre-and post-disaster mitigation funding from the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA). The DMA also requires the Hazard Mitigation Plan to be 
monitored, evaluated, and updated within a five-year cycle to remain eligible for disaster 
related benefits under the DMA.  

The 2022 Monterey County Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (MJHMP) is 
a comprehensive update to the 2016 Monterey County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard 
Mitigation Plan and represents the third iteration of the Monterey County Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan, which was initially adopted in 2007.The planning 
area for the MJHMP encompasses the entire geographic area of Monterey County and 
includes the following Participating Jurisdictions: Monterey County, the cities of Carmel-
by-the-Sea, Del Rey Oaks, Gonzales, Greenfield, King, Marina, Monterey, Pacific Grove, 
Salinas, Sand City, Seaside, and Soledad, as well as the Monterey County Water Resources 
Agency, the Carmel Area Wastewater District, Monterey One Water, the Monterey 
Regional Waste Management District, and the Moss Landing Harbor District. 

The 2022 update to the MJHMP was developed by the MJHMP Steering Committee, made 
up of participants from the County and Participating Jurisdictions. The Steering Committee 
served as an advisory body on hazard and mitigation action priorities both for the County 
as a whole and each jurisdiction individually, with Monterey County Office of Emergency 
Services as the Planning Lead. The Monterey County MJHMP: 

• Provides an explanation of prevalent hazards within the County and describes how 
hazards may affect the County and participating jurisdictions differently based 
upon various relationships to natural hazards. 

• Includes a discussion of hazard location, size of a typical event, historical 
occurrences, and the probability of future occurrences for each identified hazard.  

• Identifies risks to vulnerable assets, both people and property.  
• Provides a mitigation strategy that responds to the identified vulnerabilities within 

each community and provides prescriptions or actions to achieve the greatest risk 
reduction based upon available resources. 

• Pools resources from throughout the County and creates a uniform local hazard 
mitigation plan that can be consistently implemented.  

• Ensures eligibility for Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and Cal 
OES grants 

186



The Carmel Area Wastewater District Annex provides specific details on the District’s 
planning process, a District specific risk and vulnerability assessment, and a mitigation 
strategy that responds to the identified vulnerabilities within to achieve the greatest risk 
reduction based upon available resources. 

The plan underwent review by the County and Participating Jurisdictions, the general 
public (Review period occurred from December 2021 to March 2022) and received 
Approval Pending Adoption from FEMA on June 14, 2022. 

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT 

The Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation revision process brought together 
representatives of involved stakeholder agencies and organizations who could have a role 
in mitigation planning and implementation of mitigation strategies as identified in the 
plan. Monterey County, the cities of Carmel-by-the-Sea, Del Rey Oaks, Gonzales, 
Greenfield, King, Marina, Monterey, Pacific Grove, Salinas, Sand City, Seaside, and 
Soledad, as well as the Monterey County Water Resources Agency, the Carmel Area 
Wastewater District, Monterey One Water, the Monterey Regional Waste Management 
District, and the Moss Landing Harbor District participated in the planning and completion 
of the plan. 

FINANCING 

There is no fiscal impact for the approval of the MJHMP. However, implementation of the 
MJHMP will require funding and staff resources. Future funding requests will come before 
this Board for consideration as part of the budget process or on a case-by-case basis 

 
 
Note:  The MJHMP is a very large document.  Therefore, we have posted it on the District’s 
website (under the Board Meeting tab) for viewing purposes. 
Volume 1  460 pages (Planning Area Wide Elements- various pages)  
Volume 2 446 pages Carmel Area Wastewater District Annex N - page 347) 
 
If you would like a hard copy of the document, please call the Administrative office and 
arrangements will be made to have one printed for you. After the June 30th board meeting 
this report will post at the following link on the District website: County of Monterey 
Multi- Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan- Volume I & II 
 
 

187

https://www.cawd.org/2022-monterey-county-multi-jurisdicational-hazard-mitigation-plan-mjhpm#/body_file-25c8dd18-9e3a-4ec9-a52e-57f3d941fc5d
https://www.cawd.org/2022-monterey-county-multi-jurisdicational-hazard-mitigation-plan-mjhpm#/body_file-25c8dd18-9e3a-4ec9-a52e-57f3d941fc5d


RESOLUTION NO. 2022-42 

A RESOLUTION OF CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE 
2022 MONTEREY COUNTY  

MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN (MJHMP) 

-oOo- 

WHEREAS, the Carmel Area Wastewater District is vulnerable to natural hazards 
that may result in loss of life and property, economic hardship, and threats to the public 
health and safety; and 

WHEREAS, Carmel Area Wastewater District anticipates climate change will 
exacerbate the severity, frequency, and impacts of natural hazards; and 

WHEREAS, pro-active mitigation of known hazards before a disaster event can 
reduce or eliminate long-term risk to life and property; and  

WHEREAS, the federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 requires all cities, counties, 
and special districts to have adopted a Hazard Mitigation Plan to receive pre-and post-
disaster mitigation funding from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA); 
and  

WHEREAS, a coalition of Monterey County local governments and special districts 
embarked on a planning process to prepare for and lessen the impacts of specified hazards 
by updating the Monterey County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan (MJHMP), 
which is the blueprint for reducing the Operational Area's vulnerability to disasters and 
hazards; and 

WHEREAS, the update to the MJHMP has been prepared in accordance with 
federal laws, including the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance 
Act, as amended; Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, as amended; the National Flood 
Insurance Act of 1968, as amended; and the National Dam Safety Program Act, as 
amended; and 

WHEREAS, the MJHMP identifies mitigation goals and actions to reduce or 
eliminate long-term risk to people and property in the Carmel Area Wastewater District 
from the impacts of future hazards and disasters; and 

WHEREAS, the MJHMP planning partnership and Carmel Area Wastewater 
District completed a coordinated planning process that engaged the public, assessed the 
risk and vulnerability to the impacts of natural hazards, developed a mitigation strategy 
consistent with a set of uniform goals and objectives, and created a plan for implementing, 
evaluating, and revising the strategy; and 

 

188



WHEREAS, each jurisdiction has been responsible for the review and approval of 
their individual sections of the Plan, and the Plan presents the accumulated information 
in a unified framework to ensure a comprehensive and coordinated hazard mitigation 
plan that covers the entire Monterey County Operational Area planning area that is 
aligned with the goals, objectives, and priorities of the State's multi-hazard mitigation 
plan; and 

WHEREAS, the result of the countywide organizational effort is a two volume 
Hazard Mitigation Plan, which will result in a Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) and California Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) approved multi-
jurisdictional, multi-hazard mitigation plan; and 

WHEREAS, the MJHMP has been reviewed by the California Governor’s Office of 
Emergency Services (Cal OES) and FEMA, Region IX, and have approved it contingent 
upon its official adoption by the participating governing bodies; and 

WHEREAS, adoption of the Plan will allow the jurisdictional partners to 
collectively and individually become eligible to apply for hazard mitigation project 
funding and demonstrates its commitment to hazard mitigation and achieving the goals 
outlined in the Monterey County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors, finds this 
action exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15262 (feasibility and planning studies) and Section 15061(b)(3) 
(common sense exemption). 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors, hereby adopts the 2022 
Monterey County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan, consisting of Volume 1 in 
its entirety and Carmel Area Wastewater District’s Annex in Volume 2. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors, resolves to integrate the 
Monterey County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan by reference into the Public 
Safety Element of the General Plan in accordance with the requirements of Government 
Code sections 65302, 65302.6, and 8685.9. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors directs staff to: 

1. Use the Plan to guide pre-and post-disaster hazard mitigation. 
2. Pursue implementation of the identified mitigation actions subject to the 

limitations of available of funding and staff. 
3. Coordinate the strategies in the plan with other planning programs and 

mechanisms under its jurisdictional authority. 
4. Continue support of ongoing countywide mitigation efforts. 
5. Continue to participate in the regional planning partnership as described by the 

MJHMP. 

189



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Carmel Area Wastewater District will submit this 
adopted resolution to the California Office of Emergency Services and FEMA Region IX 
officials to enable the Plan's final approval in accordance with the requirements of the 
Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 and to establish conformance with the requirements of AB 
2140 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area Wastewater 
District at a regular meeting duly held on June 30, 2022 by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: BOARDMEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS:  

 

     ______________________________  
     Ken White, President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 

190



Carmel Area Wastewater District 
WWTP Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project 

 
Construction Progress Report 

 
June 16th, 2022 

 

Prepared by: Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 
Contractor: Clark Bros Inc (CBI) 

  

  

 
             

191



Section 1: Project Summary 

Project Summary 
General Contractor  Clark Bros Inc 
Contract Value 
Contract Bid Amount  $7,291,500 
Change Orders Issued to Date  1 
Value Added Change 
Order Cost (1) 

% of Bid Amount $28,199.96  0.38% 

Non Value Added 
Change Order Cost (2) 

% of Bid Amount $47,839.58 0.66% 

Total Change Order 
Cost 

% of Bid Amount $76,039.54 1.0% 

Current Contract Value  $7,367,539.54 
Open/Pending Potential Change Orders (PCO) 1 
Contract Time 
Notice To Proceed September 7th, 2021 
Original Contract Time  550 Calendar Days 
Calendar Days Elapsed  281 Days 
Weather Days: Accepted to Date  0 Days 
Contract Change Order(s) Time Extension  0 Days 
Current Contract Completion Date  March 3rd, 2023 
Contract Progress Summary 
Total Project Time Expended  51% 
Total Project Construction Cost Expended  37% (not including retention) 

Notes: 
1. Value Added Change Orders include: District Requested Additional Work and 

Betterments 
2. Non Value Added Change Orders include: Design Issues, and 

Unforeseen/Differing Site Conditions  

192



Section 2: Work Performed This Month 

2.1 General 

Work focused on the Sludge Holding Tank construction this month due to pending 
deliveries of equipment and piping necessary for continuation of work in other areas. 
Several equipment deliveries were received over the past month for the Influent Pump 
Station, Headworks, and 3W System, but a few more deliveries are needed (anticipated 
in July and August) to allow mechanical work in these areas to commence in earnest. 

2.1.1 Submittals 

Submittals reviewed this month included equipment O&M Manuals and concrete 
resurfacing materials. 

2.1.2 PLC Programming 

PLC programming by Frisch Engineering is in progress. 

2.2 Site Work 

2.2.1 Potholing/Locating Existing Utilities 

None. 

2.3 Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 

The elevated concrete platform and stairs were built this month; wrapping up the 
majority of the concrete tank structural work. New buried sludge piping that will feed 
the new tank was tied-in to the existing system piping.  

2.4 Influent Pump Station Rehab 

Clark Bros removed the old generator exhaust muffler on the roof of Influent Building. 
Two of four new Influent Pumps were delivered this month. 

2.5 Headworks Rehab 

Conduit lay out and rough-in came to a stopping point this month inside the 
Headworks structure. The new mechanical headworks screens were delivered.  

2.6 Chlorination Building Rehab/3W System Improvements 

The concrete was placed for the 3W bladder tank concrete pad. The bladder tank was 
delivered. 

193



2.7 Effluent Pump Station Rehab 

No work observed. 

Section 3: Project Issues 

In March 2022, Clark Bros informed CAWD of delays in procurement of the Motor 
Control Center (MCC) equipment. The MCC equipment will not arrive until September. 
Other major equipment will start arriving on-site in June, July and August. Clark Bros is 
currently working on a revised project schedule reflecting new equipment delivery 
dates.  

Section 4: RFI and Submittals Review Summary 

The following table contains a summary of RFI/Clarifications and Submittals to date: 

 Total Number  
Processed 

Number Received   
in Current Month 

RFI/Clarifications 36 1 

Submittals 133 3 

 

Section 5: Change Order Summary 

Potential change orders (PCOs) are being generated for differing site conditions, owner 
requested changes, and design issues.  

 

Total Number 
Processed to 

Date 

Open PCO 
Pending 

Quote/Approval 

Number 
Generated in 

Current Month 

Total Cost 
Approved to 

Date 

Potential Change 
Orders (PCO) 

6 1 1 NA 

Change Orders 1 0 0 $76,039.54 

 

194



Section 6: Project Schedule and Budget 

6.1 Schedule 

The Baseline CPM Schedule is being revised based on new estimated equipment 
procurement lead times. 

6.2 Budget 

At this time the approved change orders amount to 1% of the project cost. The project 
management team is continually monitoring the costs of potential changes to manage 
costs. 

Currently the amount to be paid to CBI is 37% (not including retention) of the total 
approved budget (41% with retention). 

Section 7: Photos 

• Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 
• Influent Pump Station 
• Headworks Rehab 
• Chlorination Building Rehab/3W System Improvements 

195



 Information/Discussion

196



Photos:
Sludge Holding Tank 

Replacement

197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



Photos:
Influent Pump Station Rehab

210



211



Photos:
Headworks Rehab

212



213



214



Photos:
Chlorination Building/3W System 

Improvements

215



216



 
STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD) – Regular Board 

Meeting on May 27, 2022 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Agenda items from the May 27, 2022, meeting that are of specific interest to this District: 

 
• Total cash balance at the end of April 2022 was $28.4M; of that amount $19.8M was 

designated for Capital Acquisition and Outlay Reserves. Property taxes comprise 
roughly 80% of District revenues with user fees making up 22% of total actual cost of 
wastewater operations.  
 

• Budget Summary data shows revenues through April 2022 of $24.0M or 80% of 
budget and expenditures of $17.5M or 58% of budget. 
 

• Forest Lake Reservoir is holding 96 million gallons (MG) or 295-acre feet (AF) of 
recycled water.  This represents 83% of the permitted capacity of 115MG.  The 
current storage volume is 5% below the historic average of 101MG or 310AF.  
 

• Average daily wastewater flow of 392,000 gallons per day (GPD) was measured in 
April at the PBCSD-Carmel gate. This represents 34% of the total flow at the Carmel 
Area Wastewater District (CAWD) treatment facility. The measured PBCSD flow was 
20% below the five-year average of 491,000GPD for the month of April.  The CAWD 
total flows were 15% below the five-year average of 1,383,000GPD for April. 
 

• Total irrigation water demand for the 2022 calendar year through April was 260-acre 
feet (AF). Total demand for the calendar year is 117% above the 5-year average of 120 
AF through April. 2022 irrigation demand to-date through April is 41% above last 
year’s end of April total to-date demand of 185AF.  The month of April reflected a 
net storage decrease of approximately 4MG. 
 
 

 

217



• All five alternative source water projects were brought back online in late April and 
are currently producing a combined 84,000GPD.  Total production for 2022 calendar 
year through mid-May was approximately 4.1MG.  
 

• Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system upgrade continues to be 
dependent upon material supply issues.  Implementation of this project looks 
unlikely to commence before July.  
 

• Final design documents were received on Cathodic Protection Project.  Staff will 
coordinate with CAWD to review final design in June.    
 

• Average daily wastewater flows measured in million gallons per day (MG) show: 
 

MONTH TOTAL CAWD FLOW PBCSD FLOW PBCSD 
July – 21 37.117 25.481 11.636 31.350% 
Aug – 21 36.578 25.206 11.372 31.090% 
Sept – 21 31.800 22.717 9.083 28.563% 
Oct – 21 35.625 24.518 11.107 31.177% 
Nov – 21 33.282 22.731 10.551 31.702% 
Dec – 21 55.861 35.261 20.600 36.877% 
Jan – 22 40.807 26.530 14.277 34.987% 
Feb – 22 31.191 21.369 9.822 31.490% 
Mar – 22 34.430 23.496 10.934 31.757% 
Apr - 22 35.101 23.329 11.772 33.538% 

Total 371.792 250.638 121.154 32.586% 
 

218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226


	03.A 2021 - Employee Survey Results
	03.B 2021 - CAWD Employee Survey Comments
	04. CSRMA Presentation
	05.A Staff report Sewer User Fees 6-30-22
	05.B Rate Model 2022-23
	05.C Prop 218 Notice 2022-23
	06.A ORD 2022-03 Sewer Service Charges
	06.B Exhibit -Schedule A Rate Schedule 22-23
	22-23

	07. 5-26-22 Mtng Minutes
	CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS
	RESOLUTIONS

	08.  HW - MAY 2022 GL
	09. Stmt of Cash Receipts & Disbursements-May 2022
	0522
	2021-22 Board Packet graph1.pdf
	graph 1

	2021-22 Board Packet graph 2.pdf
	graph 2


	10.  CAWD Disbursements May 22
	11.  Reclamation Disbursements May 22
	12.  May 22 Financial Stmt
	13.A Collection Board Report May 2022R
	STAFF REPORT
	FROM: Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent
	RECOMMENDATION

	Permits Issued
	Maintenance
	Line Cleaning Table
	CCTV Progress Graph (River Watch Settlement Agreement Target)
	Manhole Inspection Table
	Riverwatch Update
	 Staff has completed the manhole inspection part of the settlement. The Principal Engineer will use this data to schedule rehabilitation or replacement of damaged or deteriorated manholes. Project 22-02 Manhole Frame & Lid Replacement Project exposed...
	 Once the CCTV inspections and Pump Station evaluations are completed, the Principal Engineer will use the information for the final Collection System Asset Management Plan.

	13.B Cleaning Map May 22
	13.C CCTV Map May 22
	14. Safety Staff Report - May '22
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	15. Treatment Facility Ops Report
	Brpt0322 Graph
	Brpt0322
	Brpt0422 Graph
	Brpt0422

	16. Laboratory Staff Report-May
	17. Implementation Plan Schedule 6-16-22
	18. Project Summaries 6-30-2022
	            ADP Workforce Now

	19.A Plant Ops Staff Report May 2022_Final
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION
	Training:
	 May 18th the Operations Superintendent attended an Operation Certification Information Training offered by the Monterey Bay Water Works Association on updated Certification Regulations for the State of California.
	 Staff continues to complete online training at the treatment facility from Target Solutions as Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) implements its new safety policies for the Exposure Control Plan updates for the COVID-19 virus.
	 Staff continues to participate in scheduled tailgate safety meetings in the digester building conference room.
	• Staff continues working with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor, on Project #18-01, the Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower Building, Chlorin...
	Meetings Attended
	 May 11, 2022, conference call with Peter VonLangen of the Central Coast Regional Board on Permit #93-72 violation of Chlorine Residual below 5 mg/L while sending water to the Forest Lake Reservoir.
	Discharge Permit Violations
	• There were no Reclamation Permit 93-72 discharge violations for the month of April 2022.
	  There were no violations of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 within the month of April 2022.
	FUNDING
	N/A-Informational item only

	19.B Reclamation violation May 10 2022
	20.  Maintenance Staff Report June 2022- V3
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	21. Engineering Staff Report  JUN 2022
	22.A Carmel Meadows_Staff Report
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	22.B RES 2022-27 Carmel Meadows Proj 19-03
	23.A Teleconferencing 06-30-22 Staff Report
	23.B RES 2022-28 Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings
	24.A Compliance w State Law 06-30-22 staff report
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	24.B  RES 2022-29  Compliance w State Law
	25.A  Appropriation Limit Staff Report 22-23
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION
	SUMMARY

	25.B  Appropriation Limit Calcs
	25.C  RES 2022-30 Appropriation Limit
	26.A Annual Budget FY 2022-23 Staff Report 1
	26.B  RES 2022-31 Annual Budget FY 2022-23
	22-23

	27.A Ratify Employee MOU 2022-24 Staff Report  06-30-22
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	27.B  Employee MOU 06-30-22
	27.C RES 2022-32 Employee MOU
	28.A Classif Titls-Nmbr of Posit & Salary Ranges Staff Report
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	28.B  Bureau of Labor Statisti
	28.C  RES 2022-33 Salary Resolution-final
	22-23  Monthly

	29.A  Defend or Managed Retreat Reserves  06-30-22
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	29.B  RES 2022-34 $1M Defend or Managed Retreat Reserve
	30.A Section 115 Funding  06-30-22
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	30.B  RES 2022-35  $100K Funding of Section 115
	31.A. Outsourcing HR To Beth Ingram 06-30-22
	31.B RES 2022-36 Outsource HR FY 2022-23
	RESOLUTION NO. 2022-36

	32.A  CClean Annual Budget 06-30-22
	32.B  CCLEAN Budget 22-23
	2022-23

	32.C RES 2022-37 CCLEAN Contract
	33.A Ex Prfessnl Srvcs Contract with KJ for Design of WWTP Perimeter Fence Replacement-Staff Rpt
	33.B CAWD-PROJ-1-WWTP-CHAIN-LINK-FENCE
	33.C RES 2022-38 Kennedy Jenks - WWTP Perimeter Fence Replacement
	34.A Auth Addl C Order Budget for the Reclamation Sulfuric Acid and Citric Acid Project
	34.B Budget Approval Emails
	34.C RES 2022-39 Authorize Additional Change Order Budget $58,274
	35.A 2022 Manhole Frame  Lid Replacement Project-Notice of Completion - Staff Report
	35.B Notice of Completion District Engineer-2022 MH Frand  Lid Replacement Project
	35.C Notice of Completion to County- 2022 Manhole Frame  Lid Replacement_
	35.D RES 2022-40 2022 MH Frame  Lid Replacement project Notice of Completion (Rachel Lather)
	36.A 22-23 MH  Rehab Project Staff Report
	36.B PUBLIC NOTICE Manhole Rehab Project
	36.C RES 2022-41 Authorizing bid of 22-23 Manhole  Rehab Project
	37.A  2022 Multi Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan
	37.B  RES 2022-42 Multi Jurisdictional Hazard Plan
	39. Project #18-01 - Monthly Construction Progress Report - June 2022
	ADP7828.tmp
	Section 1: Project Summary
	Section 2: Work Performed This Month
	2.1 General
	2.1.1 Submittals
	2.1.2 PLC Programming

	2.2 Site Work
	2.2.1 Potholing/Locating Existing Utilities

	2.3 Sludge Holding Tank Replacement
	2.4 Influent Pump Station Rehab
	2.5 Headworks Rehab
	2.6 Chlorination Building Rehab/3W System Improvements
	2.7 Effluent Pump Station Rehab

	Section 3: Project Issues
	Section 4: RFI and Submittals Review Summary
	Section 5: Change Order Summary
	Section 6: Project Schedule and Budget
	6.1 Schedule
	6.2 Budget

	Section 7: Photos


	40. PBCSD 05-27-22
	DISCUSSION
	Agenda items from the May 27, 2022, meeting that are of specific interest to this District:

	41.A Ju letter to District - 2805 Ribera Rd
	41.B Response to Ju letter
	01. Board Packet Cover.pdf
	3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923


	Text1: Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD), Ca.
	Text2: 22680XX.XX / May 2022


